

STATE OF MINNESOTA
SEVENTY-EIGHTH SESSION -- 1993

FIFTY-SIXTH DAY

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, TUESDAY, MAY 11, 1993

The House of Representatives convened at 9:00 a.m. and was called to order by Dee Long, Speaker of the House.

Prayer was offered by Captain Mark Martsolf, The Salvation Army, St. Paul, Minnesota.

The roll was called and the following members were present:

Abrams	Dauner	Haukoos	Krinkie	Munger	Peterson	Swenson
Anderson, I.	Davids	Hausman	Krueger	Murphy	Pugh	Tomassoni
Anderson, R.	Dawkins	Holsten	Lasley	Neary	Reding	Tompkins
Asch	Dehler	Hugoson	Leppik	Nelson	Rest	Trimble
Battaglia	Delmont	Huntley	Lieder	Ness	Rhodes	Tunheim
Bauerly	Dempsey	Jacobs	Limmer	Olson, E.	Rice	Van Dellen
Beard	Dorn	Jaros	Lindner	Olson, K.	Rodosovich	Vellenga
Bergson	Erhardt	Jefferson	Lourey	Olson, M.	Rukavina	Vickerman
Bertram	Evans	Jennings	Luther	Ornen	Sarna	Wagenius
Bettermann	Farrell	Johnson, A.	Lynch	Opatz	Seagren	Waltman
Bishop	Frerichs	Johnson, R.	Macklin	Orenstein	Sekhon	Weaver
Blatz	Garcia	Johnson, V.	Mahon	Orfield	Simoneau	Wejzman
Brown, C.	Girard	Kahn	Mariani	Osthoff	Skoglund	Welle
Brown, K.	Goodno	Kelley	McCollum	Ostrom	Smith	Wenzel
Carlson	Greenfield	Kelso	McGuire	Ozment	Solberg	Winter
Carruthers	Greiling	Kinkel	Milbert	Pauly	Sparby	Wolf
Clark	Gruenes	Klinzing	Molnau	Pawlenty	Stanisus	Worke
Commers	Gutknecht	Knickerbocker	Morrison	Pelowski	Steensma	Workman
Cooper	Hasskamp	Koppendrayner	Mosel	Perlt	Sviggum	Spk. Long

A quorum was present.

Kalis was excused until 11:55 a.m.

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. Winter moved that further reading of the Journal be dispensed with and that the Journal be approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk. The motion prevailed.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The following communications were received:

STATE OF MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
SAINT PAUL 55155

May 7, 1993

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives
The State of Minnesota

Dear Speaker Long:

It is my honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State the following House Files:

H. F. No. 977, relating to retirement; Minneapolis employees retirement fund; permitting purchase of service credit by a certain member.

H. F. No. 522, relating to utilities; clarifying the specificity needed for public service corporation easements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 300.045.

Warmest regards,

ARNE H. CARLSON
Governor

STATE OF MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR
SAINT PAUL 55155

May 7, 1993

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives
The State of Minnesota

Dear Speaker Long:

It is my honor to inform you that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State the following House File:

H. F. No. 139, relating to the town of Santiago; authorizing the establishment of a detached banking facility.

Warmest regards,

ARNE H. CARLSON
Governor

STATE OF MINNESOTA
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
ST. PAUL 55155

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Allan H. Spear
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 1993 Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

S.F. No.	H.F. No.	Session Laws Chapter No.	Time and Date Approved 1993	Date Filed 1993
	977	95	2:42 p.m. May 7	May 7
	522	96	2:41 p.m. May 7	May 7
913		97	2:50 p.m. May 7	May 7
561		98	2:47 p.m. May 7	May 7
699		99	2:46 p.m. May 7	May 7
1602		100	2:54 p.m. May 7	May 7
754		101	2:48 p.m. May 7	May 7
840		102	2:49 p.m. May 7	May 7
1006		103	2:51 p.m. May 7	May 7
240		105	2:45 p.m. May 7	May 7
	139	106	2:40 p.m. May 7	May 7
487		107	3:20 p.m. May 7	May 7
44		108	2:44 p.m. May 7	May 7

Sincerely,

JOAN ANDERSON GROWE
Secretary of State

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned:

H. F. No. 690, A bill for an act relating to retirement; public employees retirement association; disability benefits; reducing the reduction in benefits to coordinate them with amounts received under workers' compensation law for certain former employees.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

H. F. No. 163, A bill for an act relating to campaign reform; limiting noncampaign disbursements to items specified by law; requiring lobbyists and political committees and funds to include their registration number on contributions; prohibiting certain "friends of" committees; requiring reports by certain solicitors of campaign contributions; limiting use of contributions carried forward; requiring unused postage to be carried forward as an expenditure; requiring certain notices; changing contribution limits; limiting contributions by political parties; prohibiting transfers from one candidate to another, with certain exceptions; limiting contributions by certain political committees, funds, and individuals; eliminating public subsidies to unopposed candidates; providing for a public subsidy to match in-district contributions; clarifying filing requirements for candidate agreements and the duration of the agreements; requiring return of public subsidies under certain conditions; imposing contribution limits on candidates for local offices; prohibiting political contributions by certain nonprofit corporations and partnerships; requiring a report of candidates on whose behalf political contributions have been refunded by the state; defining certain terms; clarifying certain language; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 10A.01, subdivision 10c, and by adding a subdivision; 10A.04, by adding a subdivision; 10A.065, subdivision 1; 10A.14, subdivision 2; 10A.15, by adding subdivisions; 10A.19, subdivision 1; 10A.20, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision; 10A.25, by adding subdivisions; 10A.27, subdivisions 1, 2, 9, and by adding subdivisions; 10A.31, subdivisions 6, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 10A.322, subdivisions 1 and 2; 10A.324, subdivisions 1 and 3; 211B.15; 290.06, subdivision 23; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 10A; 211A; and 211B.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 129, A bill for an act relating to marriage dissolution; maintenance; applying child support enforcement actions to actions to enforce maintenance; expanding notice of rights of parties in dissolution or separation proceeding; requiring child support order to assign responsibility for child's medical coverage; clarifying visitation rights; requiring dissolution judgment or decree to provide notice about principal residence; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 214.101, subdivisions 1 and 4; 518.17, subdivision 3; 518.171, subdivision 1; 518.175, subdivision 6; 518.177; 518.55; 518.551, subdivision 12; 518.583; 518.611, subdivision 2; and 518.641, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 518.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Mr. Betzold; Ms. Reichgott and Robertson.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 454, A bill for an act relating to economic development; requiring a summary of performance measures for business loan or grant programs from the department of trade and economic development; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 116J.58, subdivision 1.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Ms. Runbeck; Messrs. Riveness and Beckman.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 574, A bill for an act relating to retirement; administrative changes, age discrimination act compliance, death-while-active surviving spouse benefit improvements by the Minnesota state retirement system, the public employees retirement association, and teachers retirement association; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3A.02, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 352.01, subdivisions 2b, and by adding a subdivision; 352.03, subdivisions 4, 4a, and 6; 352.04, subdivision 9; 352.113, subdivisions 2, 4, and 7; 352.115, subdivision 8; 352.12, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, and 13; 352.15, subdivision 1a, and by adding subdivisions; 352.22, subdivisions 1 and 2; 352.23; 352.85, subdivision 4; 352.93, subdivision 2a; 352.94; 352.95, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, and 5; 352.951; 352.96, subdivisions 3 and 4; 352B.01, subdivisions 3 and 11; 352B.08, subdivisions 1 and 2a; 352B.10, subdivisions 1, 2, and 5; 352B.101; 352B.105; 352B.11, subdivision 2; 352C.01; 352C.021; 352C.031; 352C.033; 352C.04; 352C.051; 352C.09; 352D.015, subdivision 4; 352D.02, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision; 352D.04, subdivision 1; 352D.05, subdivisions 1, 3, and 4; 352D.09, subdivision 5, and by adding subdivisions; 353.01, subdivisions 2, 2a, 2b, 6, 7, 10, 11a, 12, 16, 28, 31, 32, and by adding subdivisions; 353.017; 353.27, subdivision 7; 353.29, subdivision 1; 353.32, subdivision 1a; 353.33, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 11, and by adding a subdivision; 353.34, subdivisions 1 and 3; 353.35; 353.37; 353.64, subdivisions 1 and 5a; 353.656, subdivisions 1, 1a, 3, 5, and by adding subdivisions; 353A.08, subdivisions 1, 3, and 5; 353A.10, subdivision 4; 353B.11, subdivision 6; 353C.08, subdivisions 1 and 2; 353D.02; 353D.04; 353D.05, subdivision 3; 353D.07, subdivision 2; 354.35; 354.46, subdivisions 1 and 2; 354.48, subdivisions 3 and 10; 356.302, subdivisions 4 and 6; 356.453; 356.61; and 490.124, subdivisions 1 and 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 3A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3A.06; 352.01, subdivision 7; 352.12, subdivision 5; 352.22, subdivision 9; 352.73; 352B.01, subdivision 2a; 352B.131; 352B.14; 352B.261; 352B.262; 352B.28; 352D.05, subdivision 5; and 353.656, subdivision 6.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Stumpf, Riveness, Terwilliger, Morse and Larson.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 584, A bill for an act relating to utilities; regulating telephone services to communication-impaired persons; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 237.49; 237.50, subdivision 3; 237.51, subdivision 2; and 237.52, subdivision 2; repealing Laws 1987, chapter 308, section 8.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Ms. Johnson, J. B.; Messrs. Marty and Frederickson.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 931, A bill for an act relating to motor fuels; increasing minimum oxygen content in certain areas at certain times; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.791, subdivisions 1 and 2.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Bertram, Morse and Larson.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 988, A bill for an act relating to game and fish; allowing the taking of two deer in designated counties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 97B.301, subdivisions 2, 4, and by adding a subdivision.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Stumpf, Lessard and Frederickson.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 994, A bill for an act relating to children; foster care and adoption placement; specifying time limits for compliance with placement preferences; setting standards for changing out-of-home placement; requiring notice of certain adoptions; clarifying certain language; requiring compliance with certain law; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 257.071, subdivisions 1 and 1a; 257.072, subdivision 7; 259.255; 259.28, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 259.455; 260.012; 260.181, subdivision 3; and 260.191, subdivisions 1a, 1d, and 1e; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 257; and 259.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Mr. Spear; Ms. Kiscaden; Messrs. Finn and Knutson, and Ms. Piper.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1039, A bill for an act relating to auctioneers; prohibiting certain cities and towns from requiring additional licenses of persons licensed as auctioneers by a county; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 330.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Bertram, Stumpf and Dille.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1114, A bill for an act relating to game and fish; stamp design; training of hunting dogs; clothing requirements; raccoon season; rough fish taking by nonresidents; muskie size limits; taking of mussels; advance of matching funds; financing waterfowl development; defining "undressed bird"; regulating the taking of deer; regulating seasons on muskrat, mink, otter, and beaver; required license to take and condition of fish brought into the state from Canada; authorizing suspension of requirements upon action by Canadian authorities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 84.085, by adding a subdivision; 97A.015, subdivision 49, and by adding a subdivision; 97A.045, subdivision 7; 97A.091, subdivision 2; 97A.531; 97B.005, subdivisions 2 and 3; 97B.041; 97B.071; 97B.621, subdivision 1; 97B.911; 97B.915; 97B.921; 97B.925; 97C.375; 97C.405; and 97C.701, subdivisions 1 and 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 97A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 97A.541; 97C.701, subdivisions 3, 4, and 5; 97C.705; and 97C.711.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Berg and Lessard, and Mrs. Pariseau.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1133, A bill for an act relating to energy; directing the public service department to evaluate and implement a policy to promote the use of motor vehicles powered by alternate fuels; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 216C.01, by adding subdivisions; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 216B; and 216C.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Ms. Johnson, J. B.; Mr. Novak; Ms. Anderson; Messrs. Dille and Chandler.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1151, A bill for an act relating to employment; requiring wage payments at certain times; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 181.101.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Langseth, Stumpf and Berg.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1178, A bill for an act relating to health; implementing recommendations of the Minnesota health care commission; defining and regulating integrated service networks; requiring regulation of all health care services not provided through integrated service networks; establishing data reporting and collection requirements; establishing other cost containment measures; providing for classification of certain tax data; permitting expedited rulemaking; requiring certain studies; providing penalties; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3.732, subdivision 1; 43A.317, subdivision 5; 60A.02, subdivision 1a; 62A.021, subdivision 1; 62A.65; 62E.02, subdivision 23; 62E.10, subdivisions 1 and 3; 62E.11, subdivision 12; 62J.03, subdivisions 6, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 62J.04, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, and by adding a subdivision; 62J.05, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 62J.09, subdivisions 2, 5, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 62J.15, subdivision 1; 62J.17, subdivision 2, and by adding subdivisions; 62J.23, by adding a subdivision; 62J.30, subdivisions 1, 6, 7, and 8; 62J.32, subdivision 4; 62J.33; 62J.34, subdivision 2; 62L.02, subdivisions 16, 19, 26, and 27; 62L.03, subdivisions 3 and 4; 62L.04, subdivision 1; 62L.05, subdivisions 2, 3, 4, and 6; 62L.08, subdivisions 4 and 8; 62L.09, subdivision 1; 62L.11, subdivision 1; 136A.1355, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 136A.1356; subdivisions 2, 4, and 5; 136A.1357; 137.38, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 137.39, subdivisions 2 and 3; 137.40, subdivision 3; 144.147, subdivision 4; 144.1484, subdivisions 1 and 2; 144.335, by adding a subdivision; 144.581, subdivision 2; 151.47, subdivision 1; 214.16, subdivision 3; 256.9351, subdivision 3; 256.9352, subdivision 3; 256.9353; 256.9354, subdivisions 1, 4, and 5; 256.9356, subdivisions 1 and 2; 256.9357, subdivision 1; 256.9657, subdivision 3, and by adding a subdivision; 256B.04, subdivision 1; 256B.057, subdivisions 1, 2, and 2a; 256B.0625, subdivision 13; 256D.03, subdivision 3; 270B.01, subdivision 8; 295.50, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, 14, and by adding subdivisions; 295.51, subdivision 1; 295.52, by adding subdivisions; 295.53, subdivisions 1, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 295.54; 295.55, subdivision 4; 295.57; 295.58; 295.59; Laws 1990, chapter 591, article 4, section 9; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 16B; 43A; 62A; 62J; 136A; 144; 151; 256; and 295; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapters 62N; and 62O; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 62J.15, subdivision 2; 62J.17, subdivisions 4, 5, and 6; 62J.29; 62L.09, subdivision 2; 295.50, subdivision 10; and 295.51, subdivision 2; Laws 1992, chapter 549, article 9, section 19, subdivision 2.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Ms. Berglin; Mr. Benson, D. D.; Mses. Piper and Kiscaden, and Mr. Luther.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1205, A bill for an act relating to courts; making the housing calendar consolidation projects in the second and fourth judicial districts permanent law; providing that the law requiring that fines collected for violations of building repair orders must be used for the housing calendar consolidation projects is permanent; amending Laws 1989, chapter 328, article 2, section 17; repealing Laws 1989, chapter 328, article 2, sections 18 and 19.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Kelly and Cohen, and Ms. Pappas.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 1585, A bill for an act relating to crime; imposing penalties for a variety of firearms-related offenses; expanding forfeiture provisions; revising and increasing penalties for stalking, harassment, and domestic abuse offenses; providing for improved training, investigation and enforcement of these laws; increasing penalties for and making revisions to certain controlled substance offenses; increasing penalties for crimes committed by groups; increasing penalties and improving enforcement of arson and related crimes; making certain changes to restitution and other crime victim laws; revising laws relating to law enforcement agencies, and state and local corrections agencies; requiring certain counties to establish pretrial diversion programs; revising and increasing penalties for a variety of other criminal laws; clarifying certain provisions for the new felony sentencing system; making technical corrections to sentencing statutes; regulating crimes in certain shopping areas; making knowing transfer of HIV virus a felony; increasing parental liability; limiting right to refuse blood testing; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 8.16, subdivision 1; 13.87, subdivision 2; 16B.08, subdivision 7; 127.03, subdivision 3; 144.765; 144A.04, subdivisions 4 and 6; 144A.11, subdivision 3a; 144B.08, subdivision 3; 152.01, by adding a subdivision; 152.021, subdivision 3; 152.022, subdivisions 1, 2, and 3; 152.023, subdivisions 2 and 3; 152.024, subdivisions 1 and 3; 152.025, subdivision 3; 152.026; 152.0971, subdivisions 1, 3, and by adding subdivisions; 152.0972, subdivision 1; 152.0973, subdivisions 2, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 152.0974; 152.18, subdivision 1; 168.346; 169.121, subdivision 3a; 169.222, subdivisions 1 and 6; 169.64, subdivision 3; 169.98, subdivision 1a; 214.10, by adding subdivisions; 238.16, subdivision 2; 241.09; 241.26, subdivision 5; 241.67, subdivision 2; 243.166, subdivision 1; 243.23, subdivision 3; 244.01, subdivision 8, and by adding a subdivision; 244.05, subdivisions 1b, 4, 5, and by adding a subdivision; 244.065; 244.101; 244.14, subdivisions 2 and 3; 244.15, subdivision 1; 244.17, subdivision 3; 244.171, subdivisions 3 and 4; 244.172, subdivisions 1 and 2; 260.185, subdivisions 1 and 1a; 260.193, subdivision 8; 260.251, subdivision 1; 299A.35, subdivision 2; 299C.46, by adding a subdivision; 299D.03, subdivision 1; 299D.06; 299F.04, by adding a subdivision; 299F.815, subdivision 1; 388.23, subdivision 1; 390.11, by adding a subdivision; 390.32, by adding a subdivision; 401.02, subdivision 4; 473.386, by adding a subdivision; 480.0591, subdivision 6; 480.30; 485.018, subdivision 5; 518B.01, subdivisions 2, 3, 6, 7, 9, and 14; 540.18, subdivision 1; 541.15; 609.02, subdivision 6; 609.0341, subdivision 1; 609.035; 609.05, subdivision 1; 609.06; 609.101, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 609.11; 609.135, subdivisions 1, 1a, and 2; 609.1352, subdivision 1; 609.14, subdivision 1; 609.15, subdivision 2; 609.152, subdivisions 1 and 2; 609.175, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 609.184, subdivision 2; 609.196; 609.224, subdivision 2; 609.229, subdivision 3; 609.251; 609.341, subdivisions 10, 17, 18, and 19; 609.344, subdivision 1; 609.345, subdivision 1; 609.346, subdivisions 2, 2b, and 5; 609.3461; 609.378, subdivision 1; 609.494; 609.495; 609.505; 609.531, subdivision 1; 609.5314, subdivision 1; 609.562; 609.563, subdivision 1; 609.576, subdivision 1; 609.582, subdivision 1a; 609.585; 609.605, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 609.66, subdivisions 1, 1a, and by adding subdivisions; 609.67, subdivisions 1 and 2; 609.686; 609.71; 609.713, subdivision 1; 609.746, by adding a subdivision; 609.748, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 609.79, subdivision 1; 609.795, subdivision 1; 609.856, subdivision 1; 609.891, subdivision 2; 609.902, subdivision 4; 611A.02, subdivision 2; 611A.031; 611A.0315; 611A.04, subdivisions 1, 1a, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 611A.06, subdivision 1; 611A.52, subdivisions 5, 8, and 9; 611A.57, subdivisions 2, 3, and 5; 611A.66; 624.711; 624.712, subdivisions 5, 6, and by adding a subdivision; 624.713; 624.7131, subdivisions 1, 4, and 10; 624.7132; 626.05, subdivision 2; 626.13; 626.556, subdivision 10; 626.8451, subdivision 1a; 626A.05, subdivision 1; 626A.06, subdivisions 4, 5, and 6; 626A.10, subdivision 1; 626A.11, subdivision 1; 628.26; 629.291, subdivision 1; 629.34, subdivision 1; 629.341, subdivision 1; 629.342, subdivision 2; 629.72; 631.046, subdivision 1; 631.41; and 641.14; Laws 1991, chapter 279, section 41; Laws 1992, chapter 571, article 7, section 13, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 121; 152; 169; 174; 242; 260; 401; 473; 593; 609; 611A; and 624; repealing Minnesota

Statutes 1992, sections 152.0973, subdivision 4; 214.10, subdivisions 4, 5, 6, and 7; 241.25; 609.02, subdivisions 12 and 13; 609.131, subdivision 1a; 609.605, subdivision 3; 609.746, subdivisions 2 and 3; 609.747; 609.79, subdivision 1a; 609.795, subdivision 2; 611A.57, subdivision 1; and 629.40, subdivision 5.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Kelly and Spear; Mses. Anderson and Ranum, and Mr. McGowan.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 1046, A bill for an act relating to crimes; prohibiting persons from interfering with access to medical facilities; prescribing penalties; authorizing civil and equitable remedies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 488A.101; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 609.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Ms. Pappas; Mr. Hottinger, and Ms. Kiscaden.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Orenstein moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 1046. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 1074, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; management of state-owned lands by the department of natural resources; deletion of land from Moose Lake state recreation area; private use of state trails; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 84.0273; 84.632; 85.015, by adding a subdivision; 86A.05, subdivision 14; 92.06, subdivision 1; 92.14, subdivision 2; 92.19; 92.29; 92.67, subdivision 5; 94.10; 94.11; 94.13; 94.343, subdivision 3; 94.348, subdivision 2; and 97A.135, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Price, Merriam and Morse.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Sekhon moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 1074. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 1105, A bill for an act relating to health; extending the expiration date of certain advisory councils and committees; modifying provisions relating to lead abatement; changing regulation provisions for hotels, resorts, restaurants, and manufactured homes; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 15.059, subdivision 5; 144.73, subdivision 3; 144.871, subdivisions 2, 6, 7a, and by adding subdivisions; 144.872, subdivision 2; 144.873, subdivision 2; 144.874, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and 6; 144.878, subdivisions 2 and 5; 157.01, subdivision 1; 157.03; 157.08; 157.081, subdivision 1; 157.09; 157.12; 157.14; 245.97, subdivision 6; 327.10; 327.11; 327.16, subdivision 5; 327.20, subdivision 1; 327.26, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 144; and 157; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 144.8721; 144.874, subdivision 10; 144.878, subdivision 2a; and 157.05, subdivisions 2 and 3.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Betzold, Hottinger and Oliver.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Simoneau moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 1105. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 1275, A bill for an act relating to the environment; providing protection from liability for releases of hazardous substances to lenders and owners for redevelopment of property under an approved cleanup plan; providing authority to issue determinations regarding association with a release; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 115B.175, subdivisions 4, 7, and by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 115B.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Mondale and Merriam, and Ms. Wiener.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Wagenius moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 1275. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 413, A bill for an act relating to state lands; authorizing the sale of certain tax-forfeited lands that border public water in St. Louis county; authorizing the conveyance of certain Willmar regional treatment center land to Kandiyohi county.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Messrs. Janezich, Finn and Novak.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Rukavina moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 413. The motion prevailed.

SPECIAL ORDERS

S. F. No. 1101, A bill for an act relating to health-related occupations; requiring hearing instrument dispensers to be certified by the commissioner of health; requiring holders of temporary hearing instrument dispensing permits to be supervised by certified hearing instrument dispensers; authorizing cease and desist orders; providing for penalties; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 153A.13, subdivisions 4 and 5; 153A.14; 153A.15; and 153A.17; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 214.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 131 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abrams	Davids	Hausman	Krueger	Murphy	Pugh	Tomassoni
Anderson, I.	Dawkins	Holsten	Lasley	Neary	Reding	Tompkins
Anderson, R.	Dehler	Hugoson	Leppik	Nelson	Rest	Trimble
Asch	Delmont	Huntley	Lieder	Ness	Rhodes	Tunheim
Battaglia	Dempsey	Jacobs	Limmer	Olson, E.	Rice	Van Dellen
Bauerly	Dorn	Jaros	Lindner	Olson, K.	Rodosovich	Vellenga
Beard	Erhardt	Jefferson	Lourey	Olson, M.	Rukavina	Vickerman
Bergson	Evans	Jennings	Luther	Ornen	Sarna	Wagenius
Bertram	Farrell	Johnson, A.	Lynch	Opatz	Seagren	Waltman
Bettermann	Frerichs	Johnson, R.	Macklin	Orenstein	Sekhon	Weaver
Bishop	Garcia	Johnson, V.	Mahon	Orfield	Simoneau	Wejcmann
Blatz	Girard	Kahn	Mariani	Osthoff	Skoglund	Wenzel
Brown, K.	Goodno	Kelley	McCollum	Ostrom	Smith	Winter
Carlson	Greenfield	Kelso	McGuire	Ozment	Solberg	Wolf
Carruthers	Greiling	Kinkel	Milbert	Pauly	Sparby	Worke
Clark	Gruenes	Klinzing	Molnau	Pawlenty	Stanis	Workman
Commers	Gutknecht	Knickerbocker	Morrison	Pelowski	Steensma	Spk. Long
Cooper	Hasskamp	Koppendrayner	Mosel	Perlt	Sviggum	
Dauner	Haukoos	Krinkie	Munger	Peterson	Swenson	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

Anderson, I., moved that the House recess subject to the call of the Chair. The motion prevailed.

RECESS

RECONVENED

The House reconvened and was called to order by the Speaker.

There being no objection, the order of business reverted to Messages from the Senate.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

H. F. No. 546, A bill for an act relating to outdoor recreation; prohibiting motor sports areas within the Dorer Memorial Hardwood Forest without county and township board approval.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

H. F. No. 643, A bill for an act relating to commerce; making technical changes in the department's enforcement powers; regulating cosmetology; prescribing powers and duties; setting fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 45.011, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 45.027, subdivisions 1, 2, 5, 6, and 8; 155A.03, subdivision 1; 155A.05; 155A.06; 155A.07, subdivisions 2, 4, 7, and 8; 155A.08, subdivisions 2 and 5; 155A.09, subdivisions 2, 5, 6, and 9; 155A.10; 155A.14; 155A.15; and 155A.16; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 155A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 155A.11; 155A.12; 155A.13; and 155A.18; Minnesota Rules, parts 2642.0310, subparts 3, 4, and 5; 2642.0330, subparts 3 and 4; 2642.0800; 2642.0810; 2644.0310, subparts 2, 3, and 4; 2644.0800; and 2644.0810.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

S. F. No. 1620.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT ON S. F. NO. 1620

A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the general legislative, judicial, and administrative expenses of state government; providing for the transfer of certain money in the state treasury; fixing and limiting the amount of fees, penalties, and other costs to be collected in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 8.15; 15.38, by adding a subdivision; 15.50, by adding a subdivision; 15A.083, by adding a subdivision; 196.051, subdivision 3; 196.054, subdivision 2; 198.16; 270.063; 303.13, subdivision 1; 303.21, subdivision 3; 322A.16; 333.20, subdivision 4; 333.22, subdivision 1; 336.9-403; 336.9-404; 336.9-405; 336.9-406; 336.9-407; 336.9-413; 336A.04, subdivision 3; 336A.09, subdivision 2; 349A.10, subdivision 5; 357.021, subdivisions 1a and 2; 357.022; 357.08; 357.18, subdivision 3; 386.61, by adding a subdivision; 386.65; 386.66; 386.67; 386.68; 386.69; 508.82; 508A.82; and 593.48; Laws 1989, chapter 335, article 3, section 44, as amended; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 129D; 386; and 609; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 386.61, subdivision 3; 386.63; 386.64; and 386.70.

May 10, 1993

The Honorable Allan H. Spear
President of the Senate

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives

We, the undersigned conferees for S. F. No. 1620, report that we have agreed upon the items in dispute and recommend as follows:

That the House recede from its amendment and that S. F. No. 1620 be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [STATE GOVERNMENT APPROPRIATIONS.]

The sums shown in the columns marked "APPROPRIATIONS" are appropriated from the general fund, or another fund named, to the agencies and for the purposes specified in this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1993," "1994," and "1995," where used in this act, mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed under them are available for the year ending June 30, 1993, June 30, 1994, or June 30, 1995, respectively.

SUMMARY BY FUND

	1993	1994	1995	BIENNIAL TOTAL
General	\$650,000	\$ 335,939,000	\$ 332,409,000	\$ 668,348,000
Environmental		206,000	206,000	412,000
Highway User		1,669,000	1,669,000	3,338,000
State Government				
Special Revenue		2,378,000	2,378,000	4,756,000
Special Revenue		4,338,000	4,338,000	8,676,000
Trunk Highway		1,032,000	1,032,000	2,064,000
Workers' Compensation		3,897,000	3,902,000	7,799,000
Game and Fish		140,000	140,000	280,000
TOTAL		349,599,000	346,074,000	695,673,000

APPROPRIATIONS Available for the Year Ending June 30

1994	1995
------	------

Sec. 2. LEGISLATURE

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation	46,009,000	48,909,000
------------------------------------	------------	------------

Summary by Fund

General	45,977,000	48,877,000
Trunk Highway	32,000	32,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994 1995

Subd. 2. Senate

14,736,000

15,787,000

\$1,275,000 of the carryforward balance of the appropriation to the senate for fiscal year 1993 is canceled to the general fund.

Subd. 3. House of Representatives

20,500,000

21,904,000

Funds previously appropriated to the house of representatives and carried forward into the biennium beginning July 1, 1993, may be used only as provided in this section. The first \$400,000 of any carryforward must be placed in a special account that may be used only for special sessions, interim activity, or other public hearing or outreach purposes and related activities. Any additional funds may be used only for technology or telecommunication system improvements and related activities.

Subd. 4. Legislative Coordinating Commission

6,835,000

7,342,000

Summary by Fund

General	6,803,000	7,237,000
Trunk Highway	32,000	32,000

(a) Legislative Reference Library

1994	1995
------	------

903,000	874,000
---------	---------

(b) Revisor of Statutes

3,994,000	4,413,000
-----------	-----------

(c) Great Lakes Commission

40,000	40,000
--------	--------

(d) Legislative Commission on the Economic Status of Women

180,000	175,000
---------	---------

(e) Legislative Commission on Employee Relations

106,000	104,000
---------	---------

(f) Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement

504,000	524,000
---------	---------

(g) Legislative Commission on Planning and Fiscal Policy

57,000	56,000
--------	--------

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

The second 50 percent of the appropriation to the department of finance for the statewide systems project is available only if the commissioner of finance seeks and receives a recommendation from the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy on the degree to which the project will improve legislative access to information on the systems. The recommendation is advisory only. Failure of the commission to make a recommendation within 30 days of the commissioner's request shall be considered a negative recommendation. The commissioner shall seek a recommendation no later than October 1, 1993.

The legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy shall appoint a working group to work with the department of finance to facilitate improved legislative access to executive branch budgeting and accounting information that is public data.

(h) Legislative Commission to Review Administrative Rules

136,000	134,000
---------	---------

(i) Legislative Commission on Waste Management

179,000	177,000
---------	---------

(j) Legislative Water Commission

99,000	99,000
--------	--------

The legislative water commission shall report to the legislature by March 1, 1994, on water supply constraints in the area to be served by the Lewis and Clark rural water system. The report shall include the commission's analysis of the environmental and public policy aspects of importing or exporting water from the state.

(k) Mississippi River Parkway Commission

42,000	32,000
--------	--------

Summary by Fund

General	10,000	
Trunk Highway	32,000	32,000

\$10,000 the first year is from the general fund to the Mississippi river parkway commission to study the feasibility of starting an annual "Mississippi river games" competition. The sports event would rotate between the Twin Cities, St. Louis, Memphis, and New Orleans. The study shall consider possible events and potential sources of funding. The study must include methods for ensuring that there will be an approximately equal number of participants of each gender in the games. The commission shall report to the state government divisions of the house and senate by February 1, 1994.

(l) Legislative Coordinating Commission - General Support

273,000	267,000
---------	---------

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

(m) Legislative Coordinating Commission - Nongeneral Support

463,000

516,000

\$70,000 the first year and \$72,000 the second year are reserved for unanticipated costs of agencies in this subdivision and subdivision 5. The legislative coordinating commission may transfer necessary amounts from this appropriation to the appropriations of the agencies concerned, and the amounts transferred are appropriated to those agencies to be spent by them. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

\$95,000 the first year and \$99,000 the second year are for the state contribution to the National Conference of State Legislatures.

\$83,000 the first year and \$87,000 the second year are for the state contribution to the Council of State Governments.

\$182,000 the first year and \$233,000 the second year are for the subcommittee on geographic information systems.

\$8,000 the first year and \$8,000 the second year are for the regent candidate advisory council.

\$25,000 the first year and \$15,000 the second year are for the higher education board candidate advisory council.

Notwithstanding Laws 1991, chapter 356, article 9, section 8, the terms of the members of the initial higher education board shall expire as provided by this section. Four of the members appointed by the governor shall have their terms expire in three years, one in five years, and one in seven years from July 1, 1991. One member appointed by each higher education system shall have a term expiring five years from July 1, 1991, and one member appointed by each higher education system shall have a term expiring seven years from July 1, 1991. Members shall choose their terms by lot.

The legislative coordinating commission shall study the feasibility of coordinating television production and other public outreach facilities between the house of representatives and the senate.

The legislative coordinating commission shall study the feasibility of allowing senators whose offices are in the state office building and who are concerned about personal security to park in the state office building parking ramp.

(n) General Reduction

(141,000)

(142,000)

The legislative coordinating commission shall make a general reduction of \$283,000 in either year of the biennium from the legislative commissions. None of the reduction may be taken from the legislative auditor, the legislative audit commission, or the legislative commission on employee relations.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994	1995
Subd. 5. Legislative Audit Commission	
3,938,000	3,949,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

(a) Legislative Audit Commission

15,000	15,000
--------	--------

(b) Legislative Auditor

3,923,000	3,934,000
-----------	-----------

\$115,000 the first year and \$115,000 the second year is for review of agency performance reports.

Subd. 6. Compensation Council

The salary increases for legislators and constitutional officers recommended in 1989 by the compensation council to take effect January 6, 1992, must not take effect until January 2, 1995.

A compensation council shall be appointed by September 1, 1993, in the manner provided in Minnesota Statutes, section 15A.082, subdivision 2. The compensation council, in consultation with outside compensation specialists, must evaluate and make recommendations to the senate committee on governmental operations and reform and the house committee on governmental operations and gambling on compensation levels, and procedures for periodically reviewing and adjusting compensation levels, for positions listed in Minnesota Statutes, sections 15A.081, subdivisions 1, 7, and 7b; and 15A.082, subdivision 1. The report must include comparisons with other comparable positions in the public and private sector and consider the nonmonetary rewards of public service. The compensation council expires upon submission of the recommendations required by Minnesota Statutes, section 15A.082, subdivision 3.

Sec. 3. SUPREME COURT

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation	\$ 18,135,000	\$ 18,135,000
------------------------------------	---------------	---------------

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Supreme Court Operations

3,860,000	3,860,000
-----------	-----------

\$2,500 the first year and \$2,500 the second year are for a contingent account for expenses necessary for the normal operation of the court for which no other reimbursement is provided.

\$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year are to implement the racial bias task force recommendations.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Subd. 3. Civil Legal Services

4,507,000

4,507,000

\$4,507,000 the first year and \$4,507,000 the second year are for legal service to low-income clients and for family farm legal assistance under Minnesota Statutes, section 480.242. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium. A qualified legal services program, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 480.24, subdivision 3, may provide legal services to persons eligible for family farm legal assistance under Minnesota Statutes, section 480.242.

Subd. 4. Family Law Legal Services

877,000

877,000

\$877,000 the first year and \$877,000 the second year are to improve the access of low-income clients to legal representation in family law matters and must be distributed under Minnesota Statutes, section 480.242, to the qualified legal services programs described in Minnesota Statutes, section 480.242, subdivision 2, paragraph (a). Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel and is available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 5. State Court Administration

7,237,000

7,237,000

\$75,000 of the appropriation in Laws 1992, chapter 571, article 18, section 8, is available until expended for the advisory task force on the juvenile justice system.

Subd. 6. Law Library Operations

1,654,000

1,654,000

Sec. 4. COURT OF APPEALS

5,700,000

5,700,000

Sec. 5. DISTRICT COURTS

60,423,000

60,423,000

Sec. 6. BOARD OF JUDICIAL STANDARDS

177,000

177,000

Sec. 7. TAX COURT

518,000

515,000

Sec. 8. GOVERNOR AND LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

3,470,000

3,471,000

This appropriation is to fund the offices of the governor and lieutenant governor.

\$16,000 the first year and \$16,000 the second year are for necessary expenses in the normal performance of the governor's duties for which no other reimbursement is provided.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$1,000 the first year and \$1,000 the second year are for necessary expenses in the normal performance of the lieutenant governor's duties for which no other reimbursement is provided.

\$95,000 the first year and \$95,000 the second year are for membership dues of the National Governors Association.

\$20,000 the first year is for the Council of Great Lakes Governors.

During the biennium any seminars or training sessions regarding federal issues for federal budgeting that are conducted by the Washington office shall be made available to legislators and legislative staff. The Washington office shall notify the majority leader and the minority leader of the senate and the speaker and the minority leader of the house of representatives regarding the timing of the seminars.

By August 15 of each year, the commissioner of finance shall report to the chairs of the jobs, energy, and community development finance division of the senate and the state government division of the house of representatives those personnel costs incurred by the office of the governor and the lieutenant governor that were supported by appropriations to other agencies during the previous fiscal year. The office of the governor shall inform the chairs of the divisions before initiating any interagency agreements.

Sec. 9. STATE AUDITOR

7,210,000

7,439,000

\$77,000 the first year and \$77,000 the second year are for an account the auditor may bill for costs associated with conducting single audits of federal funds. During the biennium, this account may be used only when no other billing mechanism is feasible.

The total amount accumulated during the biennium ending June 30, 1993 for potential back pay of salary and benefits for an employee of the state auditor who was discharged from employment on April 15, 1991, but who is contesting the discharge, shall be carried forward by the office of the state auditor for use in the biennium ending June 30, 1995.

\$45,000 each year is for annual compliance audits for Hennepin county.

Sec. 10. STATE TREASURER

2,461,000

2,473,000

\$1,135,000 each year is for the treasurer to pay for banking services by fees rather than by compensating balances.

Sec. 11. ATTORNEY GENERAL

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

22,641,000

22,470,000

Summary by Fund

General	20,282,000	20,111,000
Special Revenue	178,000	178,000
Environmental	115,000	115,000
State Government		
Special Revenue	2,066,000	2,066,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Government Services

	5,087,000	5,087,000
--	-----------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	3,021,000	3,021,000
State Government		
Special Revenue	2,066,000	2,066,000

Subd. 3. Public and Human Resources

	4,840,000	4,358,000
--	-----------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	4,662,000	4,180,000
Special Revenue	178,000	178,000

\$500,000 the first year for the Mille Lacs treaty litigation is available for expenditure with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission under Minnesota Statutes, section 3.30. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel, but is available for the second year.

Subd. 4. Law Enforcement

	4,172,000	4,193,000
--	-----------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	4,057,000	4,078,000
Environmental	115,000	115,000

Subd. 5. Legal Policy and Administration

	2,846,000	2,846,000
--	-----------	-----------

Subd. 6. Business Regulation

	4,310,000	4,317,000
--	-----------	-----------

\$15,000 the first year and \$15,000 the second year to the business regulation program of the attorney general to conduct, or contract for, data collection and analysis regarding gender equity in high school athletics.

Subd. 7. Solicitor General

	2,138,000	2,138,000
--	-----------	-----------

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

In order to increase the accountability of all parties and to simplify the current practices for paying for legal services, the attorney general shall establish a task force to review and make recommendations to the legislature regarding funding options to pay for all legal services provided to executive branch agencies. In addition to attorney general staff, members of the task force shall include fiscal staff from both houses of the legislature, staff of the department of finance, and staff from small and large executive branch client agencies. The ability to pay shall not be the only criteria used to allocate legal services. The task force shall study funding options that insure the availability of legal services from the attorney general's office essential to meet program needs of all executive branch agencies. The attorney general shall report the recommendations of the task force to the legislature by March 1, 1994.

Subd. 8. General Reduction

(752,000)

(469,000)

The attorney general shall allocate the general reduction among the office's programs.

Sec. 12. INVESTMENT BOARD

2,013,000

2,031,000

Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

\$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year are to evaluate bids for deferred compensation options and to review periodically the performance of companies currently under contract. All these costs must be assessed against the companies that have been awarded contracts.

Sec. 13. ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

3,797,000

3,802,000

This appropriation is from the workers' compensation special compensation fund for considering workers' compensation claims.

\$100,000 each year is for an internship program in which students at Minnesota law schools will serve as law clerks for judges in the workers' compensation division.

\$180,000 each year is for additional clerical support for workers' compensation judges.

Sec. 14. OFFICE OF STRATEGIC AND LONG-RANGE PLANNING

3,576,000

3,596,000

\$844,000 the first year and \$866,000 the second year are for the land management information center.

Sec. 15. ADMINISTRATION

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

28,370,000

27,200,000

Summary by Fund

General	24,148,000	22,978,000
Special Revenue	4,160,000	4,160,000
State Government		
Special Revenue	62,000	62,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Subd. 2. Operations Management

4,823,000

4,645,000

Before purchasing and implementing electronic data interchange technology in the procurement process, the department must: (1) plan a reengineering of the process and develop a plan for implementing the reengineering; (2) develop policies and procedures on trading partner agreements for the project; (3) complete a life cycle analysis; and (4) develop a technology implementation plan. All plans and policies in this paragraph must be approved by the information policy office before hardware or software for the project is purchased.

The department shall assure that the EDI project is coordinated with the statewide systems project. The department shall involve affected state agencies and others in project planning and implementation.

Amounts appropriated for the EDI initiative may be spent in either year of the biennium.

The department of human services shall transfer \$33,000 each year to the department of administration to expand bulk purchasing of medical supplies for the medical assistance program.

Subd. 3. Intertechnologies Group

Summary by Fund

General	3,528,000	2,372,000
Special Revenue	4,160,000	4,160,000

The appropriation from the special revenue fund each year of \$4,160,000 is for recurring costs of 911 emergency telephone service.

\$3,450,000 is appropriated as a loan from the general fund to the intertechnologies revolving fund for development of the STARS system. This amount must be repaid before the end of the biennium. Plans for expenditure of these funds must be approved by the information policy office before the funds are spent.

\$2,000,000 must be transferred from the intertechnology revolving fund to the general fund.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the commissioner of administration may, with the approval of the commissioner of finance, make loans from an internal service or enterprise fund to another internal service or enterprise fund.

Subd. 4. Facilities Management

8,850,000

8,860,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$4,485,000 the first year and \$4,484,000 the second year are for office space costs of the legislature and veterans organizations, for ceremonial space, and for statutorily free space.

\$150,000 the first year is to pay the department's portion of the settlement in *Sylvester Brothers, v. Burlington Northern, et al.*, for cleanup of the East Bethel landfill. The unobligated balance of the appropriation in Laws 1991, chapter 345, article 1, section 17, subdivision 4, for agency relocation, consolidation, and colocation, is canceled to the general fund.

The decision of the department of administration to deposit a March 1992 check from the Johns Manville Trust in the amount of \$302,749 in the asbestos abatement account in the state building fund is ratified.

Subd. 5. Administrative Management

Summary by Fund

General	4,603,000	4,656,000
Special Revenue	62,000	62,000

\$2,000 the first year and \$2,000 the second year are for the state employees' band.

A biennial appropriation of \$124,000 to the commissioner of administration shall be used for processing and oversight of grants and allocations in the oil overcharge program. This appropriation is from oil overcharge money, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 4.071, in the special revenue fund.

\$1,271,000 the first year and \$1,272,000 the second year are for matching grants for public television.

\$600,000 the first year and \$600,000 the second year are for public television equipment needs. Equipment grant allocations shall be made after considering the recommendations of the Minnesota public television association. Special emphasis shall be given by public television grant recipients for children's programming such as the Sesame Street preschool educational program and extending Mr. Rogers Neighborhood to child care.

\$300,000 the first year and \$300,000 the second year are for operational grants to public educational radio stations, which must be allocated after considering the recommendations of the Association of Minnesota Public Educational Radio Stations under Minnesota Statutes, section 129D.14.

\$356,000 the first year and \$331,000 the second year are for equipment grants to public radio stations. These grants must be allocated after considering the recommendations of the Association of Minnesota Public Educational Radio Stations and Minnesota Public Radio, Inc.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$25,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year are for grants to the Twin Cities regional cable channel.

If an appropriation for either year for grants to public television or radio stations is not sufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

\$80,000 each year is for transfer to the bureau of mediation services for the office of dispute resolution.

All grants made by the System of Technology to Achieve Results (STAR) shall be distributed in a manner to ensure that grants are awarded throughout the state.

Subd. 6. Management Analysis

535,000

609,000

The management analysis division shall study the desirability of creating an independent information policy office. The division shall report its findings to the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy by December 1, 1993. The commission shall make recommendations for any needed legislative changes to the house of representatives and senate governmental operations committees by February 1, 1994.

Subd. 7. Information Policy Office

1,809,000

1,836,000

\$181,000 the first year and \$185,000 the second year must be subtracted from the amount that would otherwise be payable to local government aid under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 477A, in order to fund the intergovernmental information systems advisory council.

\$115,000 the first year and \$90,000 the second year are for giving opinions under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.072.

Sec. 16. CAPITOL AREA ARCHITECTURAL AND
PLANNING BOARD

326,000

334,000

Any unencumbered balance of the appropriation for the first year does not cancel and is available for use in the second year.

\$75,000 the first year and \$82,000 the second year are to create a memorial to Hubert H. Humphrey in the capitol area. Of these amounts, up to \$75,000 may be used by the board to select an appropriate site for the memorial. \$82,000 is available only as matched, one state dollar for three dollars, by contributions from nonstate sources. The board shall establish design requirements, choose the design, and oversee construction of the memorial. In establishing the memorial, the board may accept money from nonstate sources and contract with other private or public agencies. The appropriation is available until expended.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 17. FINANCE

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

24,527,000

16,662,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Economic Analysis

289,000

300,000

Subd. 3. Accounting Services

19,303,000

12,711,000

\$4,640,000 the first year and \$3,869,000 the second year are to implement the accounts receivable project. The commissioner of finance may transfer money to the commissioners of human services and revenue and the attorney general. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

\$10,300,000 the first year and \$4,700,000 the second year are for the statewide systems project. If the appropriation for the statewide systems project in either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available. The commissioner of finance shall report monthly during the biennium ending June 30, 1995, to the chairs of the senate finance committee and the house of representatives ways and means committee on the expenditure of this appropriation and the progress of the statewide systems project.

\$285,000 is for transfer by August 1, 1993, to the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy for the purpose of improving legislative access to executive branch budgeting and accounting information. None of the other money appropriated in this section for the statewide systems project may be spent until the transfer to the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy has occurred.

The budgeting and accounting portions of the statewide systems project must be designed so that all public data in these systems are available to the legislature at the time the data are available to executive branch agencies.

The commissioner of finance, in consultation with affected agencies, shall reengineer work processes in preparation for the new state accounting, purchasing, and personnel systems.

The commissioner shall develop a joint work plan with the department of administration to implement electronic data interchange. The commissioner shall prepare plans for migrating to open systems, and shall develop plans for an automated interface with the local government financial system. The commissioner must submit these plans to the information policy office for review and approval.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Subd. 4. Budget Analysis and Operations

2,089,000

2,147,000

By October 1, 1994, the commissioner of finance shall coordinate the preparation of a report which identifies the estimated direct and indirect budget savings anticipated from the enacted funding of investment initiatives within the fiscal year 1994-1995 budget. The report shall identify current and estimated future funding requirements as well as direct and indirect benefits by year covering the current and two future biennia. The commissioner shall subsequently report to the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy by November 1 of each year documented costs and savings compared to original estimates. Each agency shall retain responsibility for monitoring and documenting savings. If actual savings and benefits vary from original estimates, the report must include agency plans to ensure ongoing savings.

Subd. 5. Cash and Debt Management

1,544,000

126,000

\$1,422,000 the first year is for grants to the cities of Minneapolis and St. Paul for debt service payments due on bonds issued for metropolitan area parks.

Subd. 6. Management and Administrative Services

1,302,000

1,378,000

Sec. 18. EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

8,059,000

7,932,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Human Resources Management

6,439,000

6,424,000

Thirty percent of the amount used each year to fund grants to the government training service is from the general fund. Seventy percent of the amount used each year to fund grants to the government training service must be subtracted from the amount that would otherwise be payable to local government aid under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 477A.

In order to maximize the delivery of services to the public, if layoffs of state employees as defined in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 43A, are necessary during the biennium ending June 30, 1995, the agency shall make every effort to reduce at least the same percentage of management and supervisory personnel as line and support personnel.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

State agencies must demonstrate that they cannot use available staff before hiring outside consultants or services. As state agencies implement reductions in their operating budgets in the biennium ending June 30, 1995, agencies shall give priority to reducing spending on professional and technical contracts before laying off permanent employees. Agencies must report on the specific manner in which this directive is implemented to the senate finance and house ways and means committees by February 1, 1994, and February 1, 1995. Where outside consultants and services are necessary, agencies are encouraged to negotiate contracts that will involve permanent staff so as to upgrade and maximize training of state personnel. Money spent on outside consultants must be reported by February 1, 1995, to the senate finance and house of representatives ways and means committees.

\$375,000 the first year and \$370,000 the second year is to begin implementation of the human resource management project recommendations regarding performance management system training, retraining project grants, centralized recruitment and redeployment, communications, and policy development.

The commissioner shall seek to enhance the availability of the job-sharing program under Minnesota Statutes, sections 43A.40 to 43A.46 to the extent that: (1) additional employees wish to participate in the program; and (2) use of the program is consistent with effective management of state agencies.

Subd. 3. Employee Insurance

1,620,000

1,508,000

\$104,000 the first year and \$104,000 the second year from the general fund are for the right-to-know contracts administered through the employee insurance division.

Any refund to the state from the workers' compensation reinsurance association before July 1, 1995, is to be deposited in the general fund. The portion of the refund that is not attributable to the general fund shall be paid to the proper fund by the commissioner of finance.

\$1,416,000 the first year and \$1,312,000 the second year from the general fund are for workers' compensation reinsurance premiums.

\$100,000 each year is for a health promotion and disease prevention grant program for state agencies. A state agency may apply to the commissioner of employee relations for a grant of up to \$25,000. In evaluating grant applications, the commissioner shall give highest priority to proposals that will maximize health care cost savings, maximize increased productivity, and minimize workers compensation claims. Each agency that receives a grant under this section must establish a committee that includes affected employees. The committee must assist the agency in planning, implementing, and evaluating the programs implemented with grant funds. The commissioner of employee relations must report to the legislature by January 15, 1996. The report must evaluate the results of the grant program, including the effect of the program on health care costs, workers' compensation claims, and productivity.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 19. REVENUE

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

73,531,000

74,087,000

Summary by Fund

General	71,446,000	72,002,000
Environmental	91,000	91,000
Highway User	1,669,000	1,669,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Income Tax System

36,208,000

36,643,000

\$3,100,000 each year is to improve direct services to taxpayers, expand individual and small business audit and nonfiler detection, and to provide ongoing development and support for new return filing and payment technologies.

Subd. 3. Withholding Tax System

5,651,000

5,639,000

Subd. 4. Sales and Use Tax System

25,519,000

25,637,000

Summary by Fund

General	23,459,000	23,577,000
Environmental	91,000	91,000
Highway User	1,669,000	1,669,000
Local Government Trust	300,000	300,000

Subd. 5. Property Tax System

6,128,000

6,143,000

\$55,000 the first year and \$55,000 the second year must be subtracted from the total taconite production tax revenues distributed to local units of government. These amounts shall be credited to the general fund and appropriated to the department of revenue for the costs and expenses incurred by the department in collecting and distributing taconite production tax revenues.

Subd. 6. Reporting

The commissioner shall report quarterly to the chairs of the senate finance and tax committees and house of representatives ways and means and tax committees and to the commissioner of finance on all funds expended and corresponding revenues received in the audit and collection divisions.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

	1994	1995
Sec. 20. AMATEUR SPORTS COMMISSION	451,000	451,000

\$15,000 each year is available for promotion of women's sports.

Sec. 21. COMMISSIONER OF HUMAN RIGHTS	3,211,000	3,171,000
---------------------------------------	-----------	-----------

For 1993 - \$150,000

This appropriation is to pay workers' compensation claims.

Of this appropriation, \$40,000 is for enhancement of information systems. Before purchasing hardware and software, the department shall develop an agencywide strategic information plan and submit the plan to the information policy office for review and approval. The department shall use the plan to determine future system management needs, including administration, software project management, support staffing, and information asset security. The department shall develop a project information system life cycle analysis to identify costs, benefits, and risks, and a comprehensive records retention schedule for paper and electronic records. With the approval of the information policy office, the balance of the \$40,000 appropriation not needed for analysis of information management functions, can be used by the department to purchase hardware and software.

Sec. 22. MILITARY AFFAIRS

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation	9,248,000	9,249,000
------------------------------------	-----------	-----------

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Maintenance of Training Facilities

5,361,000	5,362,000
-----------	-----------

The appropriation for planning and remodeling grants for 12 armories scheduled to be sold or disposed of pursuant to Laws 1992, chapter 511, article 2, section 50, is available until June 30, 1995.

Subd. 3. General Support

1,537,000	1,537,000
-----------	-----------

\$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the second year are for expenses of military forces ordered to active duty under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 192. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Subd. 4. Enlistment Incentives

2,350,000	2,350,000
-----------	-----------

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$1,530,750 the first year and \$1,604,250 the second year are for the tuition reimbursement program.

\$484,250 the first year and \$410,750 the second year are for the reenlistment bonus program.

Obligations for the reenlistment bonus program, suspended on December 31, 1991, shall be paid from the amounts available within the entire enlistment incentives program.

If appropriations for either year of the biennium are insufficient, the appropriation from the other year is available. The appropriations for enlistment incentives are available until expended.

Sec. 23. VETERANS AFFAIRS

3,103,000

3,119,000

Of this appropriation, \$310,000 is for grants to county veterans offices for training of county veterans service officers.

\$1,048,000 the first year and \$1,048,000 the second year are for emergency financial and medical needs of veterans. For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, the commissioner shall limit financial assistance to veterans and dependents to six months, unless recipients have been certified as ineligible for other benefit programs. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

With the approval of the commissioner of finance, the commissioner of veterans affairs may transfer the unencumbered balance from the veterans relief program to other department programs during the fiscal year. The commissioner of veterans affairs shall provide background information explaining why the unencumbered balance exists. The amounts transferred must be identified to the chairs of the senate finance committee division on state government and the house governmental operations and gambling committee division on state government finance.

\$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year are for a grant to the Vinland National Center.

Sec. 24. VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS

31,000

31,000

For carrying out the provisions of Laws 1945, chapter 455.

Sec. 25. MILITARY ORDER OF THE PURPLE HEART

10,000

10,000

Sec. 26. DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS

12,000

12,000

For carrying out the provisions of Laws 1941, chapter 425.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 27. STATE-PAID INSURANCE SUPPLEMENT

Subdivision 1. Appropriations

4,890,000

4,890,000

Except as limited by the direct appropriations in this section, the amounts necessary to pay increases in employer-paid insurance benefits during the biennium are appropriated to the commissioner of finance from the various funds in the state treasury from which salaries are paid. In the case of salaries that are paid from one fund, but that fund is reimbursed by another fund, the amounts necessary to make those reimbursements are also appropriated.

Summary by Fund

General	3,750,000	3,750,000
Game and Fish	140,000	140,000
Trunk Highway	1,000,000	1,000,000

Subd. 2. Increases Covered

The state-paid insurance benefit increases covered by this section are those paid to classified and unclassified employees and officers in the executive, judicial, and legislative branches of state government, and to employees of the Minnesota historical society, state university system, and community college system who are paid from state appropriations. The increases must be authorized by current law, be authorized by appropriate resolutions for employees of the legislature, or result from collective bargaining agreements and changes in employer-paid insurance benefits associated with those agreements which are given interim approval by the legislative commission on employee relations under Minnesota Statutes, sections 3.855 and 43A.18, or 179A.22, subdivision 4.

By January 1, 1994, the commissioner of employee relations must estimate any increases covered by this section and certify the amount necessary for each agency. During the biennium, the commissioner of finance shall transfer the necessary amounts to the proper accounts and shall promptly notify the house of representatives ways and means committee and the senate finance committee of the amount transferred to each appropriation account. If the appropriated amounts are insufficient, the commissioner of finance shall proportionally allocate available funding among agencies. Any appropriation balance remaining the first year does not cancel, but is available for the second year.

Sec. 28. GENERAL CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS

550,000

550,000

Summary by Fund

General	200,000	200,000
Special Revenue	250,000	250,000
Workers' Compensation	100,000	100,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

The appropriations in this section must be spent with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission under Minnesota Statutes, section 3.30.

If an appropriation in this section for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

The special revenue appropriation is available to be transferred to the attorney general when the costs to provide legal services to the health boards exceed the biennial appropriation to the attorney general from the special revenue fund. The boards receiving the additional services shall set their fees to cover the costs.

Sec. 29. TORT CLAIMS

300,000

300,000

To be spent by the commissioner of finance.

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 30. MINNESOTA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

2,200,000

2,200,000

The amounts estimated to be needed for each program are as follows:

(a) Legislators

2,000,000

2,000,000

Under Minnesota Statutes, sections 3A.03, subdivision 2; 3A.04, subdivisions 3 and 4; and 3A.11.

(b) Constitutional Officers

200,000

200,000

Under Minnesota Statutes, sections 352C.031, subdivision 5; 352C.04, subdivision 3; and 352C.09, subdivision 2.

If an appropriation in this section for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 31. MINNEAPOLIS EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND

11,005,000

11,005,000

\$10,455,000 the first year and \$10,455,000 the second year are to the commissioner of finance for payment to the Minneapolis employees retirement fund under Minnesota Statutes, section 422A.101, subdivision 3. Payment must be made in four equal installments, March 15, July 15, September 15, and November 15, each year.

\$550,000 the first year and \$550,000 the second year are to the commissioner of finance for payment to the Minneapolis employees retirement fund for the supplemental benefit for pre-1973 retirees under Minnesota Statutes, section 356.865.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 32. POLICE AND FIRE AMORTIZATION AID

3,970,000

6,055,000

\$3,417,000 the first year and \$5,055,000 the second year are to the commissioner of revenue for state aid to amortize the unfunded liability of local police and salaried firefighters' relief associations, under Minnesota Statutes, section 423A.02. The reduction of \$2,085,000 the first year from amounts otherwise payable as amortization aid and supplemental amortization aid is due to excess investment earnings by the Minneapolis police and fire relief associations and reduces the aid apportionment otherwise payable to the city of Minneapolis on July 15, August 31, September 15, and November 15, 1993.

\$553,000 the first year and \$1,000,000 the second year are to the commissioner of revenue for supplemental state aid to amortize the unfunded liability of local police and salaried firefighters' relief associations under Minnesota Statutes, section 423A.02, subdivision 1a.

Sec. 33. [BASE CUT TRANSFERS.]

For any agency assigned base cuts in this act, the proportion of agency base cuts for pass-through grants compared to total agency base cuts may not exceed the proportion of dollars appropriated for pass-through grants in the agency compared to total dollars appropriated to that agency.

Sec. 34. [3.196] [AUDITS.]

The house of representatives and the senate shall each contract with the state auditor or a certified public accountant to perform an audit at least biennially.

Sec. 35. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 3.971, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3. The legislative auditor, on a biennial schedule, shall review agency performance reports to review and comment on the appropriateness, validity, and reliability of the outcome measures and data collection efforts. The legislative auditor shall report the findings to agencies, the governor, the speaker of the house of representatives, and the president of the senate.

Sec. 36. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 8.15, is amended to read:

8.15 [ATTORNEY GENERAL COSTS.]

The attorney general in consultation with the commissioner of finance shall assess executive branch agencies a fee for legal services rendered to them, except that the attorney general may not assess the department of human rights for legal representation on behalf of complaining parties who have filed a charge of discrimination with the department. The assessment against appropriations from other than the general fund must be the full cost of providing the services. The assessment against appropriations supported by fees must be included in the fee calculation. The assessment against appropriations from the general fund not supported by fees must be one-half of the cost of providing the services. An amount equal to the general fund receipts in the even-numbered year of the biennium is appropriated to the attorney general for each year of the succeeding biennium. All other receipts from assessments must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

The attorney general in consultation with the commissioner of finance shall assess political subdivisions fees to cover half the cost of legal services rendered to them; except that the attorney general may not assess a county any fee for legal services rendered in connection with a psychopathic personality commitment proceeding under section 526.10 for which the attorney general assumes responsibility under section 8.01.

Sec. 37. [11A.075] [DISCLOSURE OF EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT.]

(a) A member or employee of the state board must annually disclose expenses paid for or reimbursed by: (1) each investment advisor, consultant, or outside money manager under contract to the state board; (2) each investment advisor, consultant, or outside money manager that has bid on a contract offered by the state board during that year; and (3) each business, including officers or employees of the business, in which the state board has invested money under the board's control during the annual reporting period. The disclosure requirement of this paragraph does not apply to expenses or reimbursements from an investment advisor, consultant, money manager or business if the board member or employee received less than \$50 during the annual reporting period from that person or entity.

(b) For purposes of this section, expenses include payments or reimbursements for meals, entertainment, transportation, lodging, and seminars.

(c) The disclosure required by this section must be filed with the ethical practices board by April 15 each year. Each disclosure report must cover the previous calendar year. The statement must be on a form provided by the ethical practices board. An individual who fails to file the form required by this section or who files false information, is subject to penalties specified in sections 10A.09 and 10A.10.

Sec. 38. [13.072] [OPINIONS BY THE COMMISSIONER.]

Subdivision 1. [OPINION; WHEN REQUIRED.] (a) Upon request of a state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision, the commissioner may give a written opinion on any question relating to public access to government data, rights of subjects of data, or classification of data under this chapter or other Minnesota statutes governing government data practices. Upon request of any person who disagrees with a determination regarding data practices made by a state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision, the commissioner may give a written opinion regarding the person's rights as a subject of government data or right to have access to government data. If the commissioner determines that no opinion will be issued, the commissioner shall give the state agency, statewide system, political subdivision, or person requesting the opinion notice of the decision not to issue the opinion within five days of receipt of the request. If this notice is not given, the commissioner shall issue an opinion within 20 days of receipt of the request. For good cause and upon written notice to the person requesting the opinion, the commissioner may extend this deadline for one additional 30-day period. The notice must state the reason for extending the deadline. The state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision must be provided a reasonable opportunity to explain the reasons for its decision regarding the data. The commissioner or the state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision may choose to give notice to the subject of the data concerning the dispute regarding the data.

(b) This section does not apply to a question involving the exercise of a discretionary power specifically granted by statute to a responsible authority to withhold or grant access to government data in a manner different than the data's general statutory classification.

(c) A written opinion issued by the attorney general shall take precedence over an opinion issued by the commissioner under this section.

Subd. 2. [EFFECT.] Opinions issued by the commissioner under this section are not binding on the state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision whose data is the subject of the opinion, but must be given deference by a court in a proceeding involving the data. The commissioner shall arrange for public dissemination of opinions issued under this section. This section does not preclude a person from bringing any other action under this chapter or other law in addition to or instead of requesting a written opinion. A state agency, statewide system, political subdivision, or person that acts in conformity with a written opinion of the commissioner is not liable for compensatory or exemplary damages or awards of attorneys fees in actions under section 13.08 or for a penalty under section 13.09.

Subd. 3. [FEE.] A state agency, statewide system, or political subdivision that requests an opinion must pay a fee of \$200 for each request.

Sec. 39. [15.90] [PURPOSE.]

The purposes of sections 15.90 to 15.92 are:

(1) to generate information so that the legislature can determine the extent to which state programs are successful;

(2) to develop clear goals and priorities for state programs;

(3) to strengthen accountability to Minnesotans by providing a record of state government's performance in providing effective and efficient services; and

(4) to create appropriate incentives and systems that will allow and encourage the best work by state employees.

Sec. 40. [15.91] [PERFORMANCE REPORTING FOR AGENCIES OF STATE GOVERNMENT.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITION.] For purposes of sections 15.90 to 15.92, "agency" means a department or agency, as designated in section 15.01.

Subd. 2. [PERFORMANCE REPORTS.] (a) Each agency shall develop a performance report for its operations. The report shall include each of the following items or an explanation of why an item does not apply to the agency:

(1) a statement of the mission, goals, and objectives of the agency including those set forth in statute;

(2) measures and goals of the output and outcome of the agency;

(3) identification of priority and other service populations, or other service measures, under current law and how those populations are expected to change within the period of the report;

(4) plans for how outcome information can be used as an incentive for improving state programs and program outcomes;

(5) requests for statutory flexibility needed to reach outcome goals;

(6) explanation of outcome information that could be available with new data collection systems; and

(7) other information that may be required.

The goals required under clause (1): (i) must be simple declarative statements of intent; (ii) should carry benchmarks for accomplishment; and (iii) should be specific enough so citizens can measure progress year to year.

(b) Each agency shall issue a draft report by November 1, 1993, a first annual report by September 1, 1994, and annual updated reports no later than September 1 of each year beginning in 1995. A report must cover a period of four years previous and two years in the future from the date that it is required to be issued, including previous forecasts versus actual measures.

(c) Each agency shall send a copy of each report issued to the governor, the speaker of the house of representatives, the president of the senate, the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy, the legislative auditor, the commissioner of finance, and two copies to the legislative reference library.

(d) The legislative auditor shall review the drafts and give comments to agencies and the legislature before September 1, 1994, and shall review and give comments on annual reports on a rotating biennial schedule.

(e) State agency reports shall be compiled as required in this paragraph. The commissioner of finance, in consultation with the commissioner of administration, the legislative commission on planning and fiscal policy, and the finance committees and divisions of the house of representatives and senate, shall:

(1) develop forms and instructions for the use of the agencies in the preparation of their reports;

(2) work with individual agencies to determine acceptable measures of workload, output, and outcome for use in reports; and

(3) request any needed additional information concerning any agency report submitted.

Each agency shall include citizens, agency clients, consumer and advocacy groups, worker participation committees, managers, elected officials, and contractors in its planning.

Sec. 41. [15.92] [WORKER PARTICIPATION COMMITTEES.]

(a) In the development of outcome measures and incentive programs, each agency shall create a committee including representatives of employees and employers. The committee must be given adequate time to perform the functions prescribed in paragraph (b). Each exclusive representative of employees shall select a committee member from each of its bargaining units in each affected agency. The head of each agency shall select an employee member from each unit of employees not represented by an exclusive representative. The agency head shall also appoint one or more committee members to represent the agency. The number of members appointed by the agency head, however, may not exceed the total number of members representing bargaining units.

(b) A committee established under paragraph (a) shall:

(1) identify other employer and employee issues related to improving the delivery of the agency's program and services;

(2) identify barriers to the effective and efficient delivery of services;

(3) participate in the development of the agency's outcome measures and incentive programs; and

(4) meet as desired for the purpose of developing solutions to problems shared by employees and employer within the agency.

Sec. 42. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 15A.083, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 8. [LIMITS ON BONUS PAYMENTS.] Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, an employee of the state lottery or of a public corporation or nonprofit corporation created by law may not receive bonus payments in any year that exceed ten percent of the employee's base salary for that year. For purposes of this section, bonus payments include any combination of merit pay, achievement awards, or any other cash payments in addition to base salary, other than severance pay or overtime or holiday pay. Groups covered by this section include, but are not limited to, the Workers' Compensation Reinsurance Association, the Minnesota Insurance Guaranty Association, the Fair plan, the Joint Underwriters Association, the Minnesota Joint Underwriters Association, the Life and Health Guaranty Association, the Minnesota Comprehensive Health Association, the Minnesota State High School League, Minnesota Technology, Inc., Agricultural Utilization Research Institute, Minnesota Project Outreach Corporation, State Fund Mutual Insurance Company, the World Trade Center Corporation, and the State Agricultural Society. This section does not give any entity authority to grant a bonus not otherwise authorized by law.

Sec. 43. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.011, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [APPROPRIATIONS WAYS AND MEANS COMMITTEE.] "Appropriations Ways and means committee" means the appropriations chief fiscal committee of the house of representatives.

Sec. 44. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.011, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [BIENNIUM.] "Biennium" means a period of two consecutive fiscal years beginning in an odd-numbered calendar year and ending in the next odd-numbered calendar year. On July 1, 1984, the current biennium is the 1983-1985 biennium.

Sec. 45. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.011, subdivision 14, is amended to read:

Subd. 14. [FISCAL YEAR.] "Fiscal year" means the period beginning at midnight between June 30 and July 1 and ending 12 months later. On July 1, 1984, the current fiscal year is 1985.

Sec. 46. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.04, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [TO PREPARE, CONSULT, SUPERVISE.] The commissioner shall prepare the biennial budget with four year projections on of revenues and expenditures for both the biennial budget period and the biennium following the biennial budget period. The governor shall supervise the preparation unless there is a governor-elect, who then shall provide the supervision.

Sec. 47. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.055, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [LIST.] The commissioner shall:

- (1) receive and record all money paid into the state treasury and safely keep it until lawfully paid out;
- (2) manage the state's financial affairs;
- (3) keep the state's general account books according to generally accepted government accounting principles;
- (4) keep expenditure and revenue accounts according to generally accepted government accounting principles;
- (5) develop, provide instructions for, prescribe, and manage a state uniform accounting system;
- (6) provide to the state the expertise to ensure that all state funds are accounted for under generally accepted government accounting principles; and
- (7) coordinate the development of, and develop maintain standards for, internal auditing in state agencies and, in cooperation with the commissioner of administration, report to the legislature and the governor by December 31, ~~1990~~ of even-numbered years, on progress made.

Sec. 48. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.06, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. ~~[OBJECTIVES REPORTING AGENCY PERFORMANCE.] The commissioner from time to time shall require each executive agency to write objectives on the department's form for its authorized activities and functions. The objectives must be specific as to amount and time so that their performance can be measured. The objectives must cover the current and the next biennium. Executive agencies shall prepare performance-based budget plans according to schedules, forms, and standards as established by the commissioner. The commissioner may also require other periodic reports of agency performance.~~

Sec. 49. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.065, is amended to read:

16A.065 [PREPAY SOFTWARE, SUBSCRIPTIONS, UNITED STATES DOCUMENTS.]

~~Despite Notwithstanding~~ section 16A.41, subdivision 1, the commissioner may allow an agency to make advance deposits or payments for software or software maintenance services for state-owned or leased electronic data processing equipment, for sole source maintenance agreements where it is not ~~cost effective~~ cost-effective to pay in arrears, for exhibit booth space rental when required by the renter to guarantee the availability of space, for registration fees where advance payment is required or advance payment discount is provided, and for newspaper, magazine, and other subscription fees customarily paid for in advance. The commissioner may also allow advance deposits by any department with the Library of Congress and federal Supervisor of Documents for items to be purchased from those federal agencies.

Sec. 50. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.10, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. ~~[BY MAY 1 AND SEPTEMBER 1 BUDGET FORMAT.] In each even-numbered calendar year the commissioner shall prepare the budget forms and instructions for all agencies, subject to the approval of the governor. The commissioner shall consult with request and receive advisory recommendations from the chairs of the senate finance committee and house of representatives appropriations ways and means committee, as well as their respective division chairs, before adopting a format for the biennial budget document. By May 1 June 15, the commissioner shall send the proposed budget forms to the appropriations and finance committees. The committees have until June 1 July 15 to give the commissioner their advisory recommendations on possible improvements. By September 1, the commissioner shall send each agency enough forms to make its budget estimates. To facilitate this consultation, the commissioner shall establish a working group consisting of executive branch staff and designees of the chairs of the senate finance and house of representatives ways and means committees. The commissioner must involve this group in all stages of development of budget forms and instructions. The forms budget format must show actual expenditures and receipts for the two most recent fiscal years, estimated expenditures and receipts for the current fiscal year, and estimates for each fiscal year of the next biennium, and an estimated appropriation balance at the end of the current fiscal year. Estimated expenditures must be classified by funds and character of expenditures and may be subclassified by programs and activities. Agency revenue estimates must show how the estimates were made and what factors were used. Receipts must be classified by funds, programs, and activities. Expenditure and revenue estimates must be based on the law in existence at the time the estimates are prepared.~~

Sec. 51. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.10, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [BY OCTOBER 15 AND NOVEMBER 30.] By October 15 of each even-numbered year, an agency must file the following with the commissioner:

- (1) its budget and departmental earnings estimates for the most recent and current fiscal years;
- (2) its upcoming biennial budget and departmental earnings estimates;
- (3) a comprehensive and integrated statement of agency missions and outcome and performance measures; and
- (4) a concise explanation of any requests for increased appropriations, expansion planned changes in the level of services, or new activities;
- (3) a statement of work done during the current biennium and proposed for the next biennium; and
- (4) a list of each employee's name, title, and salary.

The commissioner shall prepare and file the budget estimates for an agency failing to file them. By November 30, the commissioner shall send the final budget format, departmental earnings report, agency budget plans or requests for the next biennium, and copies of the filed material to the appropriations ways and means and finance committees, except that the commissioner shall not be required to transmit information that identifies executive branch budget decision items. At this time, a list of each employee's name, title, and salary must be available to the legislature, either on paper or through electronic retrieval.

Sec. 52. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.105, is amended to read:

16A.105 [DEBT CAPACITY FORECAST.]

By January 14 December 1 of each odd-numbered even-numbered year the governor shall submit to the legislature a debt capacity forecast. The debt capacity forecast must include statements of the indebtedness of the state for bonds, notes, and other forms of long-term indebtedness that are not accounted for in proprietary or fiduciary funds, including general obligation bonds, moral obligation bonds, revenue bonds, loans, grants payable, and capital leases. The forecast must show the actual amount of the debt service for at least the past two completed fiscal years, and the estimated amount for the current fiscal year and the next six fiscal years, the debt authorized and unissued, the condition of the sinking funds, and the borrowing capacity for the next six fiscal years.

Sec. 53. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.11, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [WHEN.] The governor shall submit a three-part budget to the legislature. Parts one and two, the budget message and detailed operating budget, must be submitted by the fourth Monday Tuesday in January in each odd-numbered year. Part three, the detailed recommendations as to capital expenditure, need not be must be submitted until June 15 as follows: agency capital budget requests by June 15 of each odd-numbered year; preliminary governor's recommendations by September 1 of each odd-numbered year; and final recommendations by February 1 of each even-numbered year.

Sec. 54. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.11, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [PART TWO: DETAILED BUDGET.] Part two of the budget, the detailed budget estimates both of expenditures and revenues, shall contain any statements on the financial plan which the governor believes desirable or which may be required by the legislature. Part of the budget must be prepared using performance-based budgeting concepts. In this subdivision, "performance-based budgeting" means a budget system that identifies agency outcomes and results and provides comprehensive information regarding actual and proposed changes in funding and outcomes. The detailed estimates shall include the budget request plan of each agency arranged in tabular form so it may readily be compared with the governor's budget for each agency. They shall also include, as part of each agency's organization chart, a summary of the personnel employed by the agency, showing the complement approved by the legislature full-time equivalent positions for the current biennium, additional complement positions authorized through the governor or the commissioner, positions transferred into or out of the agency, additional part-time and seasonal positions and the number of full-time equivalent employees of all kinds employed by the agency on June 30 of the last complete fiscal year. The summary of the number of employees must list employees by employment status, including but not limited to full-time unlimited, part-time unlimited, full-time or part-time seasonal, intermittent, full-time or part-time temporary, full-time or part-time emergency, and other. The summary of personnel shall also be shown for each functional division of the agency, and for each fund and type of appropriation.

Any increase in complement with the exception of federal positions, approved by the commissioner of finance as temporary positions, shall be reflected in the governor's budget recommendations to the legislature as change request items. These positions are not permanent positions until the legislature has approved the change request items.

Sec. 55. [16A.122] [WORK FORCE PLANNING AND REPORTING.]

Subdivision 1. [AGENCY AUTHORIZED WORK FORCE.] Within any limits imposed by law, state agencies may establish full-time, part-time, or seasonal positions as necessary to carry out assigned responsibilities and missions except that actual levels of employment are limited by availability of appropriated funding for salaries and benefits.

Subd. 2. [TRANSFERS FROM GRANTS PROHIBITED.] Unless otherwise provided by law, an agency must not use grant or flow-through funds for salaries or other operating purposes.

Subd. 3. [WORK FORCE REPORTING.] The commissioner shall prepare quarterly work force reports as required for accurate reporting of state employment levels, whether for internal analysis or for nationwide comparisons of public employment levels. The reports shall express total employment in terms of full-time equivalent positions; shall indicate changes from previous reporting periods; and shall take into account all positions, including full-time, part-time, temporary, and other employees. In this subdivision, a full-time equivalent position means 2,080 working hours per year; except that the number of work hours may vary, depending upon the exact number of working days in any given year. Independent contractors are not to be included within the definition of a full-time equivalent position.

Subd. 4. [BUDGET REPORTING.] For purposes of budgetary reporting, position counts must be expressed as full-time equivalents as stipulated in subdivision 3. Estimated positions must be based on actual funding in the year indicated. The biennial budget document submitted to the legislature by the governor shall indicate full-time equivalent base level positions, the number of projected positions, and the number of positions for each of the two years before the base year. The governor's budget recommendations shall clearly specify any proposed changes in full-time equivalent positions. All fiscal notes and any other budgetary items submitted to the legislature shall specify relevant changes, both in full-time equivalent positions and accompanying changes in salary dollars.

Sec. 56. [16A.1285] [DEPARTMENTAL EARNINGS.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] In this section, "departmental earnings" means any charge for goods and services and any regulatory, licensure, or other similar charges levied by any state agency and paid by individuals, businesses, or other nonstate entities. This definition must not be construed to include general taxes collected by a state agency or charges for services provided by one state agency to another state agency.

Subd. 2. [POLICY.] Unless otherwise provided by law, specific charges falling within definitions stipulated in subdivision 1 must be set in the manner prescribed in this subdivision provided that: (1) agencies, when setting, adjusting, or authorizing any charge for goods or services that are of direct, immediate, and primary benefit to an individual, business, or other nonstate entity, shall set the charges at a level that neither significantly over recovers nor under recovers costs, including overhead costs, involved in providing the services; or (2) that agencies, when setting, adjusting, or establishing regulatory, licensure, or other charges that are levied, in whole or in part, in the public interest shall recover, but are not limited to, the costs involved in performance and administration of the functions involved.

Subd. 3. [DUTIES OF THE COMMISSIONER OF FINANCE.] The commissioner of finance shall classify, monitor, analyze, and report all departmental earnings that fall within the definition established in subdivision 1. Specifically, the commissioner shall:

(1) establish and maintain a classification system that clearly defines and distinguishes categories and types of departmental earnings and takes into account the purpose of the various earnings types and the extent to which various earnings types serve a public or private interest;

(2) prepare a biennial report that documents collection costs, purposes, and yields of all departmental earnings, the report to be submitted to the legislature on or before November 30 of each even-numbered year and to include estimated data for the year in which the report is prepared, actual data for the two years immediately before, and estimates for the two years immediately following; and

(3) prepare and maintain a detailed directory of all departmental earnings.

Subd. 4. [RULEMAKING.] (a) Unless otherwise exempted or unless specifically set by law, all charges for goods and services, licenses, and regulation must be established or adjusted as provided in chapter 14; except that agencies may establish or adjust individual charges when:

(1) charges for goods and services are provided for the direct and primary use of a private individual, business, or other similar entity;

(2) charges are nonrecurring;

(3) charges would produce insignificant revenues;

(4) charges are billed within or between state agencies; or

(5) charges are for admissions to or for use of public facilities operated by the state, if the charges are set according to prevailing market conditions to recover operating costs.

(b) In addition to the exceptions in paragraph (a), agencies may adjust charges, with the approval of the commissioner of finance, if the proposed adjustments are within consumer price level (CPI) ranges stipulated by the commissioner of finance, if the adjustments do not change the type or purpose of the item being adjusted.

(c) Any departmental earnings changes or adjustments authorized by the commissioner of finance must be reported to the chairs of the senate committee on finance and the house ways and means committee before August 1 of each year.

Subd. 5. [PROCEDURE.] The commissioner of finance shall review and comment on all departmental charges submitted for approval under chapter 14. The commissioner's comments and recommendations must be included in the statement of need and reasonableness and must address any fiscal and policy concerns raised during the review process.

Sec. 57. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.129, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3. [CASH ADVANCES.] When the operations of any nongeneral fund account would be impeded by projected cash deficiencies resulting from delays in the receipt of grants, dedicated income, or other similar receivables, and when the deficiencies would be corrected within the budget period involved, the commissioner of finance may transfer general fund cash reserves into the accounts as necessary to meet cash demands. The cash flow transfers must be returned to the general fund as soon as sufficient cash balances are available in the account to which the transfer was made. Any interest earned on general fund cash flow transfers accrues to the general fund and not to the accounts or funds to which the transfer was made.

Sec. 58. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.15, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [REDUCTION.] (a) If the commissioner determines that probable receipts for the general fund will be less than anticipated, and that the amount available for the remainder of the biennium will be less than needed, the commissioner shall, with the approval of the governor, and after consulting the legislative advisory commission, reduce the amount in the budget reserve and cash flow reserve account ~~established in subdivision 6~~ as needed to balance expenditures with revenue.

(b) An additional deficit shall, with the approval of the governor, and after consulting the legislative advisory commission, be made up by reducing unexpended allotments of any prior appropriation or transfer. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the commissioner is empowered to defer or suspend prior statutorily created obligations which would prevent effecting such reductions.

(c) If the commissioner determines that probable receipts for any other fund, appropriation, or item will be less than anticipated, and that the amount available for the remainder of the term of the appropriation or for any allotment period will be less than needed, the commissioner shall notify the agency concerned and then reduce the amount allotted or to be allotted so as to prevent a deficit.

(d) In reducing allotments, the commissioner may consider other sources of revenue available to recipients of state appropriations and may apply allotment reductions based on all sources of revenue available.

(e) In like manner, the commissioner shall reduce allotments to an agency by the amount of any saving that can be made over previous spending plans through a reduction in prices or other cause.

Sec. 59. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.15, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [NOTICE TO COMMITTEES.] The commissioner shall notify the committees on finance and taxes and tax laws of the senate and the committees on appropriations ways and means and taxes of the house of representatives of a reduction in an allotment under subdivision 4 this section. The notice must be in writing and delivered within 15 days of the commissioner's act. The notice must specify:

- (1) the amount of the reduction in the allotment;
- (2) the agency and programs affected;
- (3) the amount of any payment withheld; and
- (4) any additional information the commissioner determines is appropriate.

Sec. 60. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.15, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [BUDGET RESERVE AND CASH FLOW RESERVE ACCOUNT ESTABLISHED.] A budget reserve and cash flow reserve account is created in the general fund in the state treasury. The commissioner of finance shall, ~~as authorized from time to time by law, restrict part or all of the budgetary balance before reserves in the general fund for use as may be necessary to fund the budget reserve and cash flow reserve account as provided by law from time to time. The commissioner of finance shall transfer from the budget and cash flow reserve account the amount necessary to bring the total amount, including any existing balance in the account on July 1, 1992, to \$240,000,000. The amounts restricted shall remain in the account until drawn down under subdivision 1 or increased under section 16A.1541.~~

Sec. 61. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.152, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 3. [USE.] The use of the budget reserve should be governed by principles based on the full economic cycle rather than the budget cycle. The budget reserve may be used when a negative budgetary balance is projected and when objective measures, such as reduced growth in total wages, retail sales, or employment, reflect downturns in the state's economy.

Sec. 62. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.152, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 5. [RESTORATION.] The restoration of the budget reserve should be governed by principles based on the full economic cycle rather than the budget cycle. Restoration of the budget reserve should occur when objective measures, such as increased growth in total wages, retail sales, or employment, reflect upturns in the state's economy. The budget reserve should be restored before new or increased spending commitments are made.

Sec. 63. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.1541, is amended to read:

16A.1541 [ADDITIONAL REVENUES; PRIORITY.]

If on the basis of a forecast of general fund revenues and expenditures the commissioner of finance determines that there will be a positive unrestricted budgetary general fund balance at the close of the biennium, the commissioner of finance must allocate money to the budget reserve and cash flow reserve account until the total amount in the account equals five percent of total general fund appropriations for the current biennium as established by the most recent legislative session. Beginning in November 1990, forecast unrestricted budgetary general fund balances are first appropriated to restore the budget reserve and cash flow reserve account to \$550,000,000 and then to reduce the property tax levy recognition percent under section 121.904, subdivision 4a, to 27 percent before money is allocated to the budget reserve and cash flow reserve account under the preceding sentence.

Sec. 64. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.28, is amended to read:

16A.28 [TREATMENT OF UNUSED APPROPRIATIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [CARRYFORWARD.] Agencies may carry forward unexpended and unencumbered nongrant operating balances from the first year of a biennium into the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 2. [USE OF CARRYFORWARD.] No money shall be carried forward without the approval of the commissioner of finance.

Subd. 3. [LAPSE.] Except as specifically provided for in appropriation acts, a part of an appropriation subject to this section. Any portion of any appropriation not carried forward and remaining unexpended and unencumbered at the close of a fiscal year lapses. The commissioner shall see that the remainder is returned to the fund from which it was originally appropriated. Any appropriation amounts not carried forward and remaining unexpended and unencumbered at the close of a biennium lapse to the fund from which the appropriation was made.

Subd. 2 4. [REINSTATEMENT; FINAL LAPSE.] The commissioner may reinstate a lapsed appropriation within three months of the lapse. A reinstated appropriation lapses again no later than three months after it first lapsed. A payment under a reinstated appropriation may be made only under section 16A.15, subdivision 3.

Subd. 3 5. [PERMANENT IMPROVEMENTS.] An appropriation for permanent improvements, including the acquisition of real property does not lapse until the purposes of the appropriation are determined by the commissioner, after consultation with the affected agencies, to be accomplished or abandoned.

Subd. 4 6. [CANCELED SEPTEMBER 1.] On September 1 all allotments and encumbrances for the last fiscal year shall be canceled unless an agency head certifies to the commissioner that there is an encumbrance for services rendered or goods ordered in the last fiscal year, or certifies that funding will be carried forward under subdivision 1. The commissioner may: reinstate the part of the cancellation needed to meet the certified encumbrance or charge the certified encumbrance against the current year's appropriation.

Subd. 5 7. [EXCEPTIONS.] Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, subdivisions 1 to 4 6 apply to every appropriation of a stated sum for a specified purpose or purposes heretofore or hereafter made, but do not, unless expressly provided by law, apply to any fund or balance of a fund derived wholly or partly from special taxes, fees, earnings, fines, federal grants, or other sources that are by law appropriated for special purposes by standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations.

Sec. 65. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.281, is amended to read:

16A.281 [APPROPRIATIONS TO LEGISLATURE EXEMPT.]

Except as provided in this section, section 16A.28 does not apply applies to appropriations made to the legislature, the senate, the house of representatives or its committees or commissions. An appropriation made to the legislature, the senate, the house of representatives, or a legislative commission or committee other than a standing committee, if not spent during the first year, may be spent during the second year of a biennium. An unexpended balance not carried forward and remaining unexpended and unencumbered at the end of a biennium lapses and shall be returned to the fund from which appropriated. Balances may be carried forward into the next biennium and credited to special accounts to be used only as follows: (1) for nonrecurring expenditures on investments that enhance efficiency or improve effectiveness; (2) to pay expenses associated with special sessions, interim activities, public hearings, or other public outreach efforts and related activities; and (3) to pay severance costs of involuntary terminations. The approval of the commissioner of finance under section 16A.28, subdivision 2, does not apply to the legislature. An appropriation made to the legislature, the senate, the house of representatives, or a standing committee for all or part of a biennium may be spent in either year of the biennium or the year before or after the biennium.

Sec. 66. [16A.285] [ALLOWED APPROPRIATION TRANSFERS.]

An agency may transfer state agency operational money between programs within the same fund if: (1) the agency first notifies the commissioner as to the type and intent of the transfer; and (2) the transfer is consistent with legislative intent. If an amount is specified for an item within an activity, that amount must not be transferred or used for any other purpose.

The commissioner shall report the transfers to the chairs of the senate finance and house of representatives ways and means committees.

Sec. 67. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.58, is amended to read:

16A.58 [COMMISSIONER CUSTODIAN OF PAYMENT DOCUMENTS.]

The commissioner or the head of a state agency designated by the commissioner is the custodian of original documents on which money has been or may be paid out of or received in the state treasury.

Sec. 68. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.69, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [TRANSFER BETWEEN ACCOUNTS.] Upon the awarding of final contracts for the completion of a project for construction or other permanent improvement, or upon the abandonment of the project, the agency to whom the appropriation was made may transfer the unencumbered balance in the project account to another project enumerated in the same section of that appropriation act. The transfer must be made only to cover bids for the other project that were higher than was estimated when the appropriation for the other project was made and not to cover an expansion of the other project. The money transferred under this section is appropriated for the purposes for which transferred. For transfers by the state board of technical colleges, the total cost of both projects and the required local share for both projects are adjusted accordingly. The agency proposing a transfer shall report to the chair of the senate finance committee and the chair of the house appropriations of representatives ways and means committee before the transfer is made under this subdivision.

Sec. 69. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.72, is amended to read:

16A.72 [INCOME CREDITED TO GENERAL FUND; EXCEPTIONS.]

All income, including fees or receipts of any nature, shall be credited to the general fund, except:

- (1) federal aid;
- (2) contributions, or reimbursements received for any account of any division or department for which an appropriation is made by law;
- (3) income to the University of Minnesota;
- (4) income to revolving funds now established in institutions under the control of the commissioners of corrections or human services;
- (5) investment earnings resulting from the master lease program, except that the amount credited to another fund or account may not exceed the amount of the additional expense incurred by that fund or account through participation in the master lease program;
- (6) receipts from the operation of patients' and inmates' stores and vending machines, which shall be deposited in the social welfare fund in each institution for the benefit of the patients and inmates;
- (7) money received in payment for services of inmate labor employed in the industries carried on in the state correctional facilities which receipts shall be credited to the current expense fund of those facilities;
- (8) as provided in sections 16B.57 and 85.22; or
- (9) as otherwise provided by law; and
- (10) income to the Minnesota historical society.

Sec. 70. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16B.24, subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. [SMOKING IN STATE BUILDINGS.] (a) To protect the public health, comfort, and environment and to protect the nonsmoker's right to a smoke-free environment, smoking in all buildings managed or leased by the commissioner under subdivisions 1 and 6 is prohibited except in veterans homes where smoking areas have been designated under a policy adopted in accordance with paragraph (b).

~~(b) Except as provided in paragraph (c), each state agency shall adopt a smoking policy for the space it occupies. Before placing a policy in effect, the agency shall submit the policy and a plan for implementing it to the commissioner of employee relations. The policy must:~~

- ~~(1) prohibit smoking entirely; or~~
- (2) A veterans home may permit smoking only in designated areas, providing that existing physical barriers and ventilation systems can be used to prevent the presence of smoke in adjacent nonsmoking areas.

~~(c) An agency need not adopt a new policy governing an area in which smoking is prohibited under a policy in effect on January 1, 1989.~~

No employee complaining of a ~~smoke-induced discomfort~~ violation of this subdivision to a lessor, lessee, manager, or supervisor may be subjected to any disciplinary action as a result of making the complaint.

Sec. 71. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16B.41, as amended by Laws 1993, chapter 4, section 12, is amended to read:

16B.41 [STATE INFORMATION SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT POLICY OFFICE.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE.] ~~An office of information systems management is created.~~ The information policy office shall develop and establish a policy and standards for state agencies to follow for the development, purchase, and training for information systems. The purpose of the office is to develop, promote, and coordinate a state technology, architecture, standards and guidelines, information needs analysis techniques, contracts for the purchase of equipment and services, and training of state agency personnel on these issues.

Subd. 2. [RESPONSIBILITIES.] The office has the following duties:

(a) The office must develop and establish a state information architecture to ensure that further state agency development and purchase of information systems equipment and software is directed in such a manner that individual agency information systems complement and do not needlessly duplicate or needlessly conflict with the systems of other agencies. In those instances where state agencies have need for the same or similar computer data, the commissioner shall ensure that the most efficient and cost-effective method of producing and storing data for or sharing data between those agencies is used. The development of this information architecture must include the establishment of standards and guidelines to be followed by state agencies. ~~The commissioner of administration must establish interim standards and guidelines by August 1, 1987. The office must establish permanent standards and guidelines by July 1, 1988.~~ On January 1, 1988, and every six months thereafter, any state agency that has purchased information systems equipment or software in the past six months, or that is contemplating purchasing this equipment or software in the next six months, must report to the office and to the chairs of the house ways and means committee and the senate finance committee on how the purchases or proposed purchases comply with the applicable standards and guidelines.

(b) The office shall assist state agencies in the planning and management of information systems so that an individual information system reflects and supports the state agency's and the state's mission, requirements, and functions.

(c) The office must review and approve all agency requests for legislative appropriations for the development or purchase of information systems equipment or software. Requests may not be included in the governor's budget submitted to the legislature, unless the office has approved the request.

(d) Each biennium the office must ~~rank in order of priority~~ rate agency requests for new appropriations for development or purchase of information systems equipment or software based on established information management criteria. The office must submit this ~~ranking~~ rating to the legislature at the same time, or no later than 14 days after, the governor submits the budget message to the legislature. The governor must provide information necessary to rate agency requests to the office.

(e) The office must define, review, and approve major purchases of information systems equipment to (1) ensure that the equipment follows the standards and guidelines of the state information architecture; (2) ensure that the equipment is consistent with the information management principles adopted by the information policy council; (3) evaluate whether or not the agency's proposed purchase reflects a cost-effective policy regarding volume purchasing; and (4) ensure the equipment is consistent with other systems in other state agencies so that data can be shared among agencies, unless the office determines that the agency purchasing the equipment has special needs justifying the inconsistency. The commissioner of finance may not allot funds appropriated for major purchases of information systems equipment until the office reviews and approves the proposed purchase. A public institution of higher education must not purchase interconnective computer technology without the prior approval of the office.

(f) The office shall review the operation of information systems by state agencies and provide advice and assistance so that these systems are operated efficiently and continually meet the standards and guidelines established by the office. These standards and guidelines shall emphasize uniformity that encourages information interchange, open

systems environments, and portability of information whenever practicable and consistent with an agency's authority and the Minnesota government data practices act. The office, in consultation with the intergovernmental information systems advisory council and the legislative reference library, shall adopt specific standards and guidelines to be met by each state agency within a time period fixed by the office in regard to the following:

(1) establishment of methodologies and systems directed at reducing and ultimately eliminating redundant storage of data and encouraging greater use of central databases;

(2) establishment of data retention schedules, disaster recovery plans and systems, security systems, and procedural safeguards concerning privacy of data;

(3) establishment of pricing policies and incentives that encourage electronic transfer of information in electronic forms, while giving due consideration to the value and cost of providing the information in those forms. These pricing policies may include preferential prices for information requested by a public entity for a public purpose; and

(4) establishment of information sales systems that utilize licensing and royalty agreements to the greatest extent possible, together with procedures for agency denial of requests for licenses or royalty agreements by commercial users or resellers of the information. Section 3.751 does not apply to these licensing and royalty agreements and the agreements must include provisions that section 3.751 does not apply and that the state is immune from liability under the agreement.

If an agency needs additional funds to comply with the requirements of this paragraph, the agency must first obtain approval of the proposal by the office as required by paragraph (c) before submitting it to the legislature.

(g) The office must conduct a comprehensive review at least every three years of the information systems investments that have been made by state agencies and higher education institutions. The review must include recommendations on any information systems applications that could be provided in a more cost beneficial manner by an outside source. The office must report the results of its review to the legislature and the governor.

(h) The office shall recommend to the legislature any statutory changes that are necessary or desirable to accomplish the duties described in this subdivision.

(i) The office must report to the legislature by January 15 each year on progress in implementing paragraph (f), clauses (1) to (4).

Subd. 3. [STAFF.] The office shall function as a division of the department of administration. The commissioner of administration shall ~~appoint an interim office director and other interim staff and~~ provide the necessary administrative support to the office. The ~~employees and~~ director shall serve in the unclassified service through June 30, 1988. On July 1, 1988, the ~~employee positions established by this section, except the position of director, shall be placed in the classified service. The position of director shall remain in the unclassified service.~~

Subd. 4. ~~[ADVISORY TASK FORCE.] The commissioner must appoint a state information systems advisory task force to help develop and coordinate a state information architecture that is consistent with the information management direction developed by the information policy council, and make recommendations to the commissioner concerning the progress, direction, and needs of the state's information systems. The task force must include representatives of state agencies, the supreme court, higher education systems, librarians, local government, and private industry. The task force must also have two members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker of the house and two members of the senate appointed by the senate committee on committees. No more than one member from the house of representatives and one from the senate shall be chosen from the same political party. The terms, compensation, and removal of nonlegislative members are as provided in section 15.059, but the task force does not expire until June 30, 1993.~~

Subd. 5. [COMPUTER IMPACT STATEMENT.] When a statutory change affects reporting and data collection requirements for local units of government, the state agency most responsible for the data collected and reported by the local units of government must file a computer impact statement with the office within 60 days of the final enactment of the statutory change. The statement must indicate the anticipated data processing costs associated with the change.

Sec. 72. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16B.43, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [APPLICATION.] The authority of the commissioner under sections 16B.40 to 16B.42, 16B.44, and 16B.45 ~~does not apply~~ applies to ESV-IS, ~~but applies~~ and to SDE-IS and computer-related services provided to the department of education by the department of administration's information services bureau. For purposes of this section, "ESV-IS" and "SDE-IS" have the meanings given them in section 121.93.

Sec. 73. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16B.92, is amended to read:

16B.92 [LAND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CENTER.]

Subdivision 1. [PURPOSE.] The purpose of the land management information center is to foster integration of environmental information and provide services in computer mapping and graphics, environmental analysis, and small systems development. The ~~commissioner~~ director, through the center, shall periodically study land use and natural resources on the basis of county, regional, and other political subdivisions.

Subd. 1a. [STATEWIDE NITRATE DATA BASE.] The ~~commissioner~~ director, through the center, shall maintain a statewide nitrate data base containing the data described in section 103A.403.

Subd. 2. [FEES.] The ~~commissioner~~ director shall set fees under section 16A.128, subdivision 2, reflecting the actual costs of providing the center's information products and services to clients. Fees collected must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the land management information center revolving account. Money in the account is appropriated to the ~~commissioner~~ director for operation of the land management information system, including the cost of services, supplies, materials, labor, and equipment, as well as the portion of the general support costs and statewide indirect costs of the ~~department office~~ that is attributable to the land management information system. The ~~commissioner~~ director may require a state agency to make an advance payment to the revolving fund sufficient to cover the agency's estimated obligation for a period of 60 days or more. If the revolving fund is abolished or liquidated, the total net profit from operations must be distributed to the funds from which purchases were made. The amount to be distributed to each fund must bear to the net profit the same ratio as the total purchases from each fund bear to the total purchases from all the funds during a period of time that fairly reflects the amount of net profit each fund is entitled to receive under this distribution.

Sec. 74. [TRANSFER OF LAND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CENTER.]

Subdivision 1. [TRANSFER.] The land management information center is transferred from the department of administration to the office of strategic and long-range planning, under Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039.

Subd. 2. [REVISOR INSTRUCTION.] In the next edition of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall codify Minnesota Statutes, section 16B.92 in chapter 4A.

Sec. 75. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 43A.045, is amended to read:

43A.045 [RESTRUCTURING.]

(a) It is the policy of the state of Minnesota that any restructuring of executive branch agencies be accomplished while ensuring must include efforts to ensure that fair and equitable arrangements are carried out to protect the interests of executive branch employees, and while facilitating to provide the best possible service to the public. The commissioner shall make an effort to train and retrain existing employees for a changing work environment. Where restructuring may involve a loss of existing positions and employment, the commissioner shall assist affected employees in finding suitable employment.

For (b) Options available to employees whose positions will be eliminated by implementation of a restructuring plan, options presented to employees must include but not be limited to, at a minimum, job and training opportunities necessary to qualify for another job in the same, an equal, or a lower classification within their current department or a similar job in another state agency.

(c) Implementation of this section, as well as procedures for notifying employees affected by restructuring plans, must be negotiated into collective bargaining agreements under chapter 179A. Nothing in this section shall be construed as diminishing any rights defined in collective bargaining agreements under this chapter or chapter 179A.

Sec. 76. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 192.501, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [TUITION REIMBURSEMENT.] (a) The adjutant general shall establish a program providing tuition reimbursement for members of the Minnesota national guard in accordance with this section. An active member of the Minnesota national guard serving satisfactorily, as defined by the adjutant general, shall be reimbursed for tuition paid to a post-secondary education institution as defined by section 136A.15, subdivision 5, upon proof of satisfactory completion of course work.

(b) In the case of tuition paid to a public institution located in Minnesota, including any vocational or technical school, tuition is limited to an amount equal to 50 percent of the cost of tuition at that public institution, except as provided in this section. In the case of tuition paid to a Minnesota private institution or vocational or technical school or a public or private institution or vocational or technical school not located in Minnesota, reimbursement is limited to 50 percent of the cost of tuition for lower division programs in the college of liberal arts at the twin cities campus of the University of Minnesota in the most recent academic year, except as provided in this section.

(c) If a member of the Minnesota national guard is killed in the line of state active ~~duty~~ service or federally funded state active service as defined in section 190.05, subdivision 5b, the state shall reimburse 100 percent of the cost of tuition for post-secondary courses satisfactorily completed by any surviving spouse and any surviving dependents who are ~~24~~ 23 years old or younger. Reimbursement for surviving spouses and dependents is limited in amount and duration as is reimbursement for the national guard member.

(d) The amount of tuition reimbursement for each eligible individual shall be determined by the adjutant general according to rules formulated within 30 days of June 4, 1989. Tuition reimbursement received under this section shall not be considered by the Minnesota higher education coordinating board or by any other state board, commission, or entity in determining a person's eligibility for a scholarship or grant-in-aid under sections 136A.095 to 136A.132.

Sec. 77. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 196.051, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [FUNDS.] The commissioner may commingle the funds of persons who are under the commissioner's guardianship pursuant to authority granted by section 196.051. The commissioner shall keep complete and accurate accounts showing each transaction that occurs with respect to the funds of each person under the commissioner's guardianship. Money in a guardianship fund is appropriated to the commissioner to carry out the guardianship.

Sec. 78. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 196.054, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [APPROPRIATION.] There is a veterans affairs resources fund in the state treasury. All money received by the department pursuant to subdivision 1 must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the veterans affairs resources fund. The commissioner may only use Money from the veterans affairs resources fund is appropriated to the commissioner for operation, maintenance, repair of facilities, associated legal fees, and other related expenses used under subdivision 1.

Sec. 79. [197.608] [VETERANS SERVICE OFFICE GRANT PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [GRANT PROGRAM.] A veterans service office grant program is established to be administered by the commissioner of veterans affairs consisting of grants to counties to enable them to enhance the effectiveness of their veterans service offices.

Subd. 2. [RULE DEVELOPMENT.] The commissioner of veterans affairs shall consult with the Minnesota association of county veterans service officers in formulating rules to implement the grant program.

Subd. 3. [ELIGIBILITY.] To be eligible for a grant under this program, a county must:

(1) employ a county veterans service officer as authorized by sections 197.60 and 197.606, who is certified to serve in this position by the commissioner of veterans affairs;

(2) submit a written plan for the proposed expenditures to enhance the functioning of the county veterans service office in accordance with the program rules; and

(3) apply for the grant according to procedures to be established for this program by the commissioner and receive written approval from the commissioner for the grant in advance of making the proposed expenditures.

Subd. 4. [GRANT APPLICATION.] (a) A grant application must be submitted to the department of veterans affairs according to procedures to be established by the commissioner. The grant application must include a specific description of the plan for enhancing the operation of the county veterans service office.

(b) The commissioner shall approve a grant application only if it meets the criteria for eligibility as established and announced by the commissioner and there are sufficient funds remaining in the grant program to cover the amount of the grant. The commissioner may request modification of a plan. If the commissioner rejects a grant application, written reasons for the rejection must be provided to the applicant county and the county may modify the application and resubmit it.

Subd. 5. [QUALIFYING USES.] The commissioner of veterans affairs shall determine whether the plan specified in the grant application will enable the applicant county to enhance the effectiveness of its county veterans office.

Notwithstanding subdivision 3, clause (1), a county may apply for and use a grant for the training and education required by the commissioner for a newly employed county veterans service officer's certificate, or for the continuing education of other staff.

Subd. 6. [GRANT AMOUNT.] The amount of each grant must be determined by the commissioner of veterans affairs, and may not exceed the lesser of:

(1) the amount specified in the grant application to be expended on the plan for enhancing the effectiveness of the county veterans service office; or

(2) the county's share of the total funds available under the program, determined in the following manner:

(i) if the county's veteran population is less than 1,000, the county's grant share shall be \$2,000;

(ii) if the county's veteran population is 1,000 or more but less than 3,000, the county's grant share shall be \$4,000;

(iii) if the county's veteran population is 3,000 or more but less than 10,000, the county's grant share shall be \$6,000;

or

(iv) if the county's veteran population is 10,000 or more, the county's grant share shall be \$8,000.

In any year, only one-half of the counties in each of the four veteran population categories (i) to (iv) shall be awarded grants. Grants shall be awarded on a first-come first-served basis to counties submitting applications which meet the commissioner's criteria as established in the rules. Any county not receiving a grant in any given year shall receive priority consideration for a grant the following year.

In any year, after a period of time to be determined by the commissioner, any amounts remaining from undistributed county grant shares may be reallocated to the other counties which have submitted qualifying application.

The veteran population of each county shall be determined by the figure supplied by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs, as adopted by the commissioner.

Sec. 80. [197.609] [EDUCATION PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION.] An education program for county veterans service officers is established to be administered by the commissioner of veterans affairs.

Subd. 2. [ELIGIBILITY.] To be eligible for the program in this section, a person must currently be employed as a county veterans service officer as authorized by sections 197.60 to 197.606, and be certified to serve in that position by the commissioner of veterans affairs or be serving a probationary period as authorized by section 197.60, subdivision 2.

Subd. 3. [PROGRAM CONTENT.] The program in this section must include but is not limited to informing county veteran service officers of the federal, state, and private benefits and services available to veterans, training them in procedures for applying for these benefits, updating them on the changes in these benefits and the eligibility criteria and application procedures, informing them of judicial and regulatory decisions involving veterans programs, training them in the legal procedures for appealing decisions disallowing benefits to veterans, and providing education, information, and training for any other aspects of the veteran service officer position.

Sec. 81. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 198.16, is amended to read:

198.16 [DONATIONS; GENERAL PURPOSES.]

The board is authorized to accept on behalf of the state any gift, grant, bequest, or devise made for the purposes of this chapter, and administer the same as directed by the donor. All proceeds therefrom including money derived from the sale of any real or personal property shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the Minnesota veterans home endowment, bequest, and devises fund. Said fund shall consist of two accounts, one of which shall include any trusts prescribed by the donor, the other shall include any currently expendable proceeds. Money in the fund is appropriated to the board for the purposes for which it was received. Disbursements from this fund shall be made in the manner provided for the issuance of other state warrants.

Whenever the board shall deem it advisable, in accordance with law, to sell or otherwise dispose of any real or personal property thus acquired, the commissioner of administration upon the request of the board shall sell or otherwise dispose of said property in the manner provided by law for the sale or disposition of other state property by the commissioner of administration.

Sec. 82. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 240A.02, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [MEMBERSHIP; COMPENSATION; CHAIR.] (a) The Minnesota amateur sports commission consists of nine 12 voting members, four of whom must be experienced in promoting amateur sports. Nine of the voting members shall be appointed by the governor to three-year terms. Two legislators, one from each house appointed according to its rules, shall be nonvoting members. Compensation and removal of members and the filling of membership vacancies are as provided in section 15.0575. A member may be reappointed. The governor shall appoint the chair of the commission after consideration of the commission's recommendation.

(b) The governor, speaker of the house of representatives, and senate majority leader shall each appoint one additional voting member to the commission to a two-year term. The purpose of adding three members to the commission is to ensure gender balance in commission membership. Compensation, removal, and filling of vacancies of members appointed under this paragraph are as provided in section 15.0575. A member appointed under this paragraph may be reappointed.

Sec. 83. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 240A.03, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 15. [ADVERTISING.] The commission may accept paid advertising in its publications. Funds received from advertising are annually appropriated to the commission for its publications. The commission must annually report the amount of funds received under this subdivision to the chair of the house of representatives ways and means and senate finance committees.

Sec. 84. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 270.063, is amended to read:

270.063 [COLLECTION OF DELINQUENT TAXES; COSTS.]

For the purpose of collecting delinquent state tax liabilities, there is appropriated to the commissioner of revenue an amount representing the cost of collection by contract with collection agencies, revenue departments of other states, or attorneys to enable the commissioner to reimburse these agencies, departments, or attorneys for this service, ~~or provide for the operating costs of collection activities of the department of revenue.~~ The commissioner shall report quarterly on the status of this program to the chair of the house tax and appropriation committees and senate tax and finance committees.

Notwithstanding section 16A.15, subdivision 3, the commissioner of revenue may authorize the prepayment of sheriff's fees, attorney fees, fees charged by revenue departments of other states, or court costs to be incurred in connection with the collection of delinquent tax liabilities owed to the commissioner of revenue.

Sec. 85. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 271.07, is amended to read:

271.07 [STENOGRAPHIC REPORT; TRANSCRIPT.]

Except in the small claims division, the tax court shall provide for a verbatim stenographic report of all proceedings had before it upon appeals, as required by the laws relating to proceedings in district court. The cost of the stenographic record shall be paid by the party taking the appeal. The cost is a taxable cost under section 271.09.

Sec. 86. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 309.501, is amended to read:

309.501 [REGISTERED COMBINED CHARITABLE ORGANIZATIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] (a) As used in this section, the following terms have the meanings given them.

(b) "Registered combined charitable organization" means ~~an~~ a federated funding organization:

(1) which is tax exempt under section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended through December 31, ~~1990~~ 1992 (hereinafter "Internal Revenue Code"), and to which contributions are deductible under section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code;

(2) which exists for purposes other than solely fundraising;

(3) which secures funds for distribution to ten 14 or more charitable affiliated agencies in a single, annual consolidated effort;

(4) (4) which is governed by a local, independent, voluntary board of directors which represents the broad interests of the public and 90 percent of the directors of the governing board live or work in the community or surrounding area;

(5) (5) which distributes at least 70 percent of its total campaign income and revenue to its affiliated agencies and to the designated agencies it supports and expends no more than 30 percent of its total income and revenue for management and general costs and fund raising costs;

(6) (6) which distributes at least 70 percent of its total campaign income and revenue to affiliated agencies and designated agencies that are incorporated in Minnesota or headquartered in the service area in which the state employee combined charitable campaign takes place;

(7) and each designated or affiliated agency supported by the recipient institution devotes substantially all of its activities directly to providing health, welfare, social, or other human services to individuals;

(8) (8) and each designated or affiliated agency supported by the recipient institution with funds contributed by state employees through the combined charitable campaign provides all or substantially all of its health, welfare, social, or other human services, in the community and surrounding area in which the recipient institution's fund drive state employee combined charitable campaign takes place;

(9) (9) and each charitable agency is affiliated with no more than one registered combined charitable organization within the registered combined charitable organization's service area in the state's employee combined charitable campaign; and

(10) which has been registered with the commissioner of commerce employee relations in accordance with this section.

(c) "Affiliated agency" means a charitable agency that is represented by a federation and has an ongoing relationship with that federation which involves a review and monitoring process to insure financial, managerial, and programmatic responsibility.

(d) "Charitable agency" means a governmental agency or an organization (1) which is tax exempt under section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code; (2) to which contributions are deductible under section 170 of the Internal Revenue Code; and (3) which is in compliance with the provisions of this chapter.

(e) "State employees combined charitable campaign" means the annual state campaign whereby a state employee may designate that the employee's contribution to a registered combined charitable organization may be deducted from the pay of the employee for each pay period.

Subd. 2. [DESIGNATED CONTRIBUTIONS.] A registered combined charitable organization may offer a state officer or employee the option of designating in writing that the amount deducted in section 16A.134, be designated to any charitable agency, whether or not the charitable agency receives funds from the single, annual consolidated effort. A registered combined charitable organization which offers this option shall provide a list of charitable agencies receiving funds and the amount each charitable agency receives in the annual report required pursuant to section 309.53.

Subd. 3. [REGISTRATION.] ~~An~~ (a) In order to participate in the state employee combined charitable campaign, a federated funding organization may shall apply to the commissioner of commerce employee relations as a registered combined charitable organization on or before June 1, 1993, and in 1994 and thereafter on or before March 1 in order to be eligible to participate in the campaign for that year.

~~An~~ (b) A federated funding organization which applies to the commissioner of employee relations shall provide the commissioner with all information the commissioner deems necessary to identify the charitable and tax exempt status of the organization and its compliance with the provisions of this chapter including, but not limited to the following:

(1) a copy of the organization's most recently filed annual report required by section 309.53, which shall also be filed with the attorney general;

(2) assurance of tax exempt status for the federated funding organization and each of the charitable agencies identified by the federated funding organization as an affiliated agency;

(3) assurance of proper registration with the attorney general of Minnesota to solicit contributions in the state of Minnesota for the federated funding organization and each of the charitable agencies identified by the federated funding organization as an affiliated agency. A copy of the registration letter must be available upon request;

(4) an affidavit signed by a duly constituted officer of the federated funding organization attesting to the fact that the federated funding organization and its affiliated agencies are in compliance with each of the provisions of this section;

(5) a list of the board of directors for the federated funding organization which identifies the address for each director; and

(6) a fee of \$100, or ten percent of the funds raised from state employees in the previous campaign, whichever is less.

(c) A registered combined charitable organization shall disclose in its solicitation and its annual report filed under section 309.53:

(a) (1) gross dollars received in contributions in the prior year;

(b) (2) names of, business addresses, and amount of money distributed to each affiliated charitable agency by the registered combined charitable organization;

(c) (3) percentage of gross dollars contributed which was directly received by the charitable agencies; and

(d) (4) projected percentage of the contribution to be received by the charitable agencies in the year for which the solicitation is being made.

If participating charitable agencies are required to pay any fees to the combined charitable organization, it shall also be disclosed in the solicitation and annual report. In the annual report the combined charitable organization shall include a list of charitable agencies to which donors specifically designated funds, and the amount designated to each agency. Notwithstanding section 309.53, subdivision 1a, each charitable agency shall file the report required in section 309.53. The commissioner shall consult with the attorney general to determine if the combined charitable organization and its charitable agencies are in compliance with this chapter.

(d) The commissioner shall register or not register the application of an organization within 60 days. No organization may apply to the commissioner more than once in a 12-month period calendar year. An organization whose application is denied has ten calendar days after receiving notice of the denial to appeal the decision or file an amended application correcting the deficiency. The commissioner shall register or not register the organization within ten calendar days of the submission of the appeal. If the organization fails to correct the deficiency and registration is denied a second time, the organization may appeal within five calendar days after being notified by the commissioner or the commissioner's designee that the deficiency has not been cured and the organization is not registered. A hearing shall be scheduled by the commissioner of employee relations and shall be held within 15 calendar days after receiving notice of the appeal. The provisions of chapter 14 do not apply to the hearing. The hearing shall be conducted in a manner considered appropriate by the commissioner. The commissioner's determination following the hearing shall be made within five calendar days after the hearing has been completed. Registered combined charitable organizations shall file the report required in section 309.53. The commissioner shall notify the commissioner of finance in writing of the decision to register an organization under this section by July 15.

(e) An organization whose application as a registered combined charitable organization is denied shall not be eligible to participate in the state employee combined charitable campaign for that year. Only organizations that are approved may participate in the state employee combined charitable campaign for the year of approval and only contributions authorized during the campaign may be deducted from an employee's pay pursuant to section 16A.134.

Subd. 4. [COMPLIANCE WAIVER.] This subdivision applies only to the 1993 state employee combined charitable organization fund drive. A registered combined charitable organization that participated in the 1992 state employee's combined charitable organization's fund drive but that would not be qualified to participate in future fund drives because it will not satisfy the standards of this section, may certify to the commissioner of employee relations those provisions of subdivision 1 that it fails to meet and the extent of the inability to meet the specified standards, and may request a waiver of compliance. The commissioner shall issue a waiver to the registered combined charitable organization unless the provisions of subdivision 1 that the registered combined charitable organization fails to meet is subdivision 1, paragraph (b), clause (1) or (5).

To be entitled to a waiver, an organization must apply to the commissioner by the registration dates specified in subdivision 3.

Sec. 87. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 352.96, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ADMINISTER SECTION.] This section must be administered by the executive director of the system under subdivision 4. Fiduciary activities of the deferred compensation plan must be undertaken in a manner consistent with chapter 356A. If the state board of investment so elects, it may solicit bids for options under subdivision 2, clauses (2) and (3). The state board of investment may retain consulting services to assist it in soliciting and evaluating bids and in the periodic review of companies offering options under subdivision 2, clause (3). The periodic review must occur at least every two years. The state board of investment may annually establish a budget for its costs in the soliciting, evaluating, and periodic review processes. The state board of investment may charge a proportional share of all costs related to the periodic review to each company currently under contract and may charge a proportional share of all costs related to soliciting and evaluating bids to each company selected by the state board. All contracts must be approved before execution by the state board of investment. Contracts must provide that all options in subdivision 2 must: be presented in an unbiased manner and in a manner that conforms to rules adopted by the executive director, be reported on a periodic basis to all employees participating in the deferred compensation program, and not be the subject of unreasonable solicitation of state employees to participate in the program. The contract may not call for any person to jeopardize the tax-deferred status of money invested by state employees under this section. All costs or fees in relation to the options provided under subdivision 2, clause (3), must be paid by the underwriting companies ultimately selected by the state board of investment.

Sec. 88. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 354B.05, is amended to read:

354B.05 [ADMINISTRATION.]

Subdivision 1. [GOVERNING BOARDS.] The state university board shall administer the plan for persons in covered employment under section 354B.01, subdivisions 2, 4, and 5. The community college board shall administer the plan for persons in covered employment under section 354B.01, subdivision 3.

Subd. 2. [PURCHASE OF CONTRACTS.] The state university board and the community college board shall arrange for the purchase of annuity contracts, fixed, variable, or a combination of fixed and variable, or custodial accounts from financial institutions selected by the state board of investment under subdivision 3, to provide retirement and death benefits to members of the plan. The contracts or accounts must be purchased with contributions under section 354B.04 or money or assets otherwise provided by law or by authority of the state university board or community college board and acceptable by the financial institutions from which the contracts or accounts are purchased.

Subd. 3. [SELECTION OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS.] The supplemental investment fund administered by the state board of investment is one of the investment options for the plan. The state university board and the community college board shall of investment may select no more than two other financial institutions to provide annuity contracts or custodial accounts products. Each board may at its discretion change a selection of an institution. Investment programs offered by the institutions must meet the requirements of section 401(a) or 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In making their selections, the boards board shall consider at least these criteria:

(1) the experience and ability of the financial institution to provide retirement and death benefits suited to the needs of the covered employees;

- (2) the relationship of the benefits to their cost; and
- (3) the financial strength and stability of the institution.

The state board of investment must periodically review at least every three years each financial institution selected by the state board of investment. The state board of investment may retain consulting services to assist in the periodic review, may establish a budget for its costs in the periodic review process, and may charge a proportional share of those costs to each financial institution selected by the state board of investment. All contracts must be approved by the state board of investment before execution by the state university board and the community college board. The state board of investment shall also establish policies and procedures under section 11A.04, clause (2), to carry out this subdivision.

The chancellor of the state university system and the chancellor of the state community college system shall redeem all shares in the accounts of the Minnesota supplemental investment fund held on behalf of personnel in the supplemental plan who elect an investment option other than the supplemental investment fund, except that shares in the fixed interest account must not be redeemed until the expiration dates for the guaranteed investment contracts. The chancellors shall transfer the cash realized to the financial institutions selected by the state university board and the community college board under section 354B.05.

Subd. 4. [BENEFITS OWNED BY MEMBERS.] The retirement ~~and death~~ benefits provided by the annuity contracts or custodial accounts are owned by the trust and must be paid in accordance with the provisions of the plan document.

Sec. 89. [REVIEW BY STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT.]

The state board of investment shall be responsible for periodic review of each financial institution under the provisions of section 88 as of the effective date of this section. Initial reviews must be with those financial institutions under contract with the state university board and community college board on the effective date of this section. As provided in section 88, the state board of investment may retain consulting services, establish a budget for its costs, and charge a proportional share of those costs to those financial institutions.

Sec. 90. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 356.24, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [RESTRICTION; EXCEPTIONS.] (a) It is unlawful for a school district or other governmental subdivision or state agency to levy taxes for, or contribute public funds to a supplemental pension or deferred compensation plan that is established, maintained, and operated in addition to a primary pension program for the benefit of the governmental subdivision employees other than:

- (1) to a supplemental pension plan that was established, maintained, and operated before May 6, 1971;
- (2) to a plan that provides solely for group health, hospital, disability, or death benefits, to the individual retirement account plan established by sections 354B.01 to 354B.04;
- (3) to a plan that provides solely for severance pay under section 465.72 to a retiring or terminating employee;
- (4) for employees other than personnel employed by the state university board or the community college board and covered by section 354B.07, subdivision 1, to:
 - (i) the state of Minnesota deferred compensation plan under section 352.96; or
 - (ii) payment of the applicable portion of the premium on a tax sheltered annuity contract qualified under section 403(b) of the federal Internal Revenue Code, purchased from a qualified insurance company; if provided for in a personnel policy or in the collective bargaining agreement of the public employer with the exclusive representative of public employees in an appropriate unit, in an amount matching employee contributions on a dollar for dollar basis, but not to exceed an employer contribution of \$2,000 a year per employee; or
- (5) for personnel employed by the state university board or the community college board and covered by section 354B.07, subdivision 1, to the supplemental retirement plan under sections 354B.07 to 354B.09, if provided for in a personnel policy or in the collective bargaining agreement of the public employer with the exclusive representative of the covered employees in an appropriate unit, in an amount matching employee contributions on a dollar for dollar basis, but not to exceed an employer contribution of \$2,000 a year for each employee.

(b) A qualified insurance company is a company that:

(1) meets the definition in section 60A.02, subdivision 4;

(2) is licensed to engage in life insurance or annuity business in the state;

(3) is determined by the commissioner of commerce to have a rating within the top two rating categories by a recognized national rating agency or organization that regularly rates insurance companies; and

(4) is determined by the state board of investment to be among the ten applicant insurance companies with competitive options and investment returns on annuity products. The state board of investment determination must be made on or before January 1, 1993, and must be reviewed periodically. The state board of investment ~~shall~~ may retain actuarial services to assist it in this determination and in its periodic review. The state board of investment ~~shall~~ may annually establish a budget for its costs in the any determination ~~process and shall and periodic review processes~~. The state board of investment may charge a proportional share of that budget all costs related to the periodic review to those companies currently under contract and may charge a proportional share of all costs related to soliciting and evaluating bids in a determination process to each insurance company selected by the state board of investment. All contracts must be approved before execution by the state board of investment. The state board of investment shall establish policies and procedures under section 11A.04, clause (2), to carry out this paragraph.

(c) A personnel policy for unrepresented employees or a collective bargaining agreement may establish limits on the number of vendors under paragraph (b), clause (4), that it will utilize and conditions under which the vendors may contact employees both during working hours and after working hours.

Sec. 91. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 357.021, subdivision 1a, is amended to read:

Subd. 1a. (a) Every person, including the state of Minnesota and all bodies politic and corporate, who shall transact any business in the district court, shall pay to the court administrator of said court the sundry fees prescribed in subdivision 2. Except as provided in paragraph (d), the court administrator shall transmit the fees monthly to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury and credit to the general fund.

(b) In a county which has a screener-collector position, fees paid by a county pursuant to this subdivision shall be transmitted monthly to the county treasurer, who shall apply the fees first to reimburse the county for the amount of the salary paid for the screener-collector position. The balance of the fees collected shall then be forwarded to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury and credited to the general fund. In a county in the eighth judicial district which has a screener-collector position, the fees paid by a county shall be transmitted monthly to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury and credited to the general fund. A screener-collector position for purposes of this paragraph is an employee whose function is to increase the collection of fines and to review the incomes of potential clients of the public defender, in order to verify eligibility for that service.

(c) No fee is required under this section from the public authority or the party the public authority represents in an action for:

(1) child support enforcement or modification, medical assistance enforcement, or establishment of parentage in the district court, or child or medical support enforcement conducted by an administrative law judge in an administrative hearing under section 518.551, subdivision 10;

(2) civil commitment under chapter 253B;

(3) the appointment of a public conservator or public guardian or any other action under chapters 252A and 525;

(4) wrongfully obtaining public assistance under section 256.98 or 256D.07, or recovery of overpayments of public assistance;

(5) court relief under chapter 260;

(6) forfeiture of property under sections 609.531 to 609.5317;

(7) recovery of amounts issued by political subdivisions or public institutions under sections 246.52, 252.27, 256.045, 256.25, 256.87, 256B.042, 256B.14, 256B.15, 256B.37, and 260.251, or other sections referring to other forms of public assistance; or

(8) restitution under section 611A.04.

(d) The fees collected for child support modifications under subdivision 2, clause (13), must be transmitted to the county treasurer for deposit in the county general fund. The fees must be used by the county to pay for child support enforcement efforts by county attorneys.

Sec. 92. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 357.021, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [FEE AMOUNTS.] The fees to be charged and collected by the court administrator shall be as follows:

(1) In every civil action or proceeding in said court, the plaintiff, petitioner, or other moving party shall pay, when the first paper is filed for that party in said action, a fee of ~~\$110~~ \$122.

The defendant or other adverse or intervening party, or any one or more of several defendants or other adverse or intervening parties appearing separately from the others, shall pay, when the first paper is filed for that party in said action, a fee of ~~\$110~~ \$122.

The party requesting a trial by jury shall pay ~~\$30~~ \$75.

The fees above stated shall be the full trial fee chargeable to said parties irrespective of whether trial be to the court alone, to the court and jury, or disposed of without trial, and shall include the entry of judgment in the action, but does not include copies or certified copies of any papers so filed or proceedings under chapter 103E, except the provisions therein as to appeals.

(2) Certified copy of any instrument from a civil or criminal proceeding, \$5, plus 25 cents per page after the first page, and \$3.50, plus 25 cents per page after the first page for an uncertified copy.

(3) Issuing a subpoena, \$3 for each name.

(4) Issuing an execution and filing the return thereof; issuing a writ of attachment, injunction, habeas corpus, mandamus, quo warranto, certiorari, or other writs not specifically mentioned, \$10.

(5) Issuing a transcript of judgment, or for filing and docketing a transcript of judgment from another court, \$7.50.

(6) Filing and entering a satisfaction of judgment, partial satisfaction, or assignment of judgment, \$5.

(7) Certificate as to existence or nonexistence of judgments docketed, \$5 for each name certified to.

(8) Filing and indexing trade name; or recording basic science certificate; or recording certificate of physicians, osteopaths, chiropractors, veterinarians, or optometrists, \$5.

(9) For the filing of each partial, final, or annual account in all trusteeships, \$10.

(10) For the deposit of a will, \$5.

(11) For recording notary commission, \$25, of which, notwithstanding subdivision 1a, paragraph (b), \$20 must be forwarded to the state treasurer to be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

(12) When a defendant pleads guilty to or is sentenced for a petty misdemeanor other than a parking violation, the defendant shall pay a fee of \$5.

(13) Filing a motion or response to a motion for modification of child support, a fee fixed by rule or order of the supreme court.

(14) All other services required by law for which no fee is provided, such fee as compares favorably with those herein provided, or such as may be fixed by rule or order of the court.

The fees in clauses (3) and (4) need not be paid by a public authority or the party the public authority represents.

Sec. 93. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 357.022, is amended to read:

357.022 [CONCILIATION COURT FEE.]

The court administrator in every county shall charge and collect a filing fee of ~~\$13~~ \$15 where the amount demanded is less than \$2,000 and \$25 where the amount demanded is \$2,000 or more from every plaintiff and from every defendant when the first paper for that party is filed in any conciliation court action. The court administrator shall transmit the fees monthly to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury and credit to the general fund.

Sec. 94. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 357.08, is amended to read:

357.08 [PAID BY APPELLANT IN APPEAL.]

There shall be paid to the clerk of the appellate courts by the appellant, or moving party or person requiring the service, in all cases of appeal, certiorari, habeas corpus, mandamus, injunction, prohibition, or other original proceeding, when initially filed with the clerk of the appellate courts, the sum of ~~\$200~~ \$250 to the clerk of the appellate courts. An additional filing fee of \$100 shall be required for a petition for accelerated review by the supreme court. A filing fee of ~~\$200~~ \$250 shall be paid to the clerk of the appellate courts upon the filing of a petition for review from a decision of the court of appeals. A filing fee of ~~\$200~~ \$250 shall be paid to the clerk of the appellate courts upon the filing of a petition for permission to appeal. A filing fee of \$100 shall be paid to the clerk of the appellate courts upon the filing by a respondent of a notice of review. The clerk shall transmit the fees to the state treasurer for deposit in the state treasury and credit to the general fund.

The clerk shall not file any paper, issue any writ or certificate, or perform any service enumerated herein, until the payment has been made for it. The clerk shall pay the sum into the state treasury as provided for by section 15A.01.

The charges provided for shall not apply to disbarment proceedings, nor to an action or proceeding by the state taken solely in the public interest, where the state is the appellant or moving party, nor to copies of the opinions of the court furnished by the clerk to the parties before judgment, or furnished to the district judge whose decision is under review, or to such law library associations in counties having a population exceeding 50,000, as the court may direct.

Sec. 95. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 357.18, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [SURCHARGE.] In addition to the fees imposed in subdivision 1, a ~~\$2~~ \$4.50 surcharge shall be collected: on each fee charged under subdivision 1, clauses (1) and (6), and for each abstract certificate under subdivision 1, clause (4). ~~Forty~~ Fifty cents of each surcharge shall be retained by the county to cover its administrative costs and ~~\$1.60~~ \$4 shall be paid to the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

Sec. 96. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 484.74, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [AUTHORIZATION.] Except for good cause shown, in litigation involving an amount in excess of ~~\$50,000~~ \$7,500 in controversy, the presiding judge may shall, by order, direct the parties to enter nonbinding alternative dispute resolution. Alternatives may include private trials, neutral expert fact-finding, mediation, minitrials, and other forms of alternative dispute resolution. The guidelines for the various alternatives must be established by the presiding judge and must emphasize early and inexpensive exchange of information and case evaluation in order to facilitate settlement.

Sec. 97. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 484.76, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL.] The supreme court shall establish a statewide alternative dispute resolution program for the resolution of civil cases filed with the courts. The supreme court shall adopt rules governing practice, procedure, and jurisdiction for alternative dispute resolution programs established under this section. The rules shall require the use of nonbinding alternative dispute resolution processes in all civil cases, except for good cause shown by the presiding judge, and must provide an equitable means for the payment of fees and expenses for the use of alternative dispute resolution processes.

Sec. 98. [491A.03] [JUDGES; REFEREES.]

The judges of district court shall serve as judges of conciliation court. A majority of the judges of the district may appoint one or more suitable persons to act as referees in conciliation court; a majority of the judges of the district shall establish qualifications for the office, specify the duties and length of service of referees, and fix their compensation not to exceed an amount per day determined by the chief judge of the judicial district.

Sec. 99. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 508.82, is amended to read:

508.82 [REGISTRAR'S FEES.]

The fees to be paid to the registrar shall be as follows:

(1) of the fees provided herein, five percent of the fees collected under clauses (3), (4), (10), (12), (13), (14), (16), (17), and (18), for filing or memorializing shall be paid to the state treasurer and credited to the general fund; plus a ~~\$2~~ \$4.50 surcharge shall be charged and collected in addition to the total fees charged for each transaction under clauses (2) to (5), (10), (12), (14), and (18), with ~~40~~ 50 cents of this surcharge to be retained by the county to cover its administrative costs and ~~\$1.60~~ \$4 to be paid to the state treasury and credited to the general fund;

(2) for registering each original certificate of title, and issuing a duplicate of it, \$30;

(3) for registering each instrument transferring the fee simple title for which a new certificate of title is issued and for the issuance and registration of the new certificate of title, \$30;

(4) for the entry of each memorial on a certificate and endorsements upon duplicate certificates, \$15;

(5) for issuing each residue certificate, \$20;

(6) for exchange certificates, \$10 for each certificate canceled and \$10 for each new certificate issued;

(7) for each certificate showing condition of the register, \$10;

(8) for any certified copy of any instrument or writing on file in the registrar's office, the same fees allowed by law to county recorders for like services;

(9) for a noncertified copy of any instrument or writing on file in the office of the registrar of titles, or any specified page or part of it, an amount as determined by the county board for each page or fraction of a page specified. If computer or microfilm printers are used to reproduce the instrument or writing, a like amount per image;

(10) for filing two copies of any plat in the office of the registrar, \$30;

(11) for any other service under this chapter, such fee as the court shall determine;

(12) for issuing a duplicate certificate of title pursuant to the directive of the examiner of titles in counties in which the compensation of the examiner is paid in the same manner as the compensation of other county employees, \$50, plus \$10 to memorialize;

(13) for issuing a duplicate certificate of title pursuant to the directive of the examiner of titles in counties in which the compensation of the examiner is not paid by the county or pursuant to an order of the court, \$10;

(14) for filing a condominium plat or an amendment to it in accordance with chapter 515, \$30;

(15) for a copy of a condominium plat filed pursuant to chapters 515 and 515A, the fee shall be \$1 for each page of the condominium plat with a minimum fee of \$10;

(16) for filing a condominium declaration and plat or an amendment to it in accordance with chapter 515A, \$10 for each certificate upon which the document is registered and \$30 for the filing of the condominium plat or an amendment thereto;

(17) for the filing of a certified copy of a plat of the survey pursuant to section 508.23 or 508.671, \$10;

(18) for filing a registered land survey in triplicate in accordance with section 508.47, subdivision 4, \$30;

(19) for furnishing a certified copy of a registered land survey in accordance with section 508.47, subdivision 4, \$10.

Sec. 100. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 508A.82, is amended to read:

508A.82 [REGISTRAR'S FEES.]

The fees to be paid to the registrar shall be as follows:

(1) of the fees provided herein, five percent of the fees collected under clauses (3), (4), (10), (12), (13), (14), (16), and (18), for filing or memorializing shall be paid to the state treasurer and credited to the general fund; plus a ~~\$2~~ \$4.50 surcharge shall be charged and collected in addition to the total fees charged for each transaction under clauses (2) to (5), (10), (12), (14), and (18), with ~~40~~ 50 cents of this surcharge to be retained by the county to cover its administrative costs and ~~\$1.60~~ \$4 to be paid to the state treasury and credited to the general fund;

(2) for registering each original CPT, and issuing a duplicate of it, \$30;

(3) for registering each instrument transferring the fee simple title for which a new CPT is issued and for the issuance and registration of the new CPT, \$30;

(4) for the entry of each memorial on a certificate and endorsements upon duplicate CPTs, \$15;

(5) for issuing each residue CPT, \$20;

(6) for exchange CPTs, \$10 for each CPT canceled and \$10 for each new CPT issued;

(7) for each certificate showing condition of the register, \$10;

(8) for any certified copy of any instrument or writing on file in the registrar's office, the same fees allowed by law to county recorders for like services;

(9) for a noncertified copy of any instrument or writing on file in the office of the registrar of titles, or any specified page or part of it, an amount as determined by the county board for each page or fraction of a page specified. If computer or microfilm printers are used to reproduce the instrument or writing, a like amount per image;

(10) for filing two copies of any plat in the office of the registrar, \$30;

(11) for any other service under sections 508A.01 to 508A.85, the fee the court shall determine;

(12) for issuing a duplicate CPT pursuant to the directive of the examiner of titles in counties in which the compensation of the examiner is paid in the same manner as the compensation of other county employees, \$50, plus \$10 to memorialize;

(13) for issuing a duplicate CPT pursuant to the directive of the examiner of titles in counties in which the compensation of the examiner is not paid by the county or pursuant to an order of the court, \$10;

(14) for filing a condominium plat or an amendment to it in accordance with chapter 515, \$30;

(15) for a copy of a condominium plat filed pursuant to chapters 515 and 515A, the fee shall be \$1 for each page of the plat with a minimum fee of \$10;

(16) for filing a condominium declaration and condominium plat or an amendment to it in accordance with chapter 515A, \$10 for each certificate upon which the document is registered and \$30 for the filing of the condominium plat or an amendment to it;

(17) in counties in which the compensation of the examiner of titles is paid in the same manner as the compensation of other county employees, for each parcel of land contained in the application for a CPT, as the number of parcels is determined by the examiner, a fee which is reasonable and which reflects the actual cost to the county, established by the board of county commissioners of the county in which the land is located;

(18) for filing a registered land survey in triplicate in accordance with section 508A.47, subdivision 4, \$30;

(19) for furnishing a certified copy of a registered land survey in accordance with section 508A.47, subdivision 4, \$10.

Sec. 101. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 548.23, is amended to read:

548.23 [PLEA OF CONFESSION.]

Judgment in the cases mentioned in section 548.22 may also be entered in the district court in the manner therein provided, and with like effect, upon filing with the court administrator a plea of confession signed by an attorney of such court, together with an instrument signed by the debtor authorizing such confession; but such instrument must be distinct from that containing the bond, contract, or other evidence of the demand for which judgment is confessed. Any person filing a plea of confession and an instrument under this section shall pay the same fee as provided for filing a civil action in district court, except that if the amount of the judgment confessed is not greater than the jurisdictional limit of the conciliation court, the fee shall be in the amount of the filing fee for an action in conciliation court.

Sec. 102. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 548.30, is amended to read:

548.30 [FEES.]

Any person filing a foreign judgment shall pay to the court administrator the same fee as provided for filing a civil action in district court, except that if the amount of the judgment is not greater than the jurisdictional limit of the conciliation court, the fee shall be in the amount of the filing fee for an action in conciliation court. Fees for docketing, transcription or other enforcement proceedings shall be as provided for judgments of any district court of this state.

Sec. 103. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 549.02, is amended to read:

549.02 [COSTS IN DISTRICT COURTS.]

Subdivision 1. [DISTRICT COURT.] In actions commenced in the district court, costs shall be allowed as follows:

To plaintiff: (1) Upon a judgment in the plaintiff's favor of \$100 or more in an action for the recovery of money only, ~~\$100~~ \$200. (2) In all other actions, including an action by a public employee for wrongfully denied or withheld employment benefits or rights, except as otherwise specially provided, ~~\$100~~ \$200.

To defendant: Upon discontinuance or dismissal or when judgment is rendered in the defendant's favor on the merits, ~~\$100~~ \$200.

To the prevailing party: \$5.50 for the cost of filing a satisfaction of the judgment.

This section does not apply to actions removed to district court from conciliation court.

Subd. 2. [ON APPEAL.] Upon a judgment on the merits on appeal to the court of appeals or supreme court, additional costs in the amount of \$300 shall be allowed to the prevailing party.

Sec. 104. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 593.48, is amended to read:

593.48 [COMPENSATION OF JURORS AND TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT.]

A juror shall be reimbursed for round-trip travel between the juror's residence and the place of holding court and compensated for required attendance at sessions of court and may be reimbursed for additional day care expenses incurred as a result of jury duty at a rate rates determined by the supreme court, and shall be compensated at a rate of \$15 for each day of required attendance at sessions of the court. Except in the eighth judicial district where the state shall pay directly, the compensation and reimbursement shall be paid out of the county treasury upon receipt of authorization to pay from the jury commissioner. These jury costs shall be reimbursed monthly by the supreme court upon submission of an invoice by the county treasurer. A monthly report of payments to jurors shall be sent to the jury commissioner within two weeks of the end of the month in the form required by the jury commissioner.

Sec. 105. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 609.101, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [MINIMUM FINES; OTHER CRIMES.] Notwithstanding any other law:

(1) when a court sentences a person convicted of a felony that is not listed in subdivision 2 or 3, it must impose a fine of not less than 20 percent of the maximum fine authorized by law nor more than the maximum fine authorized by law; and

(2) when a court sentences a person convicted of a gross misdemeanor or misdemeanor that is not listed in subdivision 2, it must impose a fine of not less than 20 percent of the maximum fine authorized by law nor more than the maximum fine authorized by law.

The court may not waive payment of the minimum fine or authorize payment of it in installments unless ~~the court makes written findings on the record that~~ the convicted person is indigent or that the fine would create undue hardship for the convicted person or that person's immediate family.

The minimum fine required by this subdivision is in addition to the surcharge or assessment required by subdivision 1 and is in addition to any term of imprisonment or restitution imposed or ordered by the court.

Sec. 106. [609.103] [PAYMENT BY CREDIT CARD.]

The court may permit the defendant to pay any fine, assessment, surcharge, attorney reimbursement obligation, or restitution obligation by credit card. The discount fees assessed by the credit card company shall be borne by the county, except in the eighth judicial district where the cost shall be borne by the state.

Sec. 107. Laws 1989, chapter 335, article 3, section 44, as amended by Laws 1990, chapter 604, article 9, section 13, and Laws 1991, chapter 345, article 3, section 27, is amended to read:

Sec. 44. [APPLICATION.]

Sections 45 to 54, except the parts of section 54, that by their terms have broader application, apply only in the eighth judicial district for the period from January 1, 1990, to December 31, ~~1993~~ 1999.

Those parts of section 54, having broader application, apply statewide for the period from July 1, 1989, to December 31, ~~1993~~ 1999.

Sec. 108. [EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVES.]

Subdivision 1. [EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION.] The early retirement incentives provided in this section may be offered to eligible employees by any public employer, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 179A.03, subdivision 15. The incentives must be offered to eligible employees of all state agencies if the commissioner of employee relations and the commissioner of finance certify that layoffs in any of the agencies would occur without the incentives.

The incentives in this section do not apply to a teacher, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 354.05, subdivision 2, or 354A.011, subdivision 27, employed by a local school board.

Subd. 2. [ELIGIBILITY.] A person employed by a public employer offering the incentive is eligible to receive the incentive if the person:

(1) has at least 25 years of combined service credit in any Minnesota public pension plans governed by Minnesota Statutes, section 356.30, subdivision 3, or for purposes of the incentive in subdivision 3, paragraph (b) only, is at least 65 years old and has at least one year of combined service credit in these pension plans;

(2) upon retirement is immediately eligible for a retirement annuity from a defined benefit plan, if the person is a member of a defined benefit plan;

(3) is at least 55 years of age; and

(4) retires on or after May 17, 1993, and before January 31, 1994.

Subd. 3. [INCENTIVE.] (a) A person may not choose both the incentive in paragraph (b) and the incentive in paragraph (c). An employer that is required to or chooses to offer the incentive must offer each employee eligible for both incentives a choice between the incentive in paragraph (b) or the incentive in paragraph (c), except that employers whose employees are covered under Minnesota Statutes, sections 353.29 and 353.30, need not offer both incentives.

(b) For a person covered by a retirement plan established in Minnesota Statutes, section 352.115, 352.116, 353.29 or 353.30, or chapter 354 or 422A, who selects the incentive under this paragraph, the multiplier percentage used to calculate the retirement annuity must be increased for each year of service credit up to 30 years. The amount of the increase is: (i) .25 for each year of service credit calculated under Minnesota Statutes, section 352.115, 352.116, 353.29, or 353.30, or chapter 422A; and (ii) .10 for each year of service credit calculated under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 354 or 354A. If a person has more than 30 years of service credit, the increased multiplier applies only to the first 30 years.

(c) For a person who selects the incentive under this paragraph, the employer must pay for hospital, medical, and dental insurance, under conditions and limitations specified in this section. A person is eligible for this employer-paid insurance only if the person:

(1) is eligible for employer-paid insurance under a collective bargaining agreement or personnel plan in effect on the day before the effective date of this section;

(2) has at least as many months of service with the current employer as the number of months younger than age 65 the person is at the time of retirement; and

(3) is less than age 65.

(d) An employer that offers incentives under this section may not exclude eligible employees.

Subd. 4. [LIMITS ON REHIRING.] During the biennium ending June 30, 1995:

(1) an executive branch state agency may not hire a replacement for a person who retires under this subdivision except for (i) correctional guards and persons who provide direct patient care in state institutions; (ii) other positions listed in a position-specific written directive issued by the governor, or by the employing constitutional officer for positions in a constitutional office; or (iii) in the case of the state universities and community colleges, after review by the presidents, the governing boards decide on a case-by-case basis which positions must be replaced to provide for continuity of service on the campuses; and

(2) another public employer may not hire a replacement for a person who retires under this subdivision, except under position-specific action of the governing body.

Subd. 5. [CONDITIONS.] For purposes of this section, a person retires when the person terminates active employment and applies for retirement benefits. An employee who retires under this section using the rule of 90 must not be included in the calculations required by Minnesota Statutes, section 356.85.

Subd. 6. [CONDITIONS; INSURANCE COVERAGE.] A retired employee is eligible for single and dependent insurance coverages and employer payments to which the person was entitled immediately before retirement, subject to any changes in coverage and employer and employee payments through collective bargaining or personnel plans, for employees in positions equivalent to the position from which the employee retired. The retired employee is not eligible for employer-paid life insurance. Eligibility ceases when the retired employee attains the age of 65, or when the person chooses not to receive the retirement benefits for which the person has applied, or when the person is eligible for employer-paid health insurance from a new employer. Coverages must be coordinated with relevant health insurance benefits provided through the federally sponsored Medicare program.

Subd. 7. [APPLICATION OF OTHER LAWS.] Unilateral implementation of this section by a public employer is not an unfair labor practice for purposes of Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179A. The requirement in this section for an employer to pay health insurance costs for certain retired employees is not subject to the limits in Minnesota Statutes, section 179A.20, subdivision 2a.

Sec. 109. [TRANSFER.]

The responsibilities of the commissioner of administration for the office of dispute resolution are transferred under Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039, to the commissioner of mediation services.

Sec. 110. [REPEALER.]

(a) Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 309.502, is repealed.

(b) Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 16A.095, subdivision 3; 16A.123; 16A.128; 16A.1281; 16A.35; 16A.45, subdivisions 2 and 3; 16A.80; and 290A.24, are repealed.

(c) Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 13.072, is repealed effective August 1, 1995.

Sec. 111. [REVISOR INSTRUCTION.]

In the next edition of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall renumber sections 16A.15, subdivision 1, as 16A.152, subdivision 4; 16A.15, subdivision 5, as 16A.152, subdivision 6; 16A.15, subdivision 6, as 16A.152, subdivision 1; 16A.15, subdivision 7, as 16A.152, subdivision 7; 16A.1541 as 16A.152, subdivision 2. The revisor shall also conform cross-references to the renumbered provisions.

Sec. 112. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

(a) Section 34 is effective the day after final enactment and requires an audit for fiscal year 1993.

(b) Section 42 is effective the day following final enactment. Section 42 does not apply if prohibited by contract, but the appointing authority must amend the contract as soon as possible to comply with section 42.

(c) Section 76 is effective retroactively to January 1, 1993.

(d) Sections 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 108, and 110, paragraph (a), are effective on the day following final enactment.

(e) Section 65 is effective June 30, 1995, and applies to appropriations to the legislature, the senate, the house of representatives, or a legislative commission or committee that are unexpended and unencumbered on June 30, 1995."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the general legislative, judicial, and administrative expenses of state government; providing for the transfer of certain money in the state treasury; fixing and limiting the amount of fees, penalties, and other costs to be collected in certain cases; transferring certain duties and functions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3.971, by adding a subdivision; 8.15; 15A.083, by adding a subdivision; 16A.011, subdivisions 5, 6, and 14; 16A.04, subdivision 1; 16A.055, subdivision 1; 16A.06, subdivision 4; 16A.065; 16A.10, subdivisions 1 and 2; 16A.105; 16A.11, subdivisions 1 and 3; 16A.129, by adding a subdivision; 16A.15, subdivisions 1, 5, and 6; 16A.152, by adding subdivisions; 16A.1541; 16A.28; 16A.281; 16A.58; 16A.69, subdivision 2; 16A.72; 16B.24, subdivision 9; 16B.41; 16B.43, subdivision 1; 16B.92; 43A.045; 192.501, subdivision 2; 196.051, subdivision 3; 196.054, subdivision 2; 198.16; 240A.02, subdivision 1; 240A.03, by adding a subdivision; 270.063; 271.07; 309.501; 352.96, subdivision 3; 354B.05; 356.24, subdivision 1; 357.021, subdivisions 1a and 2; 357.022; 357.08; 357.18, subdivision 3; 484.74, subdivision 1; 484.76, subdivision 1; 508.82; 508A.82; 548.23; 548.30; 549.02; 593.48; and 609.101, subdivision 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 3; 11A; 13; 15; 16A; 197; and 609; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 491A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 13.072; 16A.095, subdivision 3; 16A.123; 16A.128; 16A.1281; 16A.35; 16A.45, subdivisions 2 and 3; 16A.80; 290A.24; and 309.502; Laws 1989, chapter 335."

We request adoption of this report and repassage of the bill.

Senate Conferees: RICHARD J. COHEN, GENE MERRIAM, WILLIAM P. LUTHER, PATRICK D. MCGOWAN AND DENNIS R. FREDERICKSON.

House Conferees: RICHARD "RICK" KRUEGER, PHYLLIS KAHN, BOB JOHNSON, JERRY KNICKERBOCKER AND BOB HAUKOOS.

Krueger moved that the report of the Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1620 be adopted and that the bill be repassed as amended by the Conference Committee. The motion prevailed.

The Speaker called Rodosovich to the Chair.

S. F. No. 1620, A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the general legislative, judicial, and administrative expenses of state government; providing for the transfer of certain money in the state treasury; fixing and limiting the amount of fees, penalties, and other costs to be collected in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 8.15; 15.38, by adding a subdivision; 15.50, by adding a subdivision; 15A.083, by adding a subdivision; 196.051, subdivision 3; 196.054, subdivision 2; 198.16; 270.063; 303.13, subdivision 1; 303.21, subdivision 3; 322A.16; 333.20, subdivision 4; 333.22, subdivision 1; 336.9-403; 336.9-404; 336.9-405; 336.9-406; 336.9-407; 336.9-413; 336A.04, subdivision 3; 336A.09, subdivision 2; 349A.10, subdivision 5; 357.021, subdivisions 1a and 2; 357.022; 357.08; 357.18, subdivision 3; 386.61, by adding a subdivision; 386.65; 386.66; 386.67; 386.68; 386.69; 508.82; 508A.82; and 593.48; Laws 1989, chapter 335, article 3, section 44, as amended; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 129D; 386; and 609; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 386.61, subdivision 3; 386.63; 386.64; and 386.70.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended by Conference, and placed upon its repassage.

The question was taken on the repassage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 105 yeas and 29 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abrams	Clark	Hasskamp	Koppendrayner	Murphy	Peterson	Sparby
Anderson, I.	Cooper	Haukoos	Krueger	Neary	Pugh	Steensma
Anderson, R.	Dauner	Hausman	Lasley	Nelson	Reding	Tomassoni
Asch	Dauids	Hugoson	Leppik	Ness	Rest	Tompkins
Battaglia	Dawkins	Huntley	Lieder	Olson, E.	Rhodes	Trimble
Bauerly	Delmont	Jacobs	Lourey	Olson, K.	Rice	Tunheim
Beard	Dorn	Jaros	Luther	Olson, M.	Rodosovich	Vellenga
Bergson	Evans	Jefferson	Mahon	Opatz	Rukavina	Waltman
Bertram	Farrell	Johnson, R.	Mariani	Orfield	Sarna	Wejzman
Bettermann	Frerichs	Johnson, V.	McCollum	Osthoff	Seagren	Welle
Bishop	Garcia	Kahn	McGuire	Ostrom	Sekhon	Wenzel
Brown, C.	Girard	Kalis	Milbert	Ozment	Simoneau	Winter
Brown, K.	Goodno	Kelley	Morrison	Pauly	Skoglund	Wolf
Carlson	Greenfield	Kinkel	Mosel	Pelowski	Smith	Worke
Carruthers	Greiling	Knickerböcker	Munger	Perlt	Solberg	Spk. Long

Those who voted in the negative were:

Blatz	Gruenes	Kelso	Lynch	Pawlenty	Vickerman
Commers	Gutknecht	Klinzing	Macklin	Stanis	Wagenius
Dehler	Holsten	Krinkie	Molnau	Sviggum	Weaver
Dempsey	Jennings	Limmer	Onnen	Swenson	Workman
Erhardt	Johnson, A.	Lindner	Orenstein	Van Dellen	

The bill was repassed, as amended by Conference, and its title agreed to.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SPEAKER

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 413:

Rukavina, Tomassoni and Huntley.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1046:

Orenstein, McGuire and Weaver.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1074:

Sekhon; Johnson, V., and Munger.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1105:

Simoneau; Johnson, A., and Ozment.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1275:

Wagenius, Hausman and Weaver.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE, Continued

The following message was received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

S. F. No. 1613.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT ON S. F. NO. 1613

A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the departments of labor and industry, public service, jobs and training, housing finance, and other purposes with certain conditions; establishing and modifying certain programs; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 16B.06, subdivision 2a; 116J.617; 116J.982; 179.02, by adding a subdivision; 239.011, subdivision 2; 239.10; 239.791, subdivisions 6 and 8; 268.022, subdivision 2; 268.975, subdivisions 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 268.976, subdivision 2; 268.978, subdivision 1; 268.98; and 462A.21, by adding subdivisions; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116J; 116M; 239; 268; and 462A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 116J.982, subdivisions 6a, 8, and 9; 239.05, subdivision 2c; 239.52; 239.78; 268.977; and 268.978, subdivision 3.

May 7, 1993

The Honorable Allan H. Spear
President of the Senate

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives

We, the undersigned conferees for S. F. No. 1613, report that we have agreed upon the items in dispute and recommend as follows:

That the Senate concur in the House amendment and that S. F. No. 1613 be further amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT; APPROPRIATIONS.]

The sums shown in the columns marked "APPROPRIATIONS" are appropriated from the general fund, or another fund named, to the agencies and for the purposes specified in this article, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1993," "1994," and "1995," where used in this article, mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed under them are available for the year ending June 30, 1993, June 30, 1994, or June 30, 1995, respectively.

SUMMARY BY FUND

	1993	1994	1995	TOTAL
General	\$ 541,000	\$ 181,368,000	\$ 158,594,000	\$ 340,503,000
Environmental		434,000	434,000	868,000
Trunk Highway		667,000	667,000	1,334,000
Workers' Comp.		21,976,000	15,663,000	37,639,000
TOTAL	541,000	204,445,000	175,358,000	380,344,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1993 1994 1995

Sec. 2. TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation \$ 500,000 \$ 40,504,000 \$ 24,461,000

Summary by Fund

General	39,627,000	23,584,000
Environmental	210,000	210,000
Trunk Highway	667,000	667,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Community Development

24,288,000 8,828,000

\$50,000 is for the purposes of the youth entrepreneurship education program to be available until June 30, 1995. \$30,000 is for a teacher training program. \$20,000 is for creation of a resource center and revolving loan fund. This appropriation is only available as matched, dollar for dollar, by contributions from nonstate sources. Contributions may be made in kind.

\$1,000,000 the first year is for transfer to the tourism loan account in the special revenue fund for the tourism loan program under Minnesota Statutes, section 116J.617.

\$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year is for the affirmative enterprise program. The appropriation is available until expended.

\$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year is for making grants and entering contracts under Minnesota Statutes, section 116J.982.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$25,000 the first year is for concentrated area action plans.

\$6,000,000 the first year is for transfer to the revolving loan fund account in the special revenue fund for the urban challenge grant program under Minnesota Statutes, section 116M.18.

\$6,000,000 the first year is for transfer to the regional revolving loan fund account in the special revenue fund for the challenge grant program to regional organizations under Minnesota Statutes, section 116N.08.

\$5,517,000 the first year and \$5,517,000 the second year are for economic recovery grants, of which \$500,000 may be used for the purposes of the capital access program.

\$226,000 the first year and \$226,000 the second year are for the small cities federal match.

\$500,000 the first year is for transfer to the capital access account in the special revenue fund for the capital access program under Minnesota Statutes, section 116J.876.

Subd. 3. Minnesota Trade Office

2,026,000

2,040,000

\$105,000 the first year and \$105,000 the second year are for the foreign international information network.

Subd. 4. Tourism

7,272,000

6,742,000

Summary by Fund

General 6,605,000
Trunk Highway 667,000

6,075,000
667,000

To develop maximum private sector involvement in tourism, \$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000 the second year of the amounts appropriated for marketing activities are contingent upon receipt of an equal contribution of nonstate sources that have been certified by the commissioner. Up to one-half of the match may be given in in-kind contributions. This appropriation may not be expended until the money is matched.

In order to maximize marketing grant benefits, the commissioner must give priority for joint venture marketing grants to organizations with year-round sustained tourism activities. For programs and projects submitted, the commissioner must give priority to those that encompass two or more areas or that attract nonresident travelers to the state.

Any unexpended funds from general fund appropriations made under this subdivision shall not cancel but shall be placed in a special advertising account for use by the office of tourism to purchase additional media.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

If an appropriation for either year for grants is not sufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

\$30,000 the first year is for the international ringette tournament to be held in South St. Paul and Rosemount in 1994.

Up to \$300,000 the first year is for promoting the women's final four basketball tournament to be held in 1995. This appropriation must be matched by nonstate sources on a one-to-one basis.

\$200,000 is for tourism promotion and marketing.

\$214,000 the first year and \$214,000 the second year are for the Minnesota film board. This appropriation is available only upon receipt by the board of \$1 in matching contributions of money or in-kind from nonstate sources for every \$3 provided by this appropriation.

\$25,000 each year is for the Lake Superior Center Authority.

Of the amount appropriated for the joint venture program, up to \$30,000 the first year and up to \$30,000 the second year are available to the Minnesota Indian tourism association. This appropriation must be matched by nonstate sources on a one-to-one basis.

The commissioner may use grant dollars or the value of in-kind services to provide the state contribution for the joint venture grant program.

The office of tourism shall: (1) analyze what travel offices of the 50 states and selected foreign governments are doing to promote tourism, including but not limited to organizational structure, funding sources, and marketing programs; and (2) rank Minnesota's position among the states and countries studied. The office, in consultation with representatives of Minnesota's tourism industry, shall report to the legislature and the governor by January 1, 1994. The report must recommend options for improving the state's competitive position in the industry. The recommendations should deal with assignment of responsibility within state government, funding options for the office of tourism, changes in state law that would enhance tourism, and the creation of a statewide tourism policy.

The commissioner of revenue may disclose the name, address, and phone number of a travel or tourism related business that is authorized to collect sales and use tax to the office of tourism within the department of trade and economic development to be used only within the office of tourism for purposes of contacting travel or tourism related businesses.

Subd. 5. Business Development and Analysis

500,000	5,157,000	5,077,000
---------	-----------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	500,000	4,947,000	4,867,000
Environmental		210,000	210,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$200,000 the first year and \$200,000 the second year are for grants to Advantage Minnesota, Inc. The funds are available only if matched on at least a dollar-for-dollar basis from other sources. The commissioner may release the funds only upon:

(1) certification that matching funds from each participating organization are available; and

(2) review and approval by the commissioner of the proposed operations plan of Advantage Minnesota, Inc. for the biennium.

\$450,000 the first year and \$450,000 the second year are for the state's match for the federal small business development centers. If funding in one year is insufficient, the other year's appropriation is available.

\$1,088,000 each year is for job skills partnership grants.

\$190,000 the first year and \$190,000 the second year are for WomenVenture, Inc.

\$65,000 the first year and \$65,000 the second year are for Metropolitan Economic Development Associations, Inc.

\$500,000 in fiscal year 1993 is for job skills partnership grants.

\$25,000 in fiscal year 1994 and \$25,000 in fiscal year 1995 are for a grant to the North Metro Business Retention and Development Commission for the second and third stages of the multicomunity business retention and market expansion pilot project. This appropriation is available only upon demonstration of a dollar-for-dollar cash match from the commission. The commission shall share all results and written reports with the department of trade and economic development.

Subd. 6. Administration

1,761,000

1,774,000

Sec. 3. MINNESOTA TECHNOLOGY, INCORPORATED

7,832,000

7,834,000

\$5,198,000 the first year and \$5,198,000 the second year are for transfer from the general fund to the Minnesota Technology, Inc. fund.

\$494,000 the first year and \$494,000 the second year are for grants to Minnesota Project Innovation.

\$947,000 the first year and \$947,000 the second year are for grants to Minnesota Project Outreach.

\$71,000 the first year and \$71,000 the second year are for grants to Minnesota Inventors Congress.

\$947,000 the first year and \$947,000 the second year are for grants to Natural Resources Research Institute.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$88,000 the first year and \$88,000 the second year are for grants to Minnesota Council for Quality.

\$50,000 the first year and \$50,000 the second year are for grants to Minnesota High Tech Corridor Corporation.

\$75,000 the first year and \$75,000 the second year are for grants to Cold Weather Research Center.

Sec. 4. MINNESOTA WORLD TRADE CENTER
CORPORATION

200,000

This appropriation is to pay the accrued operating costs and debt services, including principal and interest, of the corporation. This appropriation in no way constitutes a commitment or obligation by the state of Minnesota to make any payments on obligations of the corporation outstanding as of July 1, 1993. This section is intended to make it clear that the state of Minnesota is not and never has been nor will be responsible for the obligations of the corporation.

This appropriation and money in the corporation accounts are the only money available to the board to make any payment of an obligation of the corporation.

This appropriation is available until June 30, 1995. Balances in the world trade center corporation account in the special revenue fund on June 30, 1995, shall be transferred to the general fund.

Sec. 5. JOBS AND TRAINING

48,879,000

46,895,000

Subdivision 1. Rehabilitation Services

17,612,000

17,612,000

Of this appropriation, \$100,000 in each year is for a cost-of-living adjustment in the Extended Employment Services program in order to maintain the current caseload to the extent possible within this appropriation.

For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, at least 38 percent of the vocational rehabilitation activity budget must be directed toward grants, which are budgeted as aid to individuals and local assistance categories of expense.

The commissioner shall apply for all available federal grants for services to handicapped including funds for the independent living center.

Subd. 2. State Services for the Blind

3,588,000

3,605,000

This appropriation may be supplemented by funds provided by the Friends of the Communication Center, for support of Services for the Blind's Communication Center which serves all blind and visually handicapped Minnesotans. The commissioner shall report to the legislature on a biennial basis the funds provided by the Friends of the Communication Center.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Subd. 3. Job Service

\$100,000 is appropriated to the commissioner of jobs and training for the biennium ending June 30, 1995, for the uniform business identifier study.

Subd. 4. Community Services

27,579,000

25,678,000

\$880,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of jobs and training for operating costs of transitional housing programs under Minnesota Statutes, section 268.38. Of this appropriation, \$440,000 is for the first year and \$440,000 is for the second year.

\$4,200,000 for the first year and \$5,550,000 for the second year is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of the department of jobs and training for Minnesota economic opportunity grants to community action agencies. This appropriation is to replace federal funds that are no longer available to community action agencies because of new federal restrictions on the authority to transfer block grant money from the federal Low-Income Home Energy Assistance program to the federal Community Services Block grant.

For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, the commissioner shall transfer to the low-income home weatherization program at least five percent of money received under the low-income home energy assistance block grant in each year of the biennium and shall spend all of the transferred money during the year of the transfer or the year following the transfer. Up to 1.63 percent of the transferred money may be used by the commissioner for administrative purposes.

For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, no more than 1.63 percent of money remaining under the low-income home energy assistance program after transfers to the weatherization program may be used by the commissioner for administrative purposes.

The state appropriation for the temporary emergency food assistance program may be used to meet the federal match requirements.

Of the money appropriated for the summer youth employment programs for fiscal year 1994, \$750,000 is immediately available. Any remaining balance of the immediately available money is available for the year in which it is appropriated. If the appropriation for either year of the biennium is insufficient, money may be transferred from the appropriation for the other year.

Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 268.022, subdivision 2, the commissioner of finance shall transfer to the general fund from the dedicated fund \$3,054,000 in the first year and \$2,303,000 in the second year of the money collected through the special assessment established in Minnesota Statutes, section 268.022, subdivision 1.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Of this appropriation, \$5,554,000 the first year and \$2,303,000 the second year are for summer youth employment programs.

Of this appropriation, \$100,000 is to train and certify community action agency weatherization programs to comply with the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, section 144.878, subdivision 5.

Of this appropriation, \$400,000 is to be used for swab teams with priority to be given to those swab teams in greater Minnesota which are affiliated with community action agencies and to those swab teams in cities of the first class which are affiliated with community action agencies or neighborhood-based nonprofit organizations. 3.75 percent of the allocation may be used for administrative costs. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

Of this appropriation, \$1,200,000 is for the food shelf program.

Of this appropriation, \$400,000 is for youth employment and for housing for the homeless through the YOUTHBUILD program.

Of the appropriation for the Minnesota economic opportunity grant, the commissioner may use up to nine percent each year for state operations.

Of the appropriation for Head Start, the commissioner of the department of jobs and training may use up to two percent each year for state operations.

Sec. 6. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

21,282,000

17,532,000

This appropriation is for transfer to the housing development fund for the programs specified.

Any state appropriations used to meet match requirements under Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, Public Law Number 101-625, 104 Stat. 4079, must be repaid, to the extent required by federal law, to the HOME Investment Trust Fund established by the department of housing and urban development pursuant to Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 for the state of Minnesota or for the appropriate participating jurisdiction.

State appropriations to the Minnesota housing finance agency may be granted by the agency to cities or nonprofit organizations to the extent necessary to meet match requirements under Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, Public Law Number 101-625, 104 Stat. 4079, provided that other program requirements are met.

Spending limit on cost of general administration of agency programs:

1994

1995

8,990,000

9,305,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$1,250,000 the first year and \$1,250,000 the second year are for a rental housing assistance program for persons with a mental illness or families with an adult member with a mental illness under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.21, subdivision 8c. This appropriation includes \$50,000 in each year for the mental illness crisis housing assistance account.

\$250,000 the first year and \$250,000 the second year are for the home sharing program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.05, subdivision 24.

\$3,443,000 the first year and \$3,493,000 the second year are for the affordable rental investment fund program. Affordable rental investment assistance includes loans, credit enhancement, and coinsurance participation.

\$550,000 the first year and \$550,000 the second year are for the acquisition, rehabilitation, or construction of transitional housing units.

\$2,000,000 the first year and \$2,000,000 the second year are for the community rehabilitation fund program.

\$100,000 the first year and \$100,000 the second year are for the capacity building grant program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.21, subdivision 3b.

\$187,000 the first year and \$187,000 the second year are for the urban Indian housing program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.07, subdivision 15.

\$1,683,000 the first year and \$1,683,000 the second year are for the tribal Indian housing program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.07, subdivision 14.

\$186,000 the first year and \$186,000 the second year are for the Minnesota rural and urban homesteading program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.057.

The agency may use up to \$1,000,000 of available resources for the purpose of making loans under the Minnesota rural and urban homesteading program established under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.057, subdivision 1. The commissioner shall report to the relevant finance divisions in the house of representatives and senate on the outcomes of this program January 15 of each year.

\$4,287,000 the first year and \$4,287,000 the second year are for the housing rehabilitation and accessibility program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.05, subdivision 14a.

Of this appropriation, \$1,798,000 the first year and \$1,798,000 the second year are for the Housing Trust Fund to be deposited in the housing trust fund account created under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.201, and used for the purposes provided in that section.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$1,500,000 the first year and \$1,500,000 the second year are for the rent assistance for family stabilization program under Minnesota Statutes, section 462A.205.

\$40,000 the first year and \$40,000 the second year are for a grant to the Minnesota Housing Partnership to be used for grants to the regional housing network organizations that provide housing and homeless prevention information and assistance in greater Minnesota. The regional housing network organizations must use any grant funds received under this section to match private sources of money.

Of this appropriation, \$3,750,000 is for family homeless prevention and assistance program.

Of this appropriation, \$183,000 each year is for the emergency mortgage foreclosure prevention and emergency rental assistance program.

Of this appropriation, \$25,000 each year is for home equity counseling grants.

Of this appropriation, \$50,000 is for a grant to the Northwest Hennepin Human Services Council for a human services enterprise zone demonstration project for coordinated delivery of social services. The pilot project must design a program to:

- (1) establish a zone by setting service delivery boundaries;
- (2) assess barriers to coordinated delivery of housing assistance, health services, family services, and related human service assistance;
- (3) develop methods to simplify service delivery and encourage collaboration among service providers;
- (4) develop cooperative service agreements between agencies and units of government, including municipal, county, state, and federal government units and agencies, school districts, post-secondary education institutions, and other service providers including representatives of organized labor;
- (5) seek waivers of regulations that are barriers to cooperation; and
- (6) evaluate the human service enterprise zone to determine how it may be adapted to serve as a model for the delivery of human services.

By February 1, 1994, the grantee shall prepare an interim report for the agency with findings and recommendations on program design. The agency shall report to the legislature by December 1, 1995, on the implementation of the demonstration project to develop a model human services enterprise zone.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 7. COMMERCE

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

14,418,000

14,438,000

Summary by Fund

General	13,867,000	13,886,000
Environmental	224,000	224,000
Special Revenue	327,000	328,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Financial Examinations

5,954,000

6,089,000

Subd. 3. Registration and Analysis

2,661,000

2,523,000

Subd. 4. Petroleum Tank Release Cleanup Board

224,000

224,000

This appropriation is from the petroleum tank release cleanup account in the environmental fund for administration.

Subd. 5. Administrative Services

2,139,000

2,173,000

Subd. 6. Enforcement and Licensing

3,440,000

3,429,000

Summary by Fund

General	3,113,000	3,101,000
Special Revenue	327,000	328,000

\$327,000 the first year and \$328,000 the second year are from the real estate education, research, and recovery account in the special revenue fund for the purpose of Minnesota Statutes, section 82.34, subdivision 6. If the appropriation from the special revenue fund for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 8. NON-HEALTH-RELATED BOARDS

Subdivision 1. Total for this section

1,247,000

1,232,000

Subd. 2. Board of Accountancy

466,000

474,000

Subd. 3. Board of Architecture, Engineering, Land Surveying, Landscape Architecture, and Interior Design

591,000

568,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

	1994	1995
Subd. 4. Board of Barber Examiners	126,000	126,000
Subd. 5. Board of Boxing	64,000	64,000
Sec. 9. LABOR AND INDUSTRY		
Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation	26,024,000	19,710,000

Summary by Fund

General	4,048,000	4,047,000
Workers' Compensation	21,976,000	15,663,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Workers' Compensation Regulation and Enforcement

	14,961,000	9,410,000
--	------------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	100,000	100,000
Workers' Comp.	14,861,000	9,310,000

\$5,000,000 the first year from the special compensation fund is for the Daedalus imaging systems project. This appropriation must not be allotted until the commissioner certifies that all information policy office requirements for this project have been met or will be met. This appropriation is available for either year of the biennium.

\$100,000 in the first year and \$100,000 in the second year are for grants to the Vinland Center for rehabilitation service.

Fee receipts collected as a result of providing direct computer access to public workers' compensation data on file with the commissioner must be credited to the general fund.

Subd. 3. Workplace Services

	5,455,000	4,744,000
--	-----------	-----------

Summary by Fund

General	2,704,000	2,703,000
Workers' Comp.	2,751,000	2,041,000

This appropriation includes the transfer of the industrial hygiene activity from the department of health. The appropriation for this activity is from the special compensation fund.

\$710,000 the first year from the special compensation fund is for litigation of alleged ergonomic violations cases under the occupational safety and health act (OSHA). This appropriation is available for either year of the biennium.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

	1993	1994	1995
Subd. 4. General Support			
	5,608,000	5,556,000	
Summary by Fund			
General	1,244,000	1,244,000	
Workers' Compensation	4,364,000	4,312,000	
\$204,000 the first year and \$204,000 the second year are for labor education and advancement program grants.			
Sec. 10. PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION	41,000	3,371,000	3,071,000
Notwithstanding Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.243, subdivision 6, for any certificate of need application for expansion of the storage capacity for spent nuclear fuel rods, the commission and department shall assess actual amounts billed by the office of administrative hearings and up to \$300,000 of reasonable costs of the commission and department pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.62, subdivision 6, during the biennium, subject to the limitations of Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.62, subdivision 2.			
\$282,000 the first year and \$35,000 the second year are for an electronic storage and retrieval system. This appropriation must not be allotted until the chair of the commission certifies that all information policy office requirements for this project have been met or will be met. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.			
\$30,000 the first year is for transfer to the extended area service balloting account in the special revenue fund.			
\$41,000 of this appropriation is added to the appropriation in Laws 1991, chapter 233, section 10, and is for extended area service balloting costs.			
Sec. 11. PUBLIC SERVICE			
Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation		9,090,000	8,950,000
The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.			
Subd. 2. Telecommunications			
	730,000	752,000	
Subd. 3. Weights and Measures			
	2,948,000	2,845,000	
Subd. 4. Information and Operations Management			
	1,540,000	1,440,000	

APPROPRIATIONS

Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

\$84,000 the first year is for an electronic imaging system. This appropriation must not be allotted until the commissioner certifies that all of the information policy office requirements for this project have been met or will be met. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

Subd. 5. Energy

3,872,000

3,913,000

\$588,000 the first year and \$588,000 the second year are for transfer to the energy and conservation account established in Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.241, subdivision 2a, for programs administered by the commissioner of jobs and training to improve the energy efficiency of residential oil-fired heating plants in low-income households, and when necessary, to provide weatherization services to the homes.

\$220,000 the first year and \$220,000 the second year are for transfer to the energy and conservation account established by Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.241, subdivision 2a, for programs administered by the commissioner of jobs and training to improve the energy efficiency of residential liquified petroleum gas heating equipment in low-income households, and, when necessary, to provide weatherization services to the homes.

Of this appropriation, \$284,000 in the first year and \$326,000 in the second year are for alternative energy engineering activities. In employing persons to perform these activities, the department shall first offer any positions to persons previously employed by the department of public service during fiscal year 1993 in that capacity. No part of this appropriation may be used for outside consulting.

Subd. 6. Rental Energy Loan and Rebate Program Appropriation

All money, including interest and loan repayments, remaining from the Exxon Oil overcharge money appropriated to the commissioner of public service by Laws 1988, chapter 686, article 1, section 38, that was allocated to the Minnesota housing finance agency is reappropriated to the commissioner for the purposes of this subdivision and is available until spent.

\$1,600,000 is for a contract with an appropriate nonprofit organization, without public bidding, to provide revolving loan funds for a rental energy loan program in metropolitan counties as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 473.121, subdivision 4. The program is to be marketed and delivered in coordination with other energy services.

The balance is for any purpose consistent with the state energy conservation program.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

Sec. 12. MINNESOTA HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

18,200,000

17,996,000

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each program are specified in the following subdivisions.

The Minnesota historical society is eligible for a salary supplement in the same manner as state agencies. The commissioner of finance will determine the amount of the salary supplement based on available appropriations. Employees of the Minnesota historical society will be paid in accordance with the appropriate pay plan.

Subd. 2. Public Programs and Operations

11,188,000

11,188,000

Subd. 3. Statewide Outreach

597,000

557,000

\$48,000 the first year and \$48,000 the second year are for historic site grants to encourage local historic preservation projects.

\$27,000 the first year and \$27,000 the second year are for the state archaeology function.

\$40,000 is for grant-in-aid purposes of the St. Anthony Falls Heritage Board in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 138.763. Grants may be made for public improvements to assist and provide information to the public and construct historic markers and monuments. The matching requirements for the grants may be established by the St. Anthony Falls Heritage Board.

Subd. 4. Repair and Replacement

430,000

430,000

Subd. 5. Physical Plant

5,559,000

5,568,000

Subd. 6. Fiscal Agent

426,000

253,000

(a) Sibley House Association

88,000

88,000

This appropriation is available for operation and maintenance of the Sibley house and related buildings on the Old Mendota state historic site owned by the Sibley house association.

(b) Minnesota International Center

50,000

50,000

(c) Minnesota Military Museum

29,000

(d) Minnesota Air National Guard Museum

19,000

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994

1995

(e) Institute for Learning and Teaching

90,000

90,000

This appropriation is for Project 120.

(f) Moose Lake Fire and Heritage Museum

25,000

This appropriation is for a grant to the Carlton county historical society to be used by the Onanegozie resource conservation and development council for the development of the Moose Lake Fire and Heritage Museum. This appropriation may not be spent unless it is matched by an equal amount from local sources. The legislature intends that no further direct appropriation will be made for this purpose.

(g) Cloquet-Moose Lake Forest Fire Center

50,000

(h) Nurse Statue

50,000

This appropriation is for a grant to the Marine Corps Coordinating Council for the nurse statue to be located in the atrium of the Veterans Affairs Medical Center in Minneapolis. This appropriation is available until June 30, 1995.

(i) Farmamerica

25,000

25,000

Notwithstanding any other law, this appropriation may be used for operational purposes.

(j) Balances Forward

Any unencumbered balance remaining in this subdivision the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 13. MINNESOTA HUMANITIES COMMISSION

261,000

261,000

Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 14. BOARD OF THE ARTS

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation

6,254,000

6,254,000

Any unencumbered balance remaining in this section the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994 1995

Subd. 2. Operations and Services 669,000 669,000

Subd. 3. Grants Program 4,295,000 4,295,000

Subd. 4. Regional Arts Councils 1,290,000 1,290,000

Sec. 15. MINNESOTA MUNICIPAL BOARD 319,000 280,000

Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

Sec. 16. UNIFORM LAWS COMMISSION 25,000 25,000

Sec. 17. COUNCIL ON BLACK MINNESOTANS 226,000 225,000

Of this appropriation, \$6,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year are for transfer to the Ombudsperson for families.

Sec. 18. COUNCIL ON AFFAIRS OF SPANISH-SPEAKING PEOPLE 249,000 248,000

During the biennium ending June 30, 1995, council publications may contain advertising. Receipts from advertising are appropriated to the council for purposes of council publications.

For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, the council shall report to the legislature on the revenues and expenditures from advertising by February 15 each year.

Of this appropriation, \$6,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year are for transfer to the Ombudsperson for families.

By November 15, 1993, the council shall submit a financially related audit to the legislature for the most recent two years and a study of the internal control structure performed by an independent accountant licensed by the state of Minnesota.

Sec. 19. COUNCIL ON ASIAN-PACIFIC MINNESOTANS 201,000 200,000

Of this appropriation, \$6,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year are for transfer to the Ombudsperson for families.

Sec. 20. INDIAN AFFAIRS COUNCIL 473,000 457,000

For the biennium ending June 30, 1995, federal money received for the Indian affairs council is appropriated to the council and added to this appropriation.

Of this appropriation, \$6,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year are for transfer to the Ombudsperson for families.

Of this appropriation, \$15,000 in the first year is for planning the development of culturally appropriate legal services to indigent clients or tribal representatives who reside in Hennepin county and are involved in a case governed by the Indian Child Welfare Act, United States Code, title 25, section 1901, et seq., or the Minnesota Indian family preservation act, Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 257.35 to 257.3579. This appropriation is available until expended.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

1994 1995

Sec. 21. SECRETARY OF STATE

Subdivision 1. Total Appropriation	5,283,000	5,188,000
------------------------------------	-----------	-----------

The amounts that may be spent from this appropriation for each activity are specified in the following subdivisions.

Subd. 2. Administration

804,000	804,000
---------	---------

Subd. 3. Operations

4,046,000	3,964,000
-----------	-----------

Subd. 4. Election Administration

433,000	420,000
---------	---------

Sec. 22. ETHICAL PRACTICES BOARD	434,000	429,000
----------------------------------	---------	---------

Sec. 23. [TRANSFERS.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL PROCEDURE.] If the appropriation in this act to an agency in the executive branch is specified by program, the agency may transfer unencumbered balances among the programs specified in that section after getting the approval of the commissioner of finance. The commissioner shall not approve a transfer unless the commissioner believes that it will carry out the intent of the legislature. The transfer must be reported immediately to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on ways and means of the house of representatives. If the appropriation in this act to an agency in the executive branch is specified by activity, the agency may transfer unencumbered balances among the activities specified in that section using the same procedure as for transfers among programs.

Subd. 2. [CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS.] A constitutional officer need not get the approval of the commissioner of finance but must notify the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on ways and means of the house of representatives before making a transfer under subdivision 1.

Subd. 3. [TRANSFER PROHIBITED.] If an amount is specified in this act for an item within an activity, that amount must not be transferred or used for any other purpose.

Sec. 24. [BASE CUT TRANSFERS.]

For any agency assigned base cuts in this act, the proportion of agency base cuts for pass-through grants compared to total agency base cuts may not exceed the proportion of dollars appropriated for pass-through grants in the agency compared to total dollars appropriated to that agency.

Sec. 25. [LABOR INTERPRETIVE CENTER; INITIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS.]

Of the initial appointments to the labor interpretive center board, two members appointed by the governor and the member appointed by the mayor of St. Paul must have two-year initial terms. The initial board of directors must be appointed no later than August 1, 1993.

Sec. 26. [LABOR INTERPRETIVE CENTER; TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [UNENCUMBERED BALANCE.] The unencumbered balance of the appropriation for the labor interpretive center project transferred to the capitol area architectural and planning board in Laws 1991, chapter 345, is transferred to the labor interpretive center account.

Subd. 2. [PROJECT AUTHORIZED BY 1990 LEGISLATURE.] The appropriation in Laws 1990, chapter 610, article 1, section 16, subdivision 4, is transferred to the labor interpretive center account.

Sec. 27. [TRANSFER OF POWERS.]

The powers and duties of the board of abstracters under Minnesota Statutes, sections 386.61 to 386.76 are transferred to the commissioner of commerce. Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039, subdivisions 1 to 6, apply to this transfer.

Sec. 28. [REVISOR INSTRUCTION.]

The revisor shall change the terms "board," "executive secretary," "board of abstracters," or similar terms to "commissioner," "commissioner of commerce," or similar terms wherever they appear in Minnesota Statutes and Minnesota Rules with respect to the board of abstracters.

Sec. 29. [CONCENTRATED RESIDENTIAL AREA ACTION PLANS; DEFINITIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [APPLICABILITY.] The definitions in this section apply to section 30.

Subd. 2. [CITY.] "City" means a home rule charter or statutory city having no less than 30 percent of its households in renter-occupied residential units as reported in the latest decennial federal census.

Subd. 3. [COMMISSIONER.] "Commissioner" means the commissioner of trade and economic development.

Subd. 4. [CONCENTRATED RESIDENTIAL AREA.] "Concentrated residential area" means an area of a city that contains the following:

- (1) 50 percent of the residential units in the area are renter occupied;
- (2) not less than half of the residential buildings in the area were built prior to 1970;
- (3) at least 20 percent of the city's population according to the latest decennial federal census lives in the area;
- (4) at least three percent of the city's land area is contained in the area; and
- (5) the median household income for the area is not more than 80 percent of the county median income.

Sec. 30. [CONCENTRATED RESIDENTIAL AREA ACTION PLAN.]

Subdivision 1. [CRITERIA.] For a concentrated residential area a city, with the assistance provided in this section, shall prepare a plan that at a minimum includes the following:

- (1) the demographic and socioeconomic profile of the area's population and a statement of the social needs of the area's residents;
- (2) the condition of private owner-occupied and renter-occupied buildings;
- (3) the vacancy rate and turnover rate of the rental residential buildings;
- (4) the presence of and condition of the area's public facilities;
- (5) the redevelopment objectives of the city for the area;
- (6) the specific activities or means by which the city could implement the revitalization objectives;
- (7) strategies to preserve existing housing;
- (8) strategies to assist low- and moderate-income households to achieve self-sufficiency and meet their identified social needs;

(9) recommendations to the commissioner to facilitate the preservation, reuse, and rehabilitation of the area's housing stock and to increase the self-sufficiency of the area's residents; and

(10) identification of the process that involved the area's residents in the development of the plan.

Subd. 2. [GRANTS.] The commissioner may make grants to cities to complete a concentrated residential neighborhood action plan. The state funds for each grant must be equally matched by city matching money. Matching money may include money from the city general fund, a special fund, grant, or other source.

Subd. 3. [REPORT.] The commissioner shall submit recommendations related to concentrated residential area action plans to the legislature by February 15, 1994.

Sec. 31. [UNIFORM BUSINESS IDENTIFIER STUDY.]

Subdivision 1. [FINDINGS.] The current registration process requires each business to deal with multiple agencies, provide redundant information to each and, in general, creates an undue administrative burden on Minnesota businesses. Each agency also produces data that is not easily transferred among state agencies, which in turn results in businesses being asked for the same information from a number of different agencies. The establishment of a uniform process would reduce the burden on businesses and promote the sharing of information among the state agencies, thereby eliminating the costs and burdens of duplicative information gathering and storage.

Subd. 2. [STUDY.] The commissioner of jobs and training shall study the feasibility of establishing a uniform business identifier process for all firms doing business with and within the state.

The proposed study shall:

(1) identify and document the various requirements with which businesses currently must comply in order to legally conduct business within the state;

(2) propose and analyze alternatives for a uniform process of business registration, including a single statewide account number, a unified application form, and an integrated data processing system or systems;

(3) detail the operational impact of installing the process or system;

(4) estimate the costs and benefits, both for the state and for Minnesota businesses, of installing the process;

(5) prepare an estimated implementation timetable;

(6) recommend the structure and composition of the project needed for implementation; and

(7) recommend and analyze the information system technology alternatives, if any, that will be needed to implement the recommended process.

The commissioner of the department of jobs and training, or a designee, shall be the chair of the study and shall provide staff to assist in the study effort. Those state offices, departments, and agencies that interact with Minnesota businesses including, but not limited to, department of jobs and training, secretary of state, department of revenue, department of labor and industry, department of commerce, and the information policy office of the department of administration shall cooperate in this study.

Sec. 32. [WORLD TRADE CENTER CORPORATION BOARD; TERMS.]

The terms of the following members of the world trade center corporation board of directors expire on June 30, 1993: (1) legislator members; and (2) members serving on June 30, 1993, who were appointed by the governor for a six-year term.

Sec. 33. [WORLD TRADE CENTER; MEDICAL EXPOSITION.]

The \$500,000 appropriation to the department of trade and economic development for transfer to the World Trade Center Corporation made by Laws 1991, chapter 345, article 1, section 23, is to establish an annual medical exposition, trade fair, and health care congress to commence either in 1993 or 1994. The event need not be coordinated and held in conjunction with the World Health Organization's annual international conference on children's health care to commence in Minnesota in 1993.

Sec. 34. [LIMIT ON ASSESSMENTS.]

The department of public service may not assess more than \$584,000 in fiscal year 1994 and \$626,000 in fiscal year 1995 for alternative energy engineering activities.

Sec. 35. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 3.30, subdivision 2, as amended by Laws 1993, chapter 4, section 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [MEMBERS; DUTIES.] The majority leader of the senate or a designee, the chair of the senate committee on finance, and the chair of the senate division of finance responsible for overseeing the items being considered by the commission, the speaker of the house of representatives or a designee, the chair of the house committee on ways and means, and the chair of the appropriate finance committee, or division of the house committee responsible for overseeing the items being considered by the commissioner, constitute the legislative advisory commission. The division chair of the finance committee in the senate and the division chair of the appropriate finance committee or division in the house shall rotate according to the items being considered by the commission. If any of the members elect not to serve on the commission, the house of which they are members, if in session, shall select some other member for the vacancy. If the legislature is not in session, vacancies in the house membership of the commission shall be filled by the last speaker of the house or, if the speaker is not available, by the last chair of the house rules committee, and by the last senate committee on committees or other appointing authority designated by the senate rules in case of a senate vacancy. The commissioner of finance shall be secretary of the commission and keep a permanent record and minutes of its proceedings, which are public records. The commissioner of finance shall transmit, under section 3.195, a report to the next legislature of all actions of the commission. Members shall receive traveling and subsistence expenses incurred attending meetings of the commission. The commission shall meet from time to time upon the call of the governor or upon the call of the secretary at the request of two or more of its members. A recommendation of the commission must be made at a meeting of the commission unless a written recommendation is signed by all the members entitled to vote on the item, ~~except that a recommendation under section 298.2213, subdivision 4, or 298.296, subdivision 1, need only be signed by a majority of the members entitled to vote on the item.~~

Sec. 36. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 15.38, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 9. [SIBLEY HOUSE.] The Sibley House association may purchase fire, wind, hail, and vandalism insurance and insurance coverage for fine art objects from state appropriations.

Sec. 37. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 15.50, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [CAPITOL AREA PLAN.] (a) The board shall prepare, prescribe, and from time to time amend a comprehensive use plan for the capitol area, ~~herein called the area in this subdivision, which shall initially consist~~ consists of that portion of the city of Saint Paul comprehended within the following boundaries: Beginning at the point of intersection of the centerline of the Arch-Pennsylvania freeway and the centerline of Marion Street, thence southerly along the centerline of Marion Street extended to a point 50 feet south of the south line of Concordia Avenue, thence southeasterly along a line extending 50 feet from the south line of Concordia Avenue to a point 125 feet from the west line of John Ireland Boulevard, thence southwesterly along a line extending 125 feet from the west line of John Ireland Boulevard to the south line of Dayton Avenue, thence northeasterly from the south line of Dayton Avenue to the west line of John Ireland Boulevard, thence northeasterly to the centerline of the intersection of Old Kellogg Boulevard and Summit Avenue, thence northeasterly along the centerline of Summit Avenue to the ~~south line of the right-of-way of the Fifth Street ramp, thence southeasterly along the right-of-way of the Fifth Street ramp to the center line of the new West Kellogg Boulevard, thence southerly along the east line of the new West Kellogg Boulevard, to the center line of West Seventh Street, thence northeasterly along the center line of West Seventh Street to the center line of the Fifth Street ramp, thence northwesterly along the center line of the Fifth Street ramp to the~~ east line of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 35-E, thence northeasterly along the east line of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 35-E to the south line of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 94, thence easterly along the south line of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway 94 to the west line of St. Peter Street, thence southerly to the south line of Eleventh Street, thence easterly along the south line of Eleventh Street to the west line of Cedar Street, thence southeasterly along the west line of Cedar Street to the centerline of Tenth Street, thence northeasterly along the centerline of Tenth Street to the centerline of Minnesota Street, thence northwesterly along the centerline of Minnesota Street to the centerline of Eleventh Street, thence northeasterly along the centerline of Eleventh Street to the centerline of Jackson Street, thence northwesterly along the centerline of Jackson Street to the centerline of the Arch-Pennsylvania freeway extended, thence westerly along the centerline of the Arch-Pennsylvania freeway extended and Marion Street to the point of origin. If construction of the labor interpretive center does not commence prior to

December 31, 1996, at the site recommended by the board, the boundaries of the capitol area revert to their configuration as of 1992. Pursuant to Under the comprehensive plan, or any a portion thereof of it, the board may regulate, by means of zoning rules adopted pursuant to under the administrative procedure act, the kind, character, height, and location, of buildings and other structures constructed or used, the size of yards and open spaces, the percentage of lots that may be occupied, and the uses of land, buildings and other structures, within the area. To protect and enhance the dignity, beauty, and architectural integrity of the capitol area, the board is further empowered to include in its zoning rules design review procedures and standards with respect to any proposed construction activities in the capitol area significantly affecting the dignity, beauty, and architectural integrity of the area. No person ~~shall~~ may undertake these construction activities as defined in the board's rules in the capitol area without first submitting construction plans to the board, obtaining a zoning permit from the board, and receiving a written certification from the board specifying that the person has complied with all design review procedures and standards. Violation of the zoning rules is a misdemeanor. The board may, at its option, proceed to abate any violation by injunction. The board and the city of St. Paul shall cooperate in assuring that the area adjacent to the capitol area is developed in a manner that is in keeping with the purpose of the board and the provisions of the comprehensive plan.

(b) The commissioner of administration shall act as a consultant to the board with regard to the physical structural needs of the state. The commissioner shall make studies and report the results to the board when ~~they request it~~ requests reports for their its planning purpose.

(c) No public building, street, parking lot, or monument, or other construction ~~shall~~ may be built or altered on any public lands within the area unless the plans for the ~~same conforms~~ project conform to the comprehensive use plan as specified in clause (d) and to the requirement for competitive plans as specified in clause (e). No alteration substantially changing the external appearance of any existing public building approved in the comprehensive plan or the exterior or interior design of any proposed new public building the plans for which were secured by competition under clause (e), may be made without the prior consent of the board. The commissioner of administration shall consult with the board regarding internal changes having the effect of substantially altering the architecture of the interior of any proposed building.

(d) The comprehensive plan ~~shall~~ must show the existing land uses and recommend future uses including: areas for public taking and use; zoning for private land and criteria for development of public land, including building areas and open spaces; vehicular and pedestrian circulation; utilities systems; vehicular storage; elements of landscape architecture. No substantial alteration or improvement ~~shall~~ may be made to public lands or buildings in the area save with the written approval of the board.

(e) The board shall secure by competitions, plans for any new public building. Plans for any comprehensive plan, landscaping scheme, street plan, or property acquisition, ~~which that~~ may be proposed, or for any proposed alteration of any existing public building, landscaping scheme or street plan may be secured by a similar competition. Such A competition ~~shall~~ must be conducted under rules prescribed by the board and may be of any type which meets the competition standards of the American Institute of Architects. Designs selected ~~shall~~ become the property of the state of Minnesota, and the board may award one or more premiums in each such competition and may pay such the costs and fees as ~~that~~ may be required for the its conduct thereof. At the option of the board, plans for projects estimated to cost less than \$1,000,000 may be approved without competition provided such the plans have been considered by the advisory committee described in clause paragraph (f). Plans for projects estimated to cost less than \$400,000 and for construction of streets need not be considered by the advisory committee if in conformity with the comprehensive plan.

(f) The board ~~shall~~ may not adopt any plan under ~~clause paragraph~~ (e) unless it first receives the comments and criticism of an advisory committee of three persons, each of whom is either an architect or a planner, who have been selected and appointed as follows: one by the board of the arts, one by the board, and one by the Minnesota Society of the American Institute of Architects. Members of the committee ~~shall~~ may not be contestants under clause (e). The comments and criticism ~~shall~~ must be a matter of public information. The committee shall advise the board on all architectural and planning matters. For that purpose;

(4) the committee ~~shall~~ must be kept currently informed concerning, and have access to, all data, including all plans, studies, reports and proposals, relating to the area as the same data are developed or in the process of preparation, whether by the commissioner of administration, the commissioner of trade and economic development, the metropolitan council, the city of Saint Paul, or by any architect, planner, agency or organization, public or private, retained by the board or not retained and engaged in any work or planning relating to the area, and a copy of any such data prepared by any public employee or agency ~~shall~~ must be filed with the board promptly upon completion;

(2) The board may employ ~~such~~ stenographic or technical help as that may be reasonable to assist the committee to perform its duties.

(3) When so directed by the board, the committee may serve as, and any member or members ~~thereof~~ of the committee may serve on, the jury or as professional advisor for any architectural competition. The board shall select the architectural advisor and jurors for any competition with the advice of the committee; ~~and~~.

(4) The city of Saint Paul shall advise the board.

(g) The comprehensive plan for the area ~~shall~~ must be developed and maintained in close cooperation with the commissioner of trade and economic development ~~and~~, the planning department and the council for the city of Saint Paul, and the board of the arts, and no ~~such~~ plan or amendment ~~thereof shall of a plan may~~ be effective without 90 days' notice, to the planning department of the city of Saint Paul and the board of the arts.

(h) The board and the commissioner of administration, jointly, shall prepare, prescribe, and from time to time revise standards and policies governing the repair, alteration, furnishing, appearance, and cleanliness of the public and ceremonial areas of the state capitol building. ~~Pursuant to this power,~~ The board shall consult with and receive advice from the director of the Minnesota state historical society regarding the historic fidelity of plans for the capitol building. The standards and policies developed ~~as herein provided shall be~~ under this paragraph are binding upon the commissioner of administration. The provisions of sections 14.02, 14.04 to 14.36, 14.38, and 14.44 to 14.45 ~~shall~~ do not apply to this clause.

(i) The board in consultation with the commissioner of administration shall prepare and submit to the legislature and the governor no later than October 1 of each even-numbered year a report on the status of implementation of the comprehensive plan together with a program for capital improvements and site development, and the commissioner of administration shall provide the necessary cost estimates for the program.

(j) The state shall, by the attorney general upon the recommendation of the board and within appropriations available for that purpose, acquire by gift, purchase, or eminent domain proceedings any real property situated in the area described in this section, and it ~~shall may~~ also have the power to acquire an interest less than a fee simple interest in the property, if it finds that ~~it~~ the property is needed for future expansion or beautification of the area.

(k) The board is the successor of the state veterans' service building commission, and as such may adopt rules and may reenact the rules adopted by its predecessor under Laws 1945, chapter 315, and ~~acts amendatory thereof~~ amendments to it.

(l) The board shall meet at the call of the chair and at such other times as it may prescribe.

(m) The commissioner of administration shall assign quarters in the state veterans service building to (1) the department of veterans affairs, of which ~~such~~ a part as that the commissioner of administration and commissioner of veterans affairs may mutually determine ~~shall must~~ be on the first floor above the ground, and (2) the American Legion, Veterans of Foreign Wars, Disabled American Veterans, Military Order of the Purple Heart, United Spanish War Veterans, and Veterans of World War I, and their auxiliaries, incorporated, or when incorporated, under the laws of the state, and (3) as space becomes available, ~~to such~~ other state departments and agencies as the commissioner may deem desirable.

Sec. 38. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.128, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [NO RULEMAKING.] The kinds of fees that need not be fixed by rule unless specifically required by law are:

- (1) fees based on actual direct costs of a service;
- (2) one-time fees;
- (3) fees that produce insignificant revenues;
- (4) fees billed within or between state agencies;
- (5) fees exempt from commissioner approval; ~~or~~

(6) fees for admissions to or use of facilities operated by the iron range resources and rehabilitation board, if the fees are set according to prevailing market conditions to recover operating costs; or

(7) fees established by the Minnesota historical society.

Sec. 39. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.28, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. [EXCEPTIONS.] Except as provided by law, an appropriation made to the Minnesota historical society, if not spent during the first year, may be spent during the second year of a biennium. An unexpended balance remaining at the end of a biennium lapses and shall be returned to the fund from which appropriated. An appropriation made to the society for all or part of a biennium may be spent in either year of the biennium.

Sec. 40. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16A.72, is amended to read:

16A.72 [INCOME CREDITED TO GENERAL FUND; EXCEPTIONS.]

All income, including fees or receipts of any nature, shall be credited to the general fund, except:

(1) federal aid;

(2) contributions, or reimbursements received for any account of any division or department for which an appropriation is made by law;

(3) income to the University of Minnesota;

(4) income to revolving funds now established in institutions under the control of the commissioners of corrections or human services;

(5) investment earnings resulting from the master lease program, except that the amount credited to another fund or account may not exceed the amount of the additional expense incurred by that fund or account through participation in the master lease program;

(6) receipts from the operation of patients' and inmates' stores and vending machines, which shall be deposited in the social welfare fund in each institution for the benefit of the patients and inmates;

(7) money received in payment for services of inmate labor employed in the industries carried on in the state correctional facilities which receipts shall be credited to the current expense fund of those facilities;

(8) as provided in sections 16B.57 and 85.22; ~~or~~

(9) income to the Minnesota historical society; or

(10) as otherwise provided by law.

Sec. 41. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 16B.06, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. [EXCEPTION.] The requirements of subdivision 2 do not apply to state contracts distributing state or federal funds pursuant to the federal Economic Dislocation and Worker Adjustment Assistance Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1651 et seq., or sections 268.9771, 268.978, 268.9781, and 268.9782. For these contracts, the commissioner of jobs and training is authorized to directly enter into state contracts with approval of the governor's job training council and encumber available funds to ensure a rapid response to the needs of dislocated workers. The commissioner shall adopt internal procedures to administer and monitor funds distributed under these contracts.

Sec. 42. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 44A.01, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [BOARD MEMBERSHIP.] ~~(a)~~ The corporation is governed by a board of directors consisting of:

(1) ~~six~~ four members, representing the international business community, elected to six-year terms by the association of members established under section 4, subdivision 2, clause (5);

(2) ~~three four~~ members, representing the international business community, appointed by the governor, ~~with the advice and consent of the senate, to six year terms~~ serve at the governor's pleasure; and

(3) ~~six legislators appointed under paragraph (b)~~ the mayor of St. Paul or the mayor's designee; and

(4) the commissioners of trade and economic development, agriculture, and commerce.

Members appointed by the governor must be knowledgeable or experienced in international trade in products or services.

~~(b) Legislator members are three members of the senate appointed under the rules of the senate and three members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker. One member from each house must be appointed from the minority party of that house. Except for the initial members, who are to be appointed following enactment, they are appointed at the beginning of each regular session of the legislature for two year terms. A legislator who remains a member of the body from which the legislator was appointed may serve until a successor is appointed and qualifies. A vacancy in a legislator member's term is filled for the unexpired portion of the term in the same manner as the original appointment.~~

Sec. 43. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 44A.01, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [ORGANIZATION.] The board shall elect a chair from the representatives of the international business community appointed by the governor, and an executive committee from its members.

Sec. 44. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 44A.025, is amended to read:

44A.025 [DUTIES.]

The board shall:

- (1) promote and market the Minnesota world trade center;
- (2) sponsor conferences or other promotional events in the conference and service center;
- (3) adopt bylaws governing operation of the corporation by November 1, 1987;
- (4) ~~establish a Minnesota world trade center club program in accordance with the development agreement;~~
- (5) conduct public relations and liaison activities between the corporation and the international business community;
- (6) (5) establish and maintain an office in the Minnesota world trade center; and
- (7) (6) not duplicate programs or services provided by the commissioner of trade and economic development, the Minnesota trade division, or the commissioner of agriculture.

Sec. 45. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 82.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. [BROKER PAYMENT CONSOLIDATION.] For all license renewal fees, recovery fund renewal fees, and recovery fund assessments pursuant to this section and section 82.34, the broker must remit the fees or assessments for the company, broker, and all salespersons licensed to the broker, in the form of a single check.

Sec. 46. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 116J.617, is amended to read:

116J.617 [TOURISM LOAN PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT.] The commissioner may establish a tourism revolving loan program and a tourism guarantee loan program to provide loans ~~or~~, participate in loans, or guarantee loans to resorts, campgrounds, lodging facilities, and other tourism-related businesses. The commissioner shall work with financial institutions in making or participating in loans or guaranteeing loans under this section.

Subd. 2. [ELIGIBLE BORROWER.] To receive a loan under this section, the borrower must be a sole proprietorship, partnership, ~~or corporation, or other person~~ engaged in a tourism-related business or other entity that is defined by the standard industrial classification codes of 7011 and 7033 as set out in the Code of Federal Regulations, title 13, section 121.2. An eligible borrower under this section must maintain the business or other entity as a tourism-related entity as defined by this subdivision during the term of the loan. An eligible borrower may not receive a loan or loan guarantee under this section if the borrower has received a tourism-related loan, loan participation, or guarantee made by the state ~~or participated in by the state~~ in the past three years 36 months.

Subd. 3. [ELIGIBLE LOAN.] The maximum loan made or participated in under this section may not be for more than 50 percent of the total cost of the project. Loan proceeds may be used for the following purposes: acquisition of an existing building, building construction and improvement, land site improvement, equipment, other construction costs, and engineering costs. Project-related expenditures made more than 30 days before an application may not be financed by a loan made, guaranteed, or participated in under this section.

Subd. 4. [LOAN TERMS.] The maximum term of a loan made, guaranteed, or participated in under this section may not exceed the useful life of the real property or 80 percent of the useful life of the equipment or machinery, or the following limits, whichever is less:

- (1) ten years for land, building, or other real property;
- (2) five years for equipment or machinery; or
- (3) a weighted average of the limits under clauses (1) and (2) for loans made, guaranteed, or participated in for a combination of real property and equipment or machinery.

The commissioner may establish interest rates for loans made under this section. All loans made must be secured by collateral.

Subd. 5. [TOURISM LOAN ACCOUNT.] The tourism loan account is created in the special revenue fund. The fund consists of money appropriated or transferred to the account and interest collected through the tourism revolving loan program, and gifts, donations, and bequests made to the account. Money in the account is appropriated to the commissioner for purposes of this section. Fees collected through the tourism revolving loan program must be credited to the general fund.

Subd. 6. [INVESTMENT INTEREST.] All interest and profits accruing from the investment of money from the tourism loan account are credited to the account, and any loss incurred in the principal of the investments of the account is debited to the account.

Sec. 47. [116].65] [YOUTH ENTREPRENEURSHIP EDUCATION PROGRAM.]

The commissioner of trade and economic development shall establish a youth entrepreneurship education program to improve the academic and entrepreneurial skills of students and aid in their transition from school to business creation. The program shall strengthen local economies by creating jobs that enable citizens to remain in their communities and to foster cooperation among educators, economic development professionals, business leaders, and representatives of labor.

Sec. 48. [116].874] [AFFIRMATIVE ENTERPRISE PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] (a) The definitions in this subdivision apply to this section.

(b) "Business entity" means a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, or corporation.

(c) "Disabled person" means a person with a disability as defined under section 363.01, subdivision 13.

(d) "Full-time employee" means an employee who is employed for at least 35 hours per week.

Subd. 2. [ESTABLISHMENT.] The commissioner of trade and economic development shall establish the affirmative enterprise program for the purpose of encouraging the full-time employment of disabled persons in areas of economic need. The commissioner shall determine areas of economic need based on present and past levels of unemployment and population loss, and present and past reductions in industrial and business activity.

Subd. 3. [ELIGIBILITY.] A business entity is eligible for an affirmative enterprise grant if it meets the following criteria:

(1) except in the case of a business entity with fewer than ten employees, it employs at least 25 percent of its full-time employees from persons who are not disabled;

(2) it employs at least 50 percent of its full-time employees from disabled persons;

(3) it maintains an integrated work force of nondisabled and disabled persons at the highest possible level;

(4) every full-time employee has an employee status with all accompanying rights and responsibilities;

(5) the following benefits are provided to each full-time employee:

(i) paid vacation;

(ii) paid holidays;

(iii) paid sick leave;

(iv) a personalized career plan;

(v) retirement with employer participation; and

(vi) a copayment health insurance plan;

(6) a full-time employee selected by all employees of the business entity meets with the business entity's management at least once a month;

(7) each full-time employee is informed of other less restrictive employment when it becomes available;

(8) all full-time employees are required to participate in at least two evaluations per year with accompanying wage adjustments; and

(9) profit sharing based on the business entity's performance is provided to all full-time employees.

Subd. 4. [GRANTS.] Affirmative enterprise grants must be used by the business to provide training and support services to disabled persons in conjunction with economic development.

Subd. 5. [PREFERENCE.] Preference for grant awards must be given to a business entity that: (1) offers ownership options or individual personal improvement plans with employer-sponsored training, has a long-term business plan, and is working collaboratively with the local economic development authority or organization; or (2) has a higher percentage of disabled employees than another eligible entity.

Subd. 6. [EXPIRATION.] This section expires July 1, 1995. By January 1, 1995, the management analysis division of the department of administration shall evaluate the program and if warranted based on outcomes recommend to the legislature a funding source for this program and a state agency to administer the program.

Sec. 49. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 116J.982, is amended to read:

116J.982 [COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] For the purposes of this section, the terms in this subdivision have the meanings given them:

(a) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of trade and economic development.

(b) "Economic development region" means an area so designated in the governor's executive order number ~~60~~ 83-15, dated June 12, 1970, as amended March 15, 1983.

(c) "Federal poverty level" means the income level established by the United States Community Services Administration in Code of Federal Regulations, title 45, section 1060.2-2 published annually by the United States Department of Health and Human Services under authority of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981, Public Law Number 97-35, title VI, section 673(2).

(d) "Low income" means an annual income below the federal poverty level.

(e) A "low-income area" means an area in which (1) ten percent of the population have low incomes, or (2) there is one or more recognized subareas such as a census tract, city, township, or county in which 15 percent of the population have low incomes.

Subd. 2. [ADMINISTRATION.] The commissioner shall administer this section and shall enforce the rules related to the community development corporations adopted by the commissioner except for subdivision 6, which shall be administered by the commissioner of housing finance. The commissioner, commissioners of trade and economic development and housing finance may amend, suspend, repeal, or otherwise modify these, separately or jointly, adopt rules as provided for in chapter 14 necessary to implement this section.

Subd. 3. [GRANTS CERTIFICATION; CORPORATIONS ELIGIBLE.] (a) The commissioner shall designate certify a community development corporation as eligible to receive grants under this section if the corporation is a nonprofit corporation incorporated under chapter 317A and meets the other criteria in this subdivision.

(b) The corporation, in its articles of incorporation or bylaws, shall must designate a low-income area as the specific geographic community within which it will operate. At least ten percent of the population within the designated community must have low incomes. Within the metropolitan area as defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2 cities of the first class, a designated community must be an identifiable neighborhood or a combination of neighborhoods but may not be the entire city. Outside cities of the first class, a designated community may be an identifiable neighborhood or neighborhoods, or home rule charter or statutory cities, townships, unincorporated areas, or combinations of those entities. Outside the metropolitan area, designated communities, so far as possible, but may not be an entire economic development region nor cross existing economic development region boundaries except as provided in this section. If a proposed geographic area overlaps the designated community of a community development corporation existing before August 1, 1987, the proposed community development corporation shall obtain the written consent of the existing community development corporation before the proposed corporation may be designated as eligible to receive grants under this section.

(c) The corporation's major purpose, in its articles of incorporation or bylaws, must be economic development, redevelopment, or housing in its designated community.

(d) The corporation shall limit voting membership to residents of its designated area must be tax exempt under section 501, paragraph (c), clause (3), of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(d) (e) The corporation shall have a board of directors with 15 to 30 members unless the corporation can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the commissioner that a smaller or larger board is more advantageous membership and board of directors of the corporation must be representative of the designated community. At least 40 percent of the directors must have incomes that do not exceed 80 percent of the county median family income or 80 percent of the statewide median family income as determined by the state demographer, whichever is less, and the remaining directors must be members of the business or financial community and the community at large. To the greatest extent possible, and At least 20 percent of the directors shall have low incomes or shall reside in low-income areas described in subdivision 1, paragraph (e), clause (1), or the low-income subarea described in subdivision 1, paragraph (e), clause (2). At least 60 percent of the directors must be residents of the designated community. Directors who meet the income limitations of this paragraph must be elected by the members of the corporation. The remaining directors may be elected by the members or appointed by the directors who meet the income limitations of this paragraph. Other directors shall be business, financial, or civic leaders or representatives-at-large of the designated community. Notwithstanding the requirements of this paragraph, a corporation which meets board structure requirements for a community housing development corporation under Code of Federal Regulations, title 24, part 92.2, is deemed to meet the board membership requirements of this subdivision.

(e) (f) The corporation shall hire low-income residents of the designated community to fill nonmanagerial and nonprofessional positions shall not discriminate against any persons on the basis of a status protected under chapter 363.

(f) (g) The corporation shall demonstrate that it has or ~~will have~~ can obtain the technical skills to analyze projects, that it is familiar with other available public and private funding sources and economic development, redevelopment, and housing programs, and that it is capable of packaging economic development, redevelopment, and housing projects.

(h) The corporation must have completed two or more economic development, redevelopment, or housing projects within its designated community during the last three years.

Subd. 4. [GRANT APPROVAL FOR PROJECTS CERTIFICATION.] ~~The commissioner shall approve a grant to a community development corporation only for a project carried on within the designated community, except when the corporation demonstrates that a project carried on outside will have a significant impact inside the designated community. The commissioner shall certify as a community development corporation any organization which meets the criteria in subdivision 3. The certification is for two years from the date of certification and is renewable. The commissioner shall certify as a community development corporation for a nonrenewable period of three years from the date of certification an organization which meets all the criteria in subdivision 3, except for paragraphs (d) and (h), but which plans to meet those requirements by the end of the three years.~~

As part of the certification process, the commissioner shall resolve disputes concerning boundaries of the designated community of a community development corporation.

Subd. 5. [USE OF GRANT GRANTS; ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS.] ~~The commissioner may approve make a grant to a community development corporation for planning, including organization of the corporation, training of the directors, creation of a comprehensive community economic development plan, and enter into contracts with certified community development corporations for:~~

(1) specific economic development projects within the designated community, such as development of a proposal for a venture grant, or for establishment of a business venture, including assistance to an existing business venture, purchase of partial or full ownership of a business venture, real estate development, strategic development planning, infrastructure development, or development of resources or facilities necessary for the establishment of a business venture;

(2) dissemination of information about, or taking applications for, programs operated by the commissioner; and

(3) developing the internal organizational capacity to engage in economic development activities such as the partnership activities listed in clause (1).

Subd. 6. [ASSIGNEE HOUSING CONTRACTS.] ~~The commissioner must be named as an assignee of the rights of a state funded community development corporation on any loan or other evidence of debt provided by a community development corporation to a private enterprise. The assignment of rights must provide that it will be effective upon the dormancy or cessation of existence of the community development corporation. "Dormancy" for the purpose of this section means the continuation of the corporation in name only without any functioning officers or activities. Upon the cessation of the activities of a state funded community development corporation, any assigned money paid to the commissioner must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund. The commissioner of the housing finance agency may enter into contracts with certified community development corporations for purposes of housing activities associated with economic development activity under subdivision 5.~~

Subd. 6a. [SECONDARY MARKET.] ~~A community development corporation may sell, at private or public sale, at the price or prices determined by the corporation, any note, mortgage, lease, sublease, lease purchase, or other instrument or obligation evidencing or securing a loan made for the purpose of economic development, job creation, redevelopment, or community revitalization by a public agency to a business, for profit or nonprofit organization, or an individual.~~

Subd. 7. [FACTORS FOR GRANT APPROVAL OTHER PROGRAMS.] ~~Factors considered by the commissioner in approving a grant to a community development corporation must include the creation of employment opportunities, the maximization of profit, and the effect on securing money from sources other than the state. A certified community development corporation is eligible to participate in a program available to nonprofit organizations which is operated by the commissioners of trade and economic development or housing finance if the certified development corporation meets the requirements of the program.~~

Subd. 7a. [REAL ESTATE LICENSE EXEMPTION.] A certified community development corporation is exempt from the licensure requirements of section 82.20.

Subd. 8. [PROHIBITION.] Grants under this section are not available for programs conducted by churches or religious organizations or for securing or developing social services.

Subd. 9. [NO EXCLUSION.] A person may not be excluded from participation in a program funded under this section because of race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin.

Sec. 50. [116].987] [DEFINITIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [APPLICATION.] The definitions in this section apply to sections 116].987 to 116].990.

Subd. 2. [BOARD.] "Board" means the board of invention.

Subd. 3. [COMMERCIAL INVENTION.] "Commercial invention" means new and useful processes, machines, manufacturing procedures, or any new and useful improvements or applications of commercial inventions, regardless of whether or not the invention is patentable.

Subd. 4. [INVENTION.] "Invention" means creative activity resulting in new and potentially useful and applied products or ideas of commercial and social merit. Invention includes commercial and social inventions.

Subd. 5. [SOCIAL INVENTION.] "Social invention" means new procedures, new uses for known procedures, and organizations that change the way in which people relate to their environment or to each other.

Sec. 51. [116].988] [BOARD OF INVENTION.]

Subdivision 1. [MEMBERSHIP.] The board of invention consists of 11 members appointed by the governor, subject to the advice and consent of the senate. One member must be appointed from each of the congressional districts. The remaining members may be appointed at large.

Subd. 2. [TERMS.] The membership terms, removal, and filling of vacancies of board members are as provided in section 15.0575.

Subd. 3. [CHAIR; OTHER OFFICERS.] The board shall annually elect a chair and other officers as necessary from its members.

Subd. 4. [STAFF.] The board may employ an executive director who is knowledgeable in invention and has demonstrated proficiency in the administration of programs relating to invention. The executive director shall perform the duties that the board may require in carrying out its responsibilities.

Sec. 52. [116].989] [POWERS.]

Subdivision 1. [CONTRACTS.] The board may enter into contracts and grant agreements necessary to carry out its responsibilities.

Subd. 2. [GIFTS; GRANTS.] The board may apply for, accept, and disburse gifts, grants, or other property from the United States, the state, private foundations, or any other source. It may enter into an agreement required for the gifts or grants and may hold, use, and dispose of its assets in accordance with the terms of the gift, grant, or agreement. Money received by the board under this subdivision must be deposited in the state treasury. The amount deposited is appropriated to the board to carry out its duties.

Sec. 53. [116].990] [DUTIES.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL DUTIES.] The board shall encourage the creation, performance, and appreciation of invention in the state. The board shall investigate and evaluate new methods to enhance invention.

Subd. 2. [GRANT PROGRAM.] The board shall establish an invention grant program to award grants to individuals, nonprofits, or private organizations to encourage the development of both commercial and social inventions.

Subd. 3. [TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE.] The board shall provide information services relating to invention to the general public.

Subd. 4. [COORDINATION.] The board may review all public and private programs relating to invention and innovation.

Subd. 5. [BUDGET.] The board shall adopt an annual budget and work program.

Subd. 6. [REPORT.] The board shall submit a report to the legislature and the governor by January 31 of each year. The report must include a review of invention activities in the state, a review of the board's activities, a listing of grants made under the invention grant program, an evaluation of invention initiatives, and recommendations concerning state support of invention activities.

Subd. 7. [STATE FUNDING PROHIBITED.] No state money may be appropriated to the board. The board must utilize private funds and nonstate public money to fund its activities.

Sec. 54. [116M.14] [DEFINITIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [TERMS.] For the purposes of this chapter, the following terms have the meaning given them.

Subd. 2. [BOARD.] "Board" means the urban initiative board.

Subd. 3. [COMMISSIONER.] "Commissioner" means the commissioner of trade and economic development.

Subd. 4. [LOW-INCOME AREA.] "Low-income area" means Minneapolis, St. Paul, and inner ring suburbs as defined by the metropolitan council that had a median household income below \$31,000 as reported in the 1990 census.

Subd. 5. [MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE.] "Minority business enterprise" means a business that is majority owned and operated by persons belonging to a racial or ethnic minority as defined in Code of Federal Regulations, title 49, section 23.5.

Sec. 55. [116M.15] [URBAN INITIATIVE BOARD.]

Subdivision 1. [CREATION; MEMBERSHIP.] The urban initiative board is created and consists of the commissioners of trade and economic development and jobs and training, the chair of the metropolitan council, and eight members from the general public appointed by the governor. Six of the public members must be representatives from minority business enterprises. No more than four of the public members may be of one gender. All public members must be experienced in business or economic development.

Subd. 2. [MEMBERSHIP TERMS.] The membership terms, compensation, removal, and filling of vacancies of public members of the board are as provided in section 15.0575.

Subd. 3. [CHAIR; OTHER OFFICERS.] The commissioner of trade and economic development shall serve as chair of the board. The board may elect other officers as necessary from its members.

Subd. 4. [STAFF.] The commissioner of trade and economic development shall provide staff, consultant support, materials, and administrative services necessary for the board's activities. The services must include personnel, budget, payroll, and contract administration.

Sec. 56. [116M.16] [POWERS.]

Subdivision 1. [CONTRACTS.] The board may enter into contracts and grant agreements necessary to carry out its responsibilities.

Subd. 2. [GIFTS; GRANTS; APPROPRIATION.] The board may apply for, accept, and disburse gifts, grants, loans, or other property from the United States, the state, private foundations, or any other source. It may enter into an agreement required for the gifts, grants, or loans and may hold, use, and dispose of its assets in accordance with the terms of the gift, grant, loan, or agreement. Money received by the board under this subdivision must be deposited in a separate account in the state treasury. The amount deposited is appropriated to the board to carry out its duties.

Sec. 57. [116M.17] [DUTIES.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL DUTIES.] The board shall investigate and evaluate methods to enhance urban development, particularly methods relating to economic diversification through minority business enterprises and job creation for minority and other persons in low-income areas. The enterprises shall include, but are not limited to, technologically innovative industries, value-added manufacturing, and information industries.

Subd. 2. [TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE.] The board through the department, shall provide technical assistance and development information services to state agencies, regional agencies, special districts, local governments, and the public, with special emphasis on minority communities.

Subd. 3. [BUDGET.] The board shall adopt an annual budget and work program and a biennial budget.

Subd. 4. [REPORTS.] The board shall submit an annual report to the legislature of an accounting of loans made under section 116M.18, including information on loans to minority business enterprises, the impact on low-income areas, and recommendations concerning minority business development and jobs for persons in low-income areas.

Sec. 58. [116M.18] [URBAN CHALLENGE GRANTS PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [ELIGIBILITY RULES.] The board shall make urban challenge grants for use in low-income areas to nonprofit corporations to encourage private investment, to provide jobs for minority persons and others in low-income areas, to create and strengthen minority business enterprises, and to promote economic development in a low-income area. The board shall adopt rules to establish criteria for determining loan eligibility.

Subd. 2. [CHALLENGE GRANT ELIGIBILITY; NONPROFIT CORPORATION.] The board may enter into agreements with nonprofit corporations to fund loans the nonprofit corporation makes in low-income areas under subdivision 4. A corporation must demonstrate that:

(1) its board of directors includes citizens experienced in development, minority business enterprises, and creating jobs in low-income areas;

(2) it has the technical skills to analyze projects;

(3) it is familiar with other available public and private funding sources and economic development programs;

(4) it can initiate and implement economic development projects;

(5) it can establish and administer a revolving loan account; and

(6) it can work with job referral networks which assist minority and other persons in low-income areas.

Subd. 3. [REVOLVING LOAN FUND.] The board shall establish a revolving loan fund to make grants to nonprofit corporations for the purpose of making loans to new and expanding businesses in a low-income area to promote minority business enterprises and job creation for minority and other persons in low-income areas. Eligible business enterprises include, but are not limited to, technologically innovative industries, value-added manufacturing, and information industries. Loan applications given preliminary approval by the nonprofit corporation must be forwarded to the board for approval. The commissioner must give final approval for each loan made by the nonprofit corporation. The amount of a grant may not exceed 50 percent of each loan. The amount of nonstate money must equal at least 50 percent for each loan.

Subd. 4. [BUSINESS LOAN CRITERIA.] (a) The criteria in this subdivision apply to loans made under the urban challenge grant program.

(b) Loans must be made to businesses that are not likely to undertake a project for which loans are sought without assistance from the urban challenge grant program.

(c) A loan must be used for a project designed to benefit persons in low-income areas through the creation of job opportunities for them. Among loan applicants, priority must be given, on the basis of the number of permanent jobs created or retained by the project and the proportion of nonpublic money leveraged by the loan. Priority must also be given for loans to the lowest income areas.

(d) The minimum loan is \$5,000 and the maximum is \$150,000.

(e) With the approval of the commissioner, a loan may be used to provide up to 50 percent of the private investment required to qualify for a grant from the economic recovery account.

(f) A loan must be matched by at least an equal amount of new private investment.

(g) A loan may not be used for a retail development project.

(h) The business must agree to work with job referral networks that focus on minority applicants from low-income areas.

Subd. 5. [REVOLVING FUND ADMINISTRATION; RULES.] (a) The board shall establish a minimum interest rate for loans to ensure that necessary loan administration costs are covered.

(b) Loan repayment amounts equal to one-half of the principal and interest must be deposited in a revolving fund created by the board for challenge grants. The remaining amount of the loan repayment may be deposited in a revolving loan fund created by the nonprofit corporation originating the loan being repaid for further distribution, consistent with the loan criteria specified in subdivision 4.

(c) Administrative expenses of the board may be paid out of the interest earned on loans.

Subd. 6. [RULES.] The board shall adopt rules to implement this section.

Subd. 7. [COOPERATION.] A nonprofit corporation that receives an urban challenge grant shall cooperate with other organizations, including but not limited to, community development corporations, community action agencies, and the Minnesota small business development centers.

Subd. 8. [REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.] A corporation that receives a challenge grant shall:

(1) submit an annual report to the board by September 30 of each year that includes a description of projects supported by the urban challenge grant program, an account of loans made during the calendar year, the program's impact on minority business enterprises and job creation for minority persons and persons in low-income areas, the source and amount of money collected and distributed by the urban challenge grant program, the program's assets and liabilities, and an explanation of administrative expenses; and

(2) provide for an independent annual audit to be performed in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and auditing standards and submit a copy of each annual audit report to the board.

Sec. 59. [129D.06] [GRANTS TO ARTS ORGANIZATIONS.]

Subdivision 1. [STATE ARTS ACCOUNT; APPROPRIATION.] The state arts account consists of amounts credited to it by law. Money in the account is appropriated to the board for annual distribution as follows, after deducting the board's reasonable expenses for administration:

(1) 85 percent must be used to fund grants to qualified arts organizations as provided in subdivision 2; and

(2) 15 percent must be distributed to the regional arts councils designated by the board through the board acting as a fiscal agent for the regional arts councils.

Subd. 2. [GRANTS; AMOUNT.] The board shall make grants to qualified arts organizations. The amount of the grant to each organization is the percentage of the organization's three-year average cash operating expense budget for nonprofit arts activities that, when applied to the three-year nonprofit average cash operating expense budgets of all qualified arts organizations, equals the amount available for distribution from the state arts account under subdivision 1. The board shall require an organization that receives a grant under this section to annually report to the board in the form required by the board the purposes for which the grant was used.

As used in this section, "qualified arts organization" means a sponsoring organization as defined in section 129D.01, paragraph (d), that has applied for a grant under this section if the board finds that the organization:

(1) has a three-year average cash operating expense budget for nonprofit arts activities of at least \$100,000, as adjusted annually by a consumer price index determined by the board; and

(2) is a recipient of a grant from the board or from one of the regional arts councils in the fiscal year in which application is made.

Under emergency circumstances as defined by the board, a sponsoring organization may be reevaluated using established review criteria prior to receiving a grant under this section.

A "qualified arts organization" does not include an organization that receives any proceeds from a tax levy under section 450.25.

Sec. 60. [138A.01] [LABOR INTERPRETIVE CENTER; BOARD OF DIRECTORS.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT.] The labor interpretive center is a public corporation of the state and is not subject to the laws governing a state agency except as provided in this chapter.

Subd. 2. [PURPOSE.] The purpose of the labor interpretive center is to celebrate the contribution of working people to the past, present, and future of Minnesota; to spur an interest among the people of Minnesota in their own family and community traditions of work; to help young people discover their work skills and opportunities for a productive working life; and to advance the teaching of work and labor studies in schools and colleges.

Subd. 3. [BOARD OF DIRECTORS.] The center is governed by a board of ten directors. The membership terms, compensation, removal, and filling of vacancies of members of the board are as provided in section 15.0575. Membership of the board consists of:

(1) three directors appointed by the governor;

(2) one director appointed by the mayor of St. Paul, subject to the approval of the city council;

(3) three directors appointed by the speaker of the house of representatives; and

(4) three directors appointed by the subcommittee on committees of the senate committee on rules and administration.

Directors must be representatives of labor, business, state and local government, local education authorities, and arts groups. The chairs of the senate committee on jobs, energy, and community development and the house of representatives committee on labor-management relations shall serve as nonvoting members.

The board shall select a chair of the board from its members, and any other officers of the board deemed necessary.

Subd. 4. [LOCATION.] The center must be located in the capital area of St. Paul as defined in section 15.50, subdivision 2, at the site recommended by the capitol area architectural and planning board.

Subd. 5. [MEETINGS OF THE BOARD.] The board shall meet at least twice a year and may hold additional meetings upon giving notice. Board meetings are subject to section 471.705.

Subd. 6. [CONFLICT OF INTEREST.] A director, employee, or officer of the center may not participate in or vote on a decision of the board relating to a matter in which the director has either a direct or indirect financial interest or a conflict of interest as described in section 10A.07.

Subd. 7. [TORT CLAIMS.] The center is a state agency for purposes of section 3.736.

Sec. 61. [138A.02] [CENTER PERSONNEL.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERALLY.] The board shall appoint an executive director of the center to serve in the unclassified service. The executive director must be chosen on the basis of training, experience, and knowledge in the areas of labor history and the changing world of work. The center shall employ staff, consultants, and other parties necessary to carry out the mission of the center.

Subd. 2. [STATUS OF EMPLOYEES.] Employees of the center are executive branch state employees.

Sec. 62. [138A.03] [POWERS; DUTIES; BOARD; CENTER.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERAL POWERS.] The board has the powers necessary for the care, management, and direction of the center. The powers include: (1) overseeing the planning and construction of the center as funds are available; (2) leasing a temporary facility for the center during development of its organization and program; and (3) establishing advisory groups as needed to advise the board on program, policy, and related issues.

Subd. 2. [DUTIES.] The center is a state agency for purposes of the following accounting and budgeting requirements:

(1) financial reports and other requirements under section 16A.06;

(2) the state budget system under sections 16A.095, 16A.10, and 16A.11;

(3) the state allotment and encumbrance, and accounting systems under sections 16A.14, subdivisions 2, 3, 4, and 5; and 16A.15, subdivisions 2 and 3; and

(4) indirect costs under section 16A.127.

Subd. 3. [PROGRAM.] The board shall appoint a program advisory group to oversee the development of the center's programming. It must consist of representatives of cultural and educational organizations, labor education specialists, and curriculum supervisors in local schools. The program of the center may be implemented through exhibits, performances, seminars, films and multimedia presentations, participatory programs for all ages, and a resource center for teachers. Collaborative program development is encouraged with technical colleges, the Minnesota historical society, and other cultural institutions.

Subd. 4. [BOARD OF GOVERNORS.] The board may establish a board of governors to incorporate as a nonprofit organization to receive donations for the center and to serve as honorary advisors to the board of directors.

Sec. 63. [138A.04] [LABOR INTERPRETIVE CENTER ACCOUNT.]

The Minnesota labor interpretive center account is an account in the special revenue fund. Funds in the account not needed for the immediate purposes of the center may be invested by the state board of investment in any way authorized by section 11A.24. Funds in the account are appropriated to the center to be used as provided in this chapter.

Sec. 64. [138A.05] [AUDITS.]

The center is subject to the auditing requirements of sections 3.971 and 3.972.

Sec. 65. [138A.06] [ANNUAL REPORTS.]

The board shall submit annual reports to the legislature on the planning, development, and activities of the center. The board shall supply more frequent reports if requested.

Sec. 66. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 216B.62, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [ASSESSING ALL PUBLIC UTILITIES.] (a) The department and commission shall quarterly, at least 30 days before the start of each quarter, estimate the total of their expenditures in the performance of their duties relating to (1) public utilities under section 216A.085, and sections 216B.01 to 216B.67, other than amounts chargeable to public utilities under subdivision 2 or 6, and alternative energy engineering activity under section 216C.261. The remainder, except the amount assessed against cooperatives and municipalities for alternative energy engineering activity under subdivision 5, shall be assessed by the commission and department to the several public utilities in proportion to their respective gross operating revenues from retail sales of gas or electric service within the state during the last calendar year. The assessment shall be paid into the state treasury within 30 days after the bill has been mailed to the several public utilities, which shall constitute notice of the assessment and demand of payment thereof. The total amount which may be assessed to the public utilities, under authority of this subdivision, shall not exceed ~~one-eighth~~ one-sixth of one percent of the total gross operating revenues of the public utilities during the calendar year from retail sales of gas or electric service within the state. The assessment for the third quarter of each fiscal year shall be adjusted to compensate for the amount by which actual expenditures by the commission and department for the preceding fiscal year were more or less than the estimated expenditures previously assessed.

Sec. 67. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 216B.62, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [ASSESSING COOPERATIVES AND MUNICIPALS.] The commission and department may charge cooperative electric associations and municipal electric utilities their proportionate share of the expenses incurred in the adjudication of service area disputes and the costs incurred in the adjudication of complaints over service standards, practices, and rates. Cooperative electric associations electing to become subject to rate regulation by the commission pursuant to section 216B.026, subdivision 4, are also subject to this section. Neither a cooperative electric association nor a municipal electric utility is liable for costs and expenses in a calendar year in excess of the limitation on costs that may be assessed against public utilities under subdivision 2. A cooperative electric association or municipal electric utility may object to and appeal bills of the commission and department as provided in subdivision 4.

The department shall assess cooperatives and municipalities for the costs of alternative energy engineering activities under section 216C.261. Each cooperative and municipality shall be assessed in proportion that its gross operating revenues for the sale of gas and electric service within the state for the last calendar year bears to the total of those revenues for all public utilities, cooperatives, and municipalities.

Sec. 68. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 237.295, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [ASSESSMENT OF COSTS.] The department and commission shall quarterly, at least 30 days before the start of each quarter, estimate the total of their expenditures in the performance of their duties relating to telephone companies, other than amounts chargeable to telephone companies under subdivision 1 ~~or 5, or 6~~. The remainder must be assessed by the department to the telephone companies operating in this state in proportion to their respective gross jurisdictional operating revenues during the last calendar year. The assessment must be paid into the state treasury within 30 days after the bill has been mailed to the telephone companies. The bill constitutes notice of the assessment and demand of payment. The total amount that may be assessed to the telephone companies under this subdivision may not exceed one-eighth of one percent of the total gross jurisdictional operating revenues during the calendar year. The assessment for the third quarter of each fiscal year must be adjusted to compensate for the amount by which actual expenditures by the commission and department for the preceding fiscal year were more or less than the estimated expenditures previously assessed. A telephone company with gross jurisdictional operating revenues of less than \$5,000 is exempt from assessments under this subdivision.

Sec. 69. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 237.295, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. [EXTENDED AREA SERVICE BALLOTING ACCOUNT; APPROPRIATION.] The extended area service balloting account is created as a separate account in the special revenue fund in the state treasury. The commission shall render separate bills to telephone companies only for direct balloting costs incurred by the commission under section 237.161. The bill constitutes notice of the assessment and demand of payment. The amount of a bill assessed by the commission under this subdivision must be paid by the telephone company into the state treasury within 30 days from the date of assessment. Money received under this subdivision must be credited to the extended area service balloting account and is appropriated to the commission.

Sec. 70. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.011, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [DUTIES AND POWERS.] To carry out the responsibilities in section 239.01 and subdivision 1, the director:

(1) shall take charge of, keep, and maintain in good order the standard of weights and measures of the state and keep a seal so formed as to impress, when appropriate, the letters "MINN" and the date of sealing upon the weights and measures that are sealed;

(2) has general supervision of the weights, measures, and weighing and measuring devices offered for sale, sold, or in use in the state;

(3) shall maintain traceability of the state standards to the national standards of the National Institute of Standards and Technology;

(4) shall enforce this chapter;

(5) shall grant variances from department rules, within the limits set by rule, when appropriate to maintain good commercial practices or when enforcement of the rules would cause undue hardship;

(6) shall conduct investigations to ensure compliance with this chapter;

(7) may delegate to division personnel the responsibilities, duties, and powers contained in this section;

(8) shall test annually, and approve when found to be correct, the standards of weights and measures used by the division, by a town, statutory or home rule charter city, or county within the state, or by a person using standards to repair, adjust, or calibrate commercial weights and measures;

(9) shall inspect and test weights and measures kept, offered, or exposed for sale;

(10) shall inspect and test, to ascertain if they are correct, weights and measures commercially used to:

(i) determine the weight, measure, or count of commodities or things sold, offered, or exposed for sale, on the basis of weight, measure, or count; and

(ii) compute the basic charge or payment for services rendered on the basis of weight, measure, or count;

(11) shall approve for use and mark weights and measures that are found to be correct;

(12) shall reject, and mark as rejected, weights and measures that are found to be incorrect and may seize them if those weights and measures:

(i) are not corrected within the time specified by the director;

(ii) are used or disposed of in a manner not specifically authorized by the director; or

(iii) are found to be both incorrect and not capable of being made correct, in which case the director shall condemn those weights and measures;

(13) shall weigh, measure, or inspect packaged commodities kept, offered, or exposed for sale, sold, or in the process of delivery, to determine whether they contain the amount represented and whether they are kept, offered, or exposed for sale in accordance with this chapter and department rules. In carrying out this section, the director must employ recognized sampling procedures, such as those contained in National Institute of Standards and Technology Handbook 133, "Checking the Net Contents of Packaged Goods";

(14) shall prescribe the appropriate term or unit of weight or measure to be used for a specific commodity when an existing term or declaration of quantity does not facilitate value comparisons by consumers, or creates an opportunity for consumer confusion;

(15) shall allow reasonable variations from the stated quantity of contents, including variations caused by loss or gain of moisture during the course of good distribution practice or by unavoidable deviations in good manufacturing practice, only after the commodity has entered commerce within the state;

(16) shall inspect and test petroleum products in accordance with this chapter and chapter 296;

(17) shall distribute and post notices for used motor oil and lead acid battery recycling in accordance with sections 239.54, 325E.11, and 325E.115; and

(18) shall collect inspection fees in accordance with sections 239.10, ~~239.52, and 239.78.~~ and 239.101; and

(19) shall provide metrological services and support to businesses and individuals in the United States who wish to market products and services in the member nations of the European Economic Community, and other nations outside of the United States by:

(i) meeting, to the extent practicable, the measurement quality assurance standards described in the International Standards Organization ISO 9000, Guide 25;

(ii) maintaining, to the extent practicable, certification of the metrology laboratory by a governing body appointed by the European Economic Community; and

(iii) providing calibration and consultation services to metrology laboratories in government and private industry in the United States.

Sec. 71. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.10, is amended to read:

239.10 [ANNUAL INSPECTION; FEE.]

The department shall charge a fee to the owner for the costs of the regular inspection of scales, weights, measures, and weighing or measuring devices. The cost of any other inspection must be paid by the owner if the inspection is performed at the owner's request or if the inspection is made at the request of some other person and the scale, weight, measure, or weighing or measuring device is found to be incorrect. The department may fix the fees and expenses for regular inspections and special services by rule pursuant to section 16A.128, except that no additional fee may be charged for retail petroleum pumps, petroleum vehicle meters, and petroleum bulk meters that dispense petroleum products for which the petroleum inspection fee required by section 239.78 is collected. Money collected by the department for its regular inspections, special services, fees, and penalties must be paid into the state treasury and credited to the state general fund. The director shall inspect all weights and measures annually, or as often as deemed possible within budget and staff limitations.

Sec. 72. [239.101] [INSPECTION FEES.]

Subdivision 1. [FEE SETTING AND COST RECOVERY.] The department shall recover the amount appropriated to the weights and measures program through revenue from two separate fee systems under subdivisions 2 and 3, and according to the fee-setting and cost-recovery requirements in subdivisions 4, 5, and 6.

Subd. 2. [WEIGHTS AND MEASURES FEES.] The director shall charge a fee to the owner for inspecting and testing weights and measures, providing metrology services and consultation, and providing petroleum quality assurance tests at the request of a licensed distributor. Money collected by the director must be paid into the state treasury and credited to the state general fund.

Subd. 3. [PETROLEUM INSPECTION FEE.] A person who owns petroleum products held in storage at a pipeline terminal, river terminal, or refinery shall pay a petroleum inspection fee of 85 cents for every 1,000 gallons sold or withdrawn from the terminal or refinery storage. The commissioner of revenue shall collect the fee. The revenue from the fee must first be applied to cover the amounts appropriated for petroleum product quality inspection expenses, for the inspection and testing of petroleum product measuring equipment, and for petroleum supply monitoring under chapter 216C.

The commissioner of revenue shall credit a person for inspection fees previously paid in error or for any material exported or sold for export from the state upon filing of a report as prescribed by the commissioner of revenue. The commissioner of revenue may collect the inspection fee along with any taxes due under chapter 296.

Subd. 4. [SETTING WEIGHTS AND MEASURES FEES.] The department shall review its schedule of inspection fees at the end of each six months. When a review indicates that the schedule of inspection fees should be adjusted, the commissioner shall fix the fees by rule, in accordance with section 16A.128, to ensure that the fees charged are sufficient to recover all costs connected with the inspections.

Subd. 5. [SETTING PETROLEUM INSPECTION FEE.] When the department estimates that inspection costs will exceed the revenue from the fee, the commissioner shall notify the commissioner of finance. The commissioner of finance shall then request a fee increase from the legislature.

Subd. 6. [COST RECOVERY REQUIREMENTS.] The cost of inspection activities and services not specified in subdivisions 2 and 3, including related overhead costs, must be equitably apportioned and recovered by the fees.

Sec. 73. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.791, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [OXYGENATE RECORDS; SELF AUDITS.] A registered oxygenate blender shall commission an attestation engagement performed by a certified public accountant audit records to investigate demonstrate compliance with this section and with EPA oxygenated fuel requirements. The audit report, including the cumulative record of gasoline oxygenate blends, must be submitted to the director, as prescribed by the director, within 120 days after the end of each carbon monoxide control period.

Sec. 74. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.791, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. [DISCLOSURE.] A person responsible for the product who delivers, distributes, sells, or offers to sell gasoline in a carbon monoxide control area, during a carbon monoxide control period, shall provide, at the time of delivery, a bill of lading or shipping manifest to the person who receives the gasoline. For oxygenated gasoline, the bill of lading or shipping manifest must include the identity and the volume percentage or gallons of oxygenate included in the gasoline, and it must state: "This fuel contains an oxygenate. Do not blend this fuel with ethanol or with any other oxygenate." For nonoxygenated gasoline, the bill or manifest must state: "This fuel must not be sold at retail or used in a carbon monoxide control area." This subdivision does not apply to sales or transfers of gasoline when the gasoline is dispensed into the supply tanks of motor vehicles.

Sec. 75. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.80, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [VIOLATIONS; ACTIONS OF DEPARTMENT.] The director, or any delegated employee shall use the methods in section 239.75 to enforce sections 239.10; 239.101, subdivision 3; 239.761, ~~239.78;~~ 239.79; ~~239.791;~~ and 239.792.

Sec. 76. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 239.80, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [PENALTY.] A person who fails to comply with any provision of section 239.10; 239.101, subdivision 3; 239.761, ~~239.78;~~ 239.79; ~~239.791;~~ or 239.792, is guilty of a misdemeanor.

Sec. 77. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 257.0755, is amended to read:

257.0755 [OFFICE OF OMBUDSPERSON; CREATION; QUALIFICATIONS; FUNCTION.]

An ombudsperson for families shall be appointed to operate independently but under the auspices of each of the following groups: the Indian Affairs Council, the Spanish-Speaking Affairs Council, the Council on Black Minnesotans, and the Council on Asian-Pacific Minnesotans. Each of these groups shall select its own ombudsperson subject to final approval by the advisory board established under section 257.0768. Each ombudsperson shall serve at the pleasure of the advisory board, shall be in the unclassified service, shall be selected without regard to political affiliation, and shall be a person highly competent and qualified to analyze questions of law, administration, and public policy regarding the protection and placement of children from families of color. In addition, the ombudsperson must be experienced in dealing with communities of color and knowledgeable about the needs of those communities. No individual may serve as ombudsperson while holding any other public office. The ombudsperson shall have the authority to investigate decisions, acts, and other matters of an agency, program, or facility providing protection or placement services to children of color. Money appropriated for each office of ombudsperson from the general fund or the special fund authorized by section 256.01, subdivision 2, clause (15), is under the control of the office of ombudsperson for which it is appropriated.

Sec. 78. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.022, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [DETERMINATION AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT.] (a) In addition to all other contributions, assessments, and payment obligations under chapter 268, each employer, except an employer making payments in lieu of contributions under section 268.06, subdivision 25, 26, 27, or 28, is liable for a special assessment levied at the rate of one-tenth of one percent per year on all wages for purposes of the contribution payable under section 268.06, subdivision 2, as defined in section 268.04, subdivision 25. Such assessment shall become due and be paid by each employer to the department of jobs and training on the same schedule and in the same manner as other contributions required by section 268.06.

(b) The special assessment levied under this section shall not affect the computation of any other contributions, assessments, or payment obligations due under this chapter.

(c) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, if on June 30 of any year the unobligated balance of the special assessment fund under this section is greater than \$30,000,000, the special assessment for the following year only shall be levied at a rate of 1/20th of one percent on all wages identified for this purpose under this subdivision.

Sec. 79. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.022, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [DISBURSEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUNDS.] (a) The money collected under this section shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to a dedicated fund to provide for the ~~dislocated worker employment and training~~ programs established under sections 268.975 to 268.98; including vocational guidance, training, placement, and job development.

(b) All money in the dedicated fund is appropriated to the commissioner who must act as the fiscal agent for the money and must disburse the money for the purposes of this section, not allowing the money to be used for any other obligation of the state. All money in the dedicated fund shall be deposited, administered, and disbursed in the same manner and under the same conditions and requirements as are provided by law for the other dedicated funds in the state treasury, except that all interest or net income resulting from the investment or deposit of money in the fund shall accrue to the fund for the purposes of the fund.

(c) No more than five percent of the dedicated funds collected in each fiscal year may be used by the department of jobs and training for its administrative costs.

(d) Reimbursement for costs related to collection of the special assessment shall be in an amount negotiated between the commissioner and the United States Department of Labor.

(e) The dedicated funds, less amounts under ~~paragraph paragraphs~~ (c), must and (d) shall be allocated as follows:

(1) ~~50 40~~ percent to be allocated according to paragraph (e) to the substate grantees under subchapter III of the Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1661a in proportion to each substate area's share of the federal allocated funds, to be used to assist dislocated workers under the standards in section 268.98;

(2) ~~50 percent to fund specific programs proposed under the state plan request for proposal process and recommended by the governor's job training council. This fund shall be used for state plan request for proposal programs addressing plant closings or layoffs regardless of size; and~~

(3) ~~in fiscal years 1991, 1992, and 1993, any amounts transferred to the general fund or obligated before July 1, 1991, shall be excluded from the calculation under this paragraph.~~

(e) ~~In the event that a substate grantee has obligated 100 percent of its formula allocated federal funds under subchapter III of the Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1651 et seq., and has demonstrated appropriate use of the funds to the governor's job training council, the substate grantee may request and the commissioner shall provide additional funds to the substate area in an amount equal to the federal formula allocated funds. When a substate grantee has obligated 100 percent of the additional funds provided under this section, and has demonstrated appropriate use of the funds to the governor's job training council, the substate grantee may request and the commissioner shall provide further additional funds in amounts equal to the federal formula allocated funds until the substate area receives its proportionate share of funds under paragraph (d), clause (1).~~

(f) ~~By December 31 of each fiscal year each substate grantee and the governor's job training council shall report to the commissioner on the extent to which funds under this section are committed and the anticipated demand for funds for the remainder of the fiscal year. The commissioner shall reallocate those funds that the substate grantees and the council do not anticipate expending for the remainder of the fiscal year to be available for requests from other substate grantees or other dislocated worker projects proposed to the governor's job training council which demonstrate a need for additional funding.~~

(g) ~~Due to the anticipated quarterly variations in the amounts collected under this section, the amounts allocated under paragraph (d) must be based on collections for each quarter. Any amount collected in the final two quarters of the fiscal year, but not allocated, obligated or expended in the fiscal year, shall be available for allocation, obligation and expenditure in the following fiscal year. annually to substate grantees for provision of expeditious response activities under section 268.9771 and worker adjustment services under section 268.9781; and~~

(2) 60 percent to be allocated to activities and programs authorized under sections 268.975 to 268.98.

(f) Any funds not allocated, obligated, or expended in a fiscal year shall be available for allocation, obligation, and expenditure in the following fiscal year.

Sec. 80. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.361, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [TARGETED YOUTH.] "Targeted youth" means at-risk persons that who are at least 16 years of age but not older than ~~24~~ 24 years of age, are eligible for the high school graduation incentive program under section 126.22, subdivisions 2 and 2a, or are economically disadvantaged as defined in United States Code, title 29, section 1503, and are part of one of the following groups:

(1) persons who are not attending any school and have not received a secondary school diploma or its equivalent;
or

(2) persons currently enrolled in a traditional or alternative school setting or a GED program and who, in the opinion of an official of the school, are in danger of dropping out of the school.

Sec. 81. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.361, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. [VERY LOW INCOME.] "Very low income" means incomes that are at or less than ~~30~~ 50 percent of the area median income for the Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan area, adjusted for family size, as estimated by the department of housing and urban development.

Sec. 82. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.362, is amended to read:

268.362 [GRANTS.]

Subdivision 1. [GENERALLY.] (a) The commissioner shall make grants to eligible organizations for programs to provide education and training services to targeted youth. The purpose of these programs is to provide specialized training and work experience ~~to at-risk for~~ targeted youth who have not been served effectively by the current educational system. The programs are to include a work experience component with work projects that result in the rehabilitation, improvement, or construction of (1) residential units for the homeless, or (2) education, social service, or health facilities which are owned by a public agency or a private nonprofit organization.

(b) Eligible facilities must principally provide services to homeless or very low income individuals and families, and include the following:

(1) Head Start or day care centers;

(2) homeless, battered women, or other shelters;

(3) transitional housing;

(4) youth or senior citizen centers; and

(5) community health centers.

Two or more eligible organizations may jointly apply for a grant. The commissioner shall administer the grant program.

Subd. 2. [GRANT APPLICATIONS; AWARDS.] Interested eligible organizations must apply to the commissioner for the grants. The advisory committee must review the applications and provide to the commissioner a list of recommended eligible organizations that the advisory committee determines meet the requirements for receiving a grant. The total grant award for any program may not exceed ~~\$50,000~~ \$80,000 per year. In awarding grants, the advisory committee and the commissioner must give priority to:

(1) continuing and expanding effective programs by providing grant money to organizations that are operating or have operated successfully a successful program that meets the program purposes under section 268.364; and

(2) distributing programs throughout the state through start-up grants for programs in areas that are not served by an existing program.

To receive a grant under this section, the eligible organization must match the grant money with at least an equal amount of nonstate money. The commissioner must verify that the eligible organization has matched the grant money. Nothing in this subdivision shall prevent an eligible organization from applying for and receiving grants for more than one program. A grant received by an eligible organization from the federal Youthbuild Project under United States Code, title 42, section 5091, is nonstate money and may be used to meet the state match requirement. State grant money awarded under this section may be used by grantee organizations for match requirements of a federal Youthbuild Project.

Sec. 83. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.363, is amended to read:

268.363 [ADVISORY COMMITTEE.]

A 13-member advisory committee is established as provided under section 15.059 to assist the commissioner in selecting eligible organizations to receive planning program grants, evaluating the final reports of each organization, and providing recommendations to the legislature. Members of the committee may be reimbursed for expenses but may not receive any other compensation for service on the committee. The advisory committee consists of representatives of the commissioners of education, human services, and jobs and training; a representative of the chancellor of vocational education; a representative of the commissioner of the housing finance agency; the director of the office of jobs policy; and seven public members appointed by the governor. Each of the following groups must be represented by a public member experienced in working with targeted youth: labor organizations, local educators, community groups, consumers, local housing developers, youth between the ages of 16 and 24 who have a period of homelessness, and other homeless persons. At least three of the public members must be from outside of the metropolitan area as defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2. The commissioner may provide staff to the advisory committee to assist it in carrying out its purpose.

Sec. 84. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.364, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [PROGRAM PURPOSE.] The grants awarded under section 268.362 are for a youth employment and training program directed at targeted youth who are likely to be at risk of not completing their high school education. Each program must include education, work experience, and job skills, and leadership training and peer support components. Each participant must be offered counseling and other services to identify and overcome problems that might interfere with successfully completing the program.

Sec. 85. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.364, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [WORK EXPERIENCE COMPONENT.] A work experience component must be included in each program. The work experience component must provide vocational skills training in an industry where there is a viable expectation of job opportunities and. A training subsidy, living allowance, or stipend, not to exceed an amount equal to 100 percent of the poverty line for a family of two as defined in United States Code, title 42, section 673, paragraph (2), may be provided to program participants. The wage or stipend must be provided to participants who are recipients of public assistance in a manner or amount which will not reduce public assistance benefits. The work experience component must be designed so that work projects result in (1) the expansion or improvement of residential units for homeless persons and very low income families, and or (2) rehabilitation, improvement, or construction of eligible education, social service, or health facilities that principally serve homeless or very low income individuals and families. Any work project must include direct supervision by individuals skilled in each specific vocation. Program participants may earn credits toward the completion of their secondary education from their participation in the work experience component.

Sec. 86. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.364, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 6. [LEADERSHIP TRAINING AND PEER SUPPORT COMPONENT.] Each program must provide participants with meaningful opportunities to develop leadership skills such as decision making, problem solving, and negotiating. The program must encourage participants to develop strong peer group ties that support their mutual pursuit of skills and values.

Sec. 87. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.365, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [PRIORITY FOR HOUSING.] Any residential or transitional housing units that become available through the program a work project that is part of the program described in section 268.364 must be allocated in the following order:

- (1) homeless individuals targeted youth who have participated in constructing, rehabilitating, or improving the unit;
- (2) homeless families with at least one dependent;
- (3) other homeless individuals;
- (4) other very low income families and individuals; and
- (5) families or individuals that receive public assistance and that do not qualify in any other priority group.

Sec. 88. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.55, is amended to read:

268.55 [FOOD BANK FOODSHELVE PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [DISTRIBUTION OF APPROPRIATION.] The economic opportunity office of the department of jobs and training shall distribute funds appropriated to it by law for that purpose to food banks, as defined in section 31.50, subdivision 1, paragraph (b). A food bank qualifies under this section if it is a nonprofit corporation, or is affiliated with to the Minnesota foodshelf association, a statewide association of foodshelves organized as a nonprofit corporation, as defined under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and distributes food to distribute to qualifying foodshelves. A foodshelf qualifies under this section if:

- (1) it is a nonprofit corporation, or is affiliated with a nonprofit corporation, as defined in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986;
- (2) it distributes standard food orders without charge to needy individuals. The standard food order must consist of at least a two-day supply or six pounds per person of nutritionally balanced food items;
- (3) it does not limit food distributions to individuals of a particular religious affiliation, race, or other criteria unrelated to need or to requirements necessary to administration of a fair and orderly distribution system;
- (4) it does not use the money received or the food distribution program to foster or advance religious or political views; and
- (5) it has a stable address and directly serves individuals.

Subd. 2. [APPLICATION.] In order to receive money appropriated for food banks under this section, a food bank the Minnesota foodshelf association must apply to the economic opportunity office department of jobs and training. The application must be in a form prescribed by the economic opportunity office and must contain information required by the economic opportunity office to verify that the applicant is a qualifying food bank, and the amount the applicant is entitled to receive under subdivision 3 department of jobs and training and must indicate the proportion of money each qualifying foodshelf shall receive. Applications must be filed at the times and for the periods determined by the economic opportunity office department of jobs and training.

Subd. 3. [DISTRIBUTION FORMULA.] The economic opportunity office Minnesota foodshelf association shall distribute money appropriated distributed to it for by the department of jobs and training to foodshelf programs to qualifying food banks in proportion to the number of individuals served by the each foodshelf programs supplied by the food bank program. The economic opportunity office department of jobs and training shall gather data from applications the Minnesota foodshelf association or other appropriate sources to determine the proportionate amount each qualifying foodshelf program is entitled to receive. The economic opportunity office department of jobs and training may increase or decrease the qualifying food bank's foodshelf program's proportionate amount if it determines the increase or decrease is necessary or appropriate to meet changing needs or demands.

Subd. 4. [USE OF MONEY.] At least 95 96 percent of the money distributed to food banks the Minnesota foodshelf association under this section must be used distributed to foodshelf programs to purchase nutritious food for, transport and coordinate the distribution without charge to qualifying foodshelves serving of nutritious food to needy individuals and families. No more than five four percent of the money may be expended for other expenses, such as rent, salaries, and other administrative expenses of the food banks Minnesota foodshelf association.

Subd. 5. [ENFORCEMENT.] ~~Recipient food banks~~ The Minnesota foodshelf association must retain records documenting expenditure of the money and comply with any additional requirements imposed by the ~~economic opportunity office department of jobs and training~~. The economic opportunity office department of jobs and training may require a ~~food bank receiving funds under this section~~ the Minnesota foodshelf association to report on its use of the funds. The ~~economic opportunity office department of jobs and training~~ may require that the report contain an independent audit. If ineligible expenditures are made by a ~~food bank~~ the Minnesota foodshelf association, the ineligible amount must be repaid to the ~~economic opportunity office department of jobs and training~~ and deposited in the general fund.

Subd. 6. [ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES.] All funds appropriated under this section must be distributed to the Minnesota foodshelf association as provided under this section with deduction by the commissioner for administrative expenses limited to 1.8 percent.

Sec. 89. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.914, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [STATE SUPPLEMENT FOR FEDERAL GRANTEES.] (a) The commissioner of jobs and training shall distribute money appropriated for that purpose to Head Start program grantees to expand services to additional low-income children. Money must be allocated to each project Head Start grantee in existence on the effective date of Laws 1989, chapter 282. Migrant and Indian reservation grantees must be initially allocated money based on the grantees' share of federal funds. The remaining money must be initially allocated to the remaining local agencies based equally on the agencies' share of federal funds and on the proportion of eligible children in the agencies' service area who are not currently being served. A Head Start grantee must be funded at a per child rate equal to its contracted, federally funded base level for program accounts 20 to 26 at the start of the fiscal year. In allocating funds under this paragraph, the commissioner of jobs and training must assure that each Head Start grantee is allocated no less funding in any fiscal year than was allocated to that grantee in fiscal year 1993. The commissioner may provide additional funding to grantees for start-up costs incurred by grantees due to the increased number of children to be served. Before paying money to the grantees, the commissioner shall notify each grantee of its initial allocation, how the money must be used, and the number of low-income children that must be served with the allocation. Each grantee must notify the commissioner of the number of additional low-income children it will be able to serve. For any grantee that cannot serve additional children to its full allocation, the commissioner shall reduce the allocation proportionately. Money available after the initial allocations are reduced must be redistributed to eligible grantees.

(b) Up to 11 percent of the funds appropriated annually may be used to provide grants to local head start agencies to provide funds for innovative programs designed either to target Head Start resources to particular at-risk groups of children or to provide services in addition to those currently allowable under federal head start regulations. The commissioner shall award funds for innovative programs under this paragraph on a competitive basis.

Sec. 90. [268.92] [LEAD ABATEMENT PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITIONS.] For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings given them.

(a) "Certified worker" means a lead abatement worker certified by the commissioner of health under section 144.878, subdivision 5.

(b) "Certified trainer" means a lead trainer certified by the commissioner of health under section 144.878, subdivision 5.

(c) "Certified worker" means a lead abatement worker certified by the commissioner of health under section 144.878, subdivision 5.

(d) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of jobs and training.

(e) "Eligible organization" means a licensed contractor, certified trainer, city, board of health, community health department, community action agency as defined in section 268.52, or community development corporation.

(f) "High risk for toxic lead exposure" has the meaning given in section 144.871, subdivision 7a.

(g) "Licensed contractor" means a contractor licensed by the department of health under section 144.876.

(h) "Removal and replacement abatement" means lead abatement on residential property that requires retrofitting and conforms to the rules established under section 144.878.

(i) "Swab team" has the meaning given in section 144.871, subdivision 9.

Subd. 2. [GRANTS; ADMINISTRATION.] Within the limits of the available appropriation, the commissioner may make demonstration and training grants to eligible organizations for programs to train workers for swab teams and removal and replacement abatement, and to provide swab team services and removal and replacement abatement for residential property.

Grants awarded under this section must be made in consultation with the commissioners of the department of health, and the housing finance agency, and representatives of neighborhood groups from areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure, a labor organization, the lead coalition, community action agencies, and the legal aid society. The consulting team shall review grant applications and recommend awards to eligible organizations that meet requirements for receiving a grant under this section.

Subd. 3. [APPLICANTS.] (a) Interested eligible organizations may apply to the commissioner for grants under this section. Two or more eligible organizations may jointly apply for a grant. Priority shall be given to community action agencies in greater Minnesota and to either community action agencies or neighborhood based nonprofit organizations in cities of the first class. 3.75 percent of the total allocation may be used for administrative costs. Applications must provide information requested by the commissioner, including at least the information required to assess the factors listed in paragraph (d).

(b) The commissioner of jobs and training shall coordinate with the commissioner of health and local boards of health to provide swab team services. Swab teams, administered by the commissioner of jobs and training, that are not engaged daily in fulfilling the requirements of section 144.872, subdivision 5, must deliver swab team services in census tracts known to be at high risk for toxic lead exposure.

(c) Any additional grants shall be made to establish swab teams for primary prevention, without environmental lead testing, in census tracts at high risk for toxic lead exposure.

(d) In evaluating grant applications, the commissioner shall consider the following criteria:

(1) the use of licensed contractors and certified lead abatement workers for residential lead abatement;

(2) the participation of neighborhood groups and individuals, as swab team members, in areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure;

(3) plans for the provision of primary prevention through swab team services in areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure on a census tract basis without environmental lead testing;

(4) plans for supervision, training, career development, and postprogram placement of swab team members;

(5) plans for resident and property owner education on lead safety;

(6) plans for distributing cleaning supplies to area residents and educating residents and property owners on cleaning techniques;

(7) cost estimates for training, swab team services, equipment, monitoring, and administration;

(8) measures of program effectiveness; and

(9) coordination of program activities with other federal, state, and local public health, job training, apprenticeship, and housing renovation programs including the emergency jobs program under sections 268.672 to 268.881.

Subd. 4. [LEAD ABATEMENT CONTRACTORS.] (a) Eligible organizations and licensed lead abatement contractors may participate in the lead abatement program. An organization receiving a grant under this section must assure that all participating contractors are licensed and that all swab team, and removal and replacement employees are certified by the department of health under section 144.878, subdivision 5. Organizations and licensed contractors may distinguish between interior and exterior services in assigning duties and may participate in the program by:

- (1) providing on-the-job training for swab teams;
- (2) providing swab team services to meet the requirements of section 144.872;
- (3) providing removal and replacement abatement using skilled craft workers;
- (4) providing primary prevention, without environmental lead testing, in census tracts at high risk for toxic lead exposure;

(5) providing lead dust cleaning supplies, as described in section 144.872, subdivision 4, to residents; or

(6) instructing residents and property owners on appropriate lead control techniques.

(b) Participating licensed contractors must:

- (1) demonstrate proof of workers' compensation and general liability insurance coverage;
- (2) be knowledgeable about lead abatement requirements established by the department of housing and urban development and the occupational safety and health administration;
- (3) demonstrate experience with on-the-job training programs;
- (4) demonstrate an ability to recruit employees from areas at high risk for toxic lead exposure; and
- (5) demonstrate experience in working with low-income clients.

Subd. 5. [LEAD ABATEMENT EMPLOYEES.] Each worker engaged in swab team services or removal and replacement abatement in programs established under this section must have blood lead concentrations below 15 micrograms per deciliter as determined by a baseline blood lead screening. Any organization receiving a grant under this section is responsible for lead screening and must assure that all workers in lead abatement programs, receiving grant funds under this section, meet the standards established in this subdivision. Grantees must use appropriate workplace procedures to reduce risk of elevated blood lead levels. Grantees and participating contractors must report all employee blood lead levels that exceed 15 micrograms per deciliter to the commissioner of health.

Subd. 6. [ON-THE-JOB TRAINING COMPONENT.] (a) Programs established under this section must provide on-the-job training for swab teams. Training methods must follow procedures established under section 144.878, subdivision 5.

(b) Swab team members must receive monetary compensation equal to the prevailing wage as defined in section 177.42, subdivision 6, for comparable jobs in the licensed contractor's principal business.

Subd. 7. [REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT COMPONENT.] (a) Within the limits of the available appropriation, programs may be established if a need is identified for removal and replacement abatement in residential properties. All removal and replacement abatement must be done using least-cost methods that meet the standards of section 144.878, subdivision 2. Removal and replacement abatement must be done by licensed lead abatement contractors. All craft work that requires a state license must be supervised by a person with a state license in the craft work being supervised.

(b) The program design must:

- (1) identify the need for trained swab team workers and removal and replacement abatement workers;
- (2) describe plans to involve appropriate groups in designing methods to meet the need for trained lead abatement workers; and

(3) include an examination of how program participants may achieve certification as a part of the work experience and training component. Certification may be achieved through licensing, apprenticeship, or other education programs.

Subd. 8. [PROGRAM BENEFITS.] As a condition of providing lead abatement under this section, an organization may require a property owner to not increase rents on a property solely as a result of a substantial improvement made with public funds under the programs in this section.

Subd. 9. [REQUIREMENTS OF ORGANIZATIONS RECEIVING GRANTS.] An eligible organization that is awarded a training and demonstration grant under this section shall prepare and submit a quarterly progress report to the commissioner beginning three months after receipt of the grant.

Subd. 10. [REPORT.] Beginning in the year in which an appropriation is received, the commissioner shall prepare and submit a lead abatement program report to the legislature and the governor by December 31, and every two years thereafter. At a minimum, the report must describe the programs that received grants under this section, and make recommendations for program changes.

Sec. 91. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [DISLOCATED WORKER.] "Dislocated worker" means an individual who is a resident of Minnesota at the time employment ceased or was working in the state at the time employment ceased and:

(1) has been terminated or who has received a notice of termination from public or private sector employment, is eligible for or has exhausted entitlement to unemployment compensation, and is unlikely to return to the previous industry or occupation;

(2) has been terminated or has received a notice of termination of employment as a result of any plant closing or any substantial layoff at a plant, facility, or enterprise;

(3) has been long-term unemployed and has limited opportunities for employment or reemployment in the same or a similar occupation in the area in which the individual resides, including older individuals who may have substantial barriers to employment by reason of age; or

(4) has been self-employed, including farmers and ranchers, and is unemployed as a result of general economic conditions in the community in which the individual resides or because of natural disasters, subject to rules to be adopted by the commissioner; or

(5) has been terminated or who has received a notice of termination from employment with a public or nonprofit employer.

A dislocated worker must have been working in Minnesota at the time employment ceased.

Sec. 92. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION.] "Eligible organization" means a local government unit, nonprofit organization, community action agency, business organization or association, or labor organization that has applied for a prefeasibility grant under section 268.978.

Sec. 93. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [PLANT CLOSING.] "Plant closing" means the announced or actual permanent or temporary shutdown of a single site of employment, or one or more facilities or operating units within a single site of employment, if the shutdown results in an employment loss at the single site of employment during any 30-day period for (a) 50 or more employees excluding employees who work less than 20 hours per week; or (b) at least 500 employees who in the aggregate work at least 20,000 hours per week, exclusive of hours of overtime.

Sec. 94. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. [PREFEASIBILITY STUDY GRANT; GRANT.] "Prefeasibility study grant" or "grant" means the grant awarded under section 268.978.

Sec. 95. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. [SUBSTANTIAL LAYOFF.] "Substantial layoff" means a permanent reduction in the work force, which is not a result of a plant closing, and which results in an employment loss at a single site of employment during any 30-day period for (a) at least 50 employees excluding those employees that work less than 20 hours a week; ~~or (b) at least 500 employees who in the aggregate work at least 20,000 hours per week, exclusive of hours of overtime.~~

Sec. 96. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 9. [SUBSTATE GRANTEE.] "Substate grantee" means the agency or organization designated to administer at the local level federal dislocated worker programs pursuant to the federal Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1501, et seq.

Sec. 97. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 10. [WORKER ADJUSTMENT SERVICES.] "Worker adjustment services" means the array of employment and training services designed to assist dislocated workers make the transition to new employment, including basic readjustment assistance, training assistance, and support services.

Sec. 98. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 11. [BASIC READJUSTMENT ASSISTANCE.] "Basic readjustment assistance" means employment transition services that include, but are not limited to: development of individual readjustment plans for participants; outreach and intake; early readjustment; job or career counseling; testing; orientation; assessment, including evaluation of educational attainment and participant interests and aptitudes; determination of occupational skills; provision of occupational information; job placement assistance; labor market information; job clubs; job search; job development; prelayoff assistance; relocation assistance; and programs conducted in cooperation with employers or labor organizations to provide early intervention in the event of plant closings or substantial layoffs.

Sec. 99. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 12. [TRAINING ASSISTANCE.] "Training assistance" means services that will enable a dislocated worker to become reemployed by retraining for a new occupation or industry, enhancing current skills, or relocating to employ existing skills. Training services include, but are not limited to: classroom training; occupational skill training; on-the-job training; out-of-area job search; relocation; basic and remedial education; literacy and English for training non-English speakers; entrepreneurial training; and other appropriate training activities directly related to appropriate employment opportunities in the local labor market.

Sec. 100. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.975, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 13. [SUPPORT SERVICES.] "Support services" means assistance provided to dislocated workers to enable their participation in an employment transition and training program. Services include, but are not limited to: family care assistance, including child care; commuting assistance; housing and rental assistance; counseling assistance, including personal and financial; health care; emergency health assistance; emergency financial assistance; work-related tools and clothing; and other appropriate support services that enable a person to participate in an employment and training program.

Sec. 101. [268.9755] [GOVERNOR'S JOB TRAINING COUNCIL.]

Subdivision 1. [DEFINITION.] For purposes of sections 268.022 and 268.975 to 268.98, "governor's job training council" means the state job training coordinating council established under the federal Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1501, et seq.

Subd. 2. [DUTIES.] The governor's job training council shall provide advice to the commissioner on:

(1) the use of funds made available under section 268.022, including methods for allocation and reallocation of funds and the allocation of funds among employment and training activities authorized under sections 268.975 to 268.98;

(2) performance standards for programs and activities authorized under sections 268.975 to 268.98;

- (3) approval of worker adjustment services plans and dislocation event services grants;
- (4) establishing priorities for provision of worker adjustment services to eligible dislocated workers; and
- (5) the effectiveness of programs and activities authorized in sections 268.975 to 268.98.

Sec. 102. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.976, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [NOTICE.] (a) The commissioner shall encourage those business establishments considering a decision to effect a plant closing, substantial layoff, or relocation of operations located in this state to give notice of that decision as early as possible to the commissioner, the employees of the affected establishment, any employee organization representing the employees, and the local government unit in which the affected establishment is located. This notice shall be in addition to any notice required under the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, United States Code, title 29, section 2101.

(b) Notwithstanding section 268.975, subdivision 6, for purposes of this section, "plant closing" means the announced or actual permanent or temporary shutdown of a single site of employment, or one or more facilities or operating units within a single site of employment, if the shutdown results in an employment loss at the single site of employment during any 30-day period for 50 or more employees excluding employees who work less than 20 hours per week.

Sec. 103. [268.9771] [RAPID AND EXPEDITIOUS RESPONSE.]

Subdivision 1. [RESPONSIBILITY.] The commissioner shall respond quickly and effectively to announced or actual plant closings and substantial layoffs. Affected workers and employers, as well as appropriate business organizations or associations, labor organizations, substate grantees, state and local government units, and community organizations shall be assisted by the commissioner through either rapid response activities or expeditious response activities as described in this section to respond effectively to a plant closing or mass layoff.

Subd. 2. [COVERAGE.] Rapid response is to be provided by the commissioner where permanent plant closings or substantial layoffs affect at least 50 workers over a 30-day period as evidenced by actual separation from employment or by advance notification of a closing or layoff. Expeditious response is to be provided by worker adjustment services plan grantees in coordination with rapid response activities or where permanent plant closings and substantial layoffs are not otherwise covered by rapid response.

Subd. 3. [COORDINATION.] The commissioner and expeditious response grantees shall coordinate their respective rapid response and expeditious response activities. The roles and responsibilities of each shall be detailed in written agreements and address on-site contact with employer and employee representatives when notified of a plant closing or substantial layoff. The activities include formation of a community task force, collecting and disseminating information related to economic dislocation and available services to dislocated workers, providing basic readjustment assistance services to workers affected by a plant closure or substantial layoff, conducting a needs assessment survey of workers, and developing a plan of action responsive to the worker adjustment services needs of affected workers.

Subd. 4. [RAPID RESPONSE ACTIVITIES.] The commissioner shall be responsible for implementing the following rapid response activities:

(1) establishing on-site contact with employer and employee representatives within a short period of time after becoming aware of a current or projected plant closing or substantial layoff in order to:

(i) provide information on and facilitate access to available public programs and services; and

(ii) provide emergency assistance adapted to the particular closure or layoff;

(2) promoting the formation of a labor-management committee by providing:

(i) immediate assistance in the establishment of the labor-management committee;

(ii) technical advice and information on sources of assistance, and liaison with other public and private services and programs; and

- (iii) assistance in the selection of worker representatives in the event no union is present;
- (3) collecting and disseminating information related to economic dislocation, including potential closings or layoffs, and all available resources with the state for dislocated workers;
- (4) providing or obtaining appropriate financial and technical advice and liaison with economic development agencies and other organizations to assist in effort to avert dislocations;
- (5) disseminating information throughout the state on the availability of services and activities carried out by the dislocated worker unit;
- (6) assisting the local community in developing its own coordinated response to a plant closing or substantial layoff and access to state economic development assistance; and
- (7) promoting the use of prefeasibility study grants under section 268.978.

Subd. 5. [EXPEDITIOUS RESPONSE ACTIVITIES.] Grantees designated to provide worker adjustment services through worker adjustment services plans shall be responsible for implementing the following expeditious response activities:

- (1) establishing on-site contact with employer and employee representatives, not otherwise covered under rapid response, within a short period of time after becoming aware of a current or projected plant closing or mass layoff in order to provide information on available public programs and services;
- (2) obtaining appropriate financial and technical advice and liaison with local economic development agencies and other organizations to assist in efforts to avert dislocations;
- (3) disseminating information on the availability of services and activities carried out by the grantee through its worker adjustment services plan;
- (4) providing basic readjustment assistance services for up to 90 days following the initial on-site meeting with the employer and employee representatives;
- (5) assisting the local community in the development of its own coordinated response to the closure or layoff and access to economic development assistance;
- (6) facilitating the formation of a community task force, if appropriate, to formulate a service plan to assist affected dislocated workers from plant closings and mass layoffs;
- (7) conducting surveys of workers, if appropriate, affected by plant closings or layoffs to identify worker characteristics and worker adjustment service needs; and
- (8) facilitating access to available public or private programs and services, including the development of proposals to provide access to additional resources to assist workers affected by plant closings and substantial layoffs.

Sec. 104. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.978, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [PREFEASIBILITY STUDY GRANTS.] (a) The commissioner may make grants for up to \$10,000 \$15,000 to eligible organizations to provide an initial assessment of the feasibility of alternatives to plant closings or substantial layoffs. The alternatives may include employee ownership, other new ownership, new products or production processes, or public financial or technical assistance to keep a plant open. Two or more eligible organizations may jointly apply for a grant under this section.

(b) Interested organizations shall apply to the commissioner for the grants. As part of the application process, applicants must provide a statement of need for a grant, information relating to the work force at the plant, the area's unemployment rate, the community's and surrounding area's labor market characteristics, information of efforts to coordinate the community's response to the plant closing or substantial layoff, a timetable of the prefeasibility study, a description of the organization applying for the grant, a description of the qualifications of persons conducting the study, and other information required by the commissioner.

(c) The commissioner shall respond to the applicant within five working days of receiving the organization's application. The commissioner shall inform each organization that applied for but did not receive a grant the reasons for the grant not being awarded. The commissioner may request further information from those organizations that did not receive a grant, and the organization may reapply for the grant.

Sec. 105. [268.9781] [WORKER ADJUSTMENT SERVICES PLANS.]

Subdivision 1. [WORKER ADJUSTMENT SERVICES PLANS.] The commissioner shall establish and fund worker adjustment services plans that are designed to assist dislocated workers in their transition to new employment. Authorized grantees shall submit a worker adjustment services plan biennially, with an annual update, in a form and manner prescribed by the commissioner. The worker adjustment services plan shall include information required in substate plans established under the federal Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1501, et seq. and a detailed description of expeditious response activities to be implemented under the plan.

Subd. 2. [GRANTEES.] Entities authorized to submit a worker adjustment services plan include substate grantees and up to six additional eligible organizations. Criteria for selecting the six authorized nonsubstate grantee eligible organizations shall be established by the commissioner, in consultation with the governor's job training council. The criteria include, but are not limited to:

(1) the capacity to deliver worker adjustment services;

(2) an identifiable constituency from which eligible dislocated workers may be drawn;

(3) a demonstration of a good faith effort to establish coordination agreements with substate grantees in whose geographic area the organization would be operating;

(4) the capability to coordinate delivery of worker adjustment services with other appropriate programs and agencies, including educational institutions, employment service, human service agencies, and economic development agencies; and

(5) sufficient administrative controls to ensure fiscal accountability.

Subd. 3. [COVERAGE.] (a) Persons eligible to receive worker adjustment services under this section include dislocated workers as defined in section 268.975, subdivision 3.

(b) Worker adjustment services available under this section shall also be available to additional dislocated workers as defined in section 268.975, subdivision 3a, when they can be provided without adversely affecting delivery of services to all dislocated workers.

Subd. 4. [SUBSTATE GRANTEE FUNDING.] (a) Funds allocated to substate grantees under section 268.022 for expeditious response activities and worker adjustment services under this section shall be allocated as follows:

(1) one-half of available funds shall be allocated to substate grantees based on an allocation formula prescribed by the commissioner, in consultation with the governor's job training council; and

(2) one-half of available funds shall be allocated based on need as demonstrated to the commissioner in consultation with the governor's job training council.

(b) The formula for allocating substate grantee funds must utilize the most appropriate information available to the commissioner to distribute funds in order to address the state's worker adjustment assistance needs. Information for the formula allocation may include, but is not limited to:

(1) insured unemployment data;

(2) dislocated worker special assessment receipts data;

(3) small plant closing data;

(4) declining industries data;

(5) farmer-rancher economic hardship data; and

(6) long-term unemployment data.

(c) The commissioner shall establish a uniform procedure for reallocating substate grantee funds. The criteria for reallocating funds from substate grantees not expending their allocations consistent with their worker adjustment services plans to other substate grantees shall be developed by the commissioner in consultation with the governor's job training council.

Sec. 106. [268.9782] [DISLOCATION EVENT SERVICES GRANTS.]

Subdivision 1. [DISLOCATION EVENT SERVICES GRANTS.] The commissioner shall establish and fund dislocation event services grants designed to provide worker adjustment services to workers displaced as a result of larger plant closings and substantial layoffs. Grantees shall apply for a dislocation event services grant by submitting a proposal to the commissioner in a form and manner prescribed by the commissioner. The application must describe the demonstrated need for intervention, including the need for retraining, the workers to be served, the coordination of available local resources, the services to be provided, and the budget plan.

Subd. 2. [GRANTEES.] (a) Entities authorized to submit dislocation event services grants include substate grantees and other eligible organizations. Nonsubstate grantees shall demonstrate they meet criteria established by the commissioner, in consultation with the governor's job training council. The criteria include, but are not limited to:

(1) the capacity to deliver worker adjustment services;

(2) an ability to coordinate its activities with substate grantees in whose geographic area the organization will be operating;

(3) the capability to coordinate delivery of worker adjustment services with other appropriate programs and agencies, including educational institutions, employment service, human service agencies, and economic development agencies; and

(4) sufficient administrative controls to ensure fiscal accountability.

(b) For purposes of this section, the state job service may apply directly to the commissioner for a dislocation event services grant only if the effect of a plant closing or substantial layoff is statewide or results in the termination from employment of employees of the state of Minnesota.

Subd. 3. [COVERAGE.] Persons who may receive worker adjustment services under this section are limited to dislocated workers affected by plant closings and substantial layoffs involving at least 50 workers from a single employer.

Subd. 4. [FUNDING.] The commissioner, in consultation with the governor's job training council, may establish an emergency funding process for dislocation event services grants. No more than 20 percent of the estimated budget of the proposed grant may be awarded through this procedure. The grantee shall submit a formal dislocation event services grant application within 90 days of the initial award of emergency funding.

Sec. 107. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 268.98, is amended to read:

268.98 [PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, REPORTING, COST LIMITATIONS.]

(a) Subdivision 1. [PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.] The commissioner shall establish performance standards for the programs and activities administered or funded through the rapid response program under section 268.977 sections 268.975 to 268.98. The commissioner may use, when appropriate, existing federal performance standards or, if the commissioner determines that the federal standards are inadequate or not suitable, may formulate new performance standards to ensure that the programs and activities of the rapid response program dislocated worker program are effectively administered.

~~(b) Not less than 20 percent of the funds expended under this section must be used to provide needs related payments and other supportive services as those terms are used in subchapter III of the Job Training Partnership Act, United States Code, title 29, section 1661d(b). This requirement does not apply to the extent that a program proposal requests less than 20 percent of such funds. At the end of the fiscal year, each substate grantee and each grant recipient shall report to the commissioner on the types of services funded under this paragraph and the amounts expended for such services. By January 15 of each year, the commissioner shall provide a summary report to the legislature.~~

Subd. 2. [REPORTS.] (a) Grantees receiving funds under sections 268.9771, 268.978, 268.9781, and 268.9782 shall report to the commissioner information on program participants, activities funded, and utilization of funds in a form and manner prescribed by the commissioner.

(b) The commissioner shall report quarterly to the governor's job training council information on prefeasibility study grants awarded, rapid response and expeditious response activities, worker adjustment services plans, and dislocation event services grants. Specific information to be reported shall be by agreement between the commissioner and the governor's job training council.

(c) The commissioner shall provide an annual report to the governor, legislature, and the governor's job training council on the administration of the programs funded under sections 268.9771, 268.978, 268.9781, and 268.9782.

Subd. 3. [COST LIMITATIONS.] (a) For purposes of sections 268.9781 and 268.9782, funds allocated to a grantee are subject to the following limitations:

(1) a maximum of 15 percent for administration in a worker adjustment services plan and ten percent in a dislocation event services grant;

(2) a minimum of 50 percent for provision of training assistance;

(3) a minimum of ten percent and maximum of 30 percent for provision of support services; and

(4) the balance used for provision of basic readjustment assistance.

(b) A waiver of the cost limitation on providing training assistance may be requested. The waiver may not permit less than 30 percent of the funds be spent on training assistance.

(c) The commissioner shall prescribe the form and manner for submission of an application for a waiver under paragraph (b). Criteria for granting a waiver shall be established by the commissioner in consultation with the governor's job training council.

Sec. 108. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 298.2211, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [PROJECT APPROVAL.] All projects authorized by this section shall be submitted by the commissioner to the iron range resources and rehabilitation board, which shall recommend approval or disapproval or modification of the projects. Each project shall then be submitted to the legislative advisory committee for any review and comment the committee deems appropriate. Prior to the commencement of a project involving the exercise by the commissioner of any authority of sections 469.174 to 469.179, the governing body of each municipality in which any part of the project is located and the county board of any county containing portions of the project not located in an incorporated area shall by majority vote approve or disapprove the project. Any project, as so approved by the board and the applicable governing bodies, if any, together with any comment provided by the legislative advisory committee, detailed information concerning the project, its costs, the sources of its funding, and the amount of any bonded indebtedness to be incurred in connection with the project, shall be transmitted to the governor, who shall approve, disapprove, or return the proposal for additional consideration within 30 days of receipt. No project authorized under this section shall be undertaken, and no obligations shall be issued and no tax increments shall be expended for a project authorized under this section until the project has been approved by the governor.

Sec. 109. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 298.2213, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [PROJECT APPROVAL.] The board shall by August 1, 1987, and each year thereafter prepare a list of projects to be funded from the money appropriated in this section with necessary supporting information including descriptions of the projects, plans, and cost estimates. A project must not be approved by the board unless it finds that:

- (1) the project will materially assist, directly or indirectly, the creation of additional long-term employment opportunities;
- (2) the prospective benefits of the expenditure exceed the anticipated costs; and
- (3) in the case of assistance to private enterprise, the project will serve a sound business purpose.

To be proposed by the board, a project must be approved by at least eight iron range resources and rehabilitation board members and the commissioner of iron range resources and rehabilitation. The list of projects must be submitted to the legislative advisory commission for its review. ~~The list with the recommendation of the legislative advisory commission must be submitted to the governor, who shall, by November 15 of each year, approve, disapprove, or return for further consideration, each project. The money for a project may be spent only upon approval of the project by the governor. The board may submit supplemental projects for approval at any time. Supplemental projects must be submitted to the members of the legislative advisory commission for their review and recommendations of further review. If a recommendation is not provided within ten days, no further review by the legislative advisory commission is required, and the governor shall approve or disapprove each project or return it for further consideration. If the recommendation by a member is for further review, the governor shall submit the request to the legislative advisory commission for its review and recommendation. Failure or refusal of the commission to make a recommendation promptly is a negative recommendation.~~

Sec. 110. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 298.223, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [ADMINISTRATION.] The taconite environmental protection fund shall be administered by the commissioner of the iron range resources and rehabilitation board. The commissioner shall by September 1 of each year prepare a list of projects to be funded from the taconite environmental protection fund, with such supporting information including description of the projects, plans, and cost estimates as may be necessary. Upon recommendation of the iron range resources and rehabilitation board, this list shall be submitted to the legislative advisory commission for its review. ~~This list with the recommendation of the legislative advisory commission shall then be transmitted to the governor by November 1 of each year. By December 1 of each year, the governor shall approve or disapprove, or return for further consideration, each project. Funds for a project may be expended only upon approval of the project by the governor. The commissioner may submit supplemental projects for approval at any time. Supplemental projects approved by the board must be submitted to the members of the legislative advisory commission for their review and recommendations of further review. If a recommendation is not provided within ten days, no further review by the legislative advisory commission is required, and the governor shall approve or disapprove each project or return it for further consideration. If the recommendation by any member is for further review the governor shall submit the request to the legislative advisory commission for its review and recommendation. Failure or refusal of the commission to make a recommendation promptly is a negative recommendation.~~

Sec. 111. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 298.28, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. [IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD.] Three cents per taxable ton shall be paid to the iron range resources and rehabilitation board for the purposes of section 298.22. The amount determined in this subdivision shall be increased in 1981 and subsequent years prior to 1988 in the same proportion as the increase in the steel mill products index as provided in section 298.24, subdivision 1, and shall be increased in 1989, 1990, and 1991 according to the increase in the implicit price deflator as provided in section 298.24, subdivision 1. In 1992 and 1993, the amount distributed per ton shall be the same as the amount distributed per ton in 1991. In 1994, the amount distributed shall be the distribution per ton for 1991 increased in the same proportion as the increase between the fourth quarter of 1988 and the fourth quarter of 1992 in the implicit price deflator as defined in section 298.24, subdivision 1. That amount shall be increased in 1995 and subsequent years in the same proportion as the increase in the implicit price deflator as provided in section 298.24, subdivision 1. The amount distributed in 1988 shall be increased according to the increase that would have occurred in the rate of tax under section 298.24 if the rate had been adjusted according to the implicit price deflator for 1987 production. The amount distributed pursuant to this subdivision shall be expended within or for the benefit of a tax relief area defined in section 273.134. No part of the fund provided in this subdivision may be used to provide loans for the operation of private business unless the loan is approved by the governor and the legislative advisory commission.

Sec. 112. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 298.296, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [PROJECT APPROVAL.] The board shall by August 1 of each year prepare a list of projects to be funded from the northeast Minnesota economic protection trust with necessary supporting information including description of the projects, plans, and cost estimates. These projects shall be consistent with the priorities established in section 298.292 and shall not be approved by the board unless it finds that:

- (a) the project will materially assist, directly or indirectly, the creation of additional long-term employment opportunities;
- (b) the prospective benefits of the expenditure exceed the anticipated costs; and
- (c) in the case of assistance to private enterprise, the project will serve a sound business purpose.

To be proposed by the board, a project must be approved by at least eight iron range resources and rehabilitation board members and the commissioner of iron range resources and rehabilitation. The list of projects shall be submitted to the legislative advisory commission for its review. ~~The list with the recommendation of the legislative advisory commission shall be submitted to the governor, who shall, by November 15 of each year, approve or disapprove, or return for further consideration, each project. The money for a project may be expended only upon approval of the project by the governor. The board may submit supplemental projects for approval at any time. Supplemental projects must be submitted to the members of the legislative advisory commission for their review and recommendations of further review. If a recommendation is not provided within ten days, no further review by the legislative advisory commission is required, and the governor shall approve or disapprove each project or return it for further consideration. If the recommendation by any member is for further review the governor shall submit the request to the legislative advisory commission for its review and recommendation. Failure or refusal of the commission to make a recommendation promptly is a negative recommendation.~~

Sec. 113. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 303.13, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [FOREIGN CORPORATION.] A foreign corporation shall be subject to service of process, as follows:

- (1) By service on its registered agent;
- (2) When any foreign corporation authorized to transact business in this state fails to appoint or maintain in this state a registered agent upon whom service of process may be had, or whenever any registered agent cannot be found at its registered office in this state, as shown by the return of the sheriff of the county in which the registered office is situated, or by an affidavit of attempted service by any person not a party, or whenever any corporation withdraws from the state, or whenever the certificate of authority of any foreign corporation is revoked or canceled, service may be made by delivering to and leaving with the secretary of state, or with any authorized deputy or clerk in the corporation department of the secretary of state's office, two copies thereof and a fee of ~~\$35~~ \$50; provided, that after a foreign corporation withdraws from the state, pursuant to section 303.16, service upon the corporation may be made pursuant to the provisions of this section only when based upon a liability or obligation of the corporation incurred within this state or arising out of any business done in this state by the corporation prior to the issuance of a certificate of withdrawal.
- (3) If a foreign corporation makes a contract with a resident of Minnesota to be performed in whole or in part by either party in Minnesota, or if a foreign corporation commits a tort in whole or in part in Minnesota against a resident of Minnesota, such acts shall be deemed to be doing business in Minnesota by the foreign corporation and shall be deemed equivalent to the appointment by the foreign corporation of the secretary of the state of Minnesota and successors to be its true and lawful attorney upon whom may be served all lawful process in any actions or proceedings against the foreign corporation arising from or growing out of the contract or tort. Process shall be served in duplicate upon the secretary of state, together with the address to which service is to be sent and a fee of ~~\$35~~ \$50 and the secretary of state shall mail one copy thereof to the corporation at its the last known address listed on the records of the secretary of state or the address provided by the party requesting service, and the corporation shall have 30 days within which to answer from the date of the mailing, notwithstanding any other provision of the law. The making of the contract or the committing of the tort shall be deemed to be the agreement of the foreign corporation that any process against it which is so served upon the secretary of state shall be of the same legal force and effect as if served personally on it within the state of Minnesota.

Sec. 114. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 303.21, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [OTHER INSTRUMENTS.] A fee of ~~\$35~~ \$50 shall be paid to the secretary of state for filing any instrument, other than the annual report required by section 303.14, required or permitted to be filed under the provisions of this chapter. For filing the annual report a fee of \$20 must be paid to the secretary of state. The fees shall be paid at the time of the filing of the instrument.

Sec. 115. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 322A.16, is amended to read:

322A.16 [FILING IN OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE.]

(a) A signed copy of the certificate of limited partnership, of any certificates of amendment or cancellation or of any judicial decree of amendment or cancellation shall be delivered to the secretary of state. A person who executes a certificate as an agent or fiduciary need not exhibit evidence of the executor's authority as a prerequisite to filing. Unless the secretary of state finds that any certificate does not conform to law, upon receipt of a ~~\$35~~ \$50 filing fee and, in the case of a certificate of limited partnership, a ~~\$60~~ \$50 initial fee, the secretary shall:

- (1) endorse on the original the word "Filed" and the day, month and year of the filing; and
- (2) return the original to the person who filed it or a representative.

(b) Upon the filing of a certificate of amendment or judicial decree of amendment in the office of the secretary of state, the certificate of limited partnership shall be amended as set forth in the amendment, and upon the effective date of a certificate of cancellation or a judicial decree of it, the certificate of limited partnership is canceled.

Sec. 116. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 333.20, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. The application for registration shall be accompanied by a filing fee of ~~\$35~~ \$50, payable to the secretary of state; ~~provided, however, that a single credit of \$10 shall be given each applicant applying for reregistration of a mark hereunder for each \$10 filing fee paid by applicant for registration of the same trademark prior to the effective date of sections 333.18 to 333.31.~~

Sec. 117. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 333.22, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. Registration of a mark hereunder shall be effective for a term of ten years from the date of registration and, upon application filed within six months prior to the expiration of such term or a renewal thereof, on a form to be furnished by the secretary of state, the registration may be renewed for additional ten-year terms provided that the mark is in use by the applicant at the time of the application for renewal and that there are no intervening rights. A renewal fee of ~~\$22~~ \$25 payable to the secretary of state shall accompany the application for renewal of the registration.

Sec. 118. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-403, is amended to read:

336.9-403 [WHAT CONSTITUTES FILING; DURATION OF FILING; EFFECT OF LAPSED FILING; DUTIES OF FILING OFFICER.]

(1) Presentation for filing of a financing statement and tender of the filing fee or acceptance of the statement by the filing officer constitutes filing under this article.

(2) Except as provided in subsection (6) a filed financing statement is effective for a period of five years from the date of filing. The effectiveness of a filed financing statement lapses on the expiration of the five-year period unless a continuation statement is filed prior to the lapse. If a security interest perfected by filing exists at the time insolvency proceedings are commenced by or against the debtor, the security interest remains perfected until termination of the insolvency proceedings and thereafter for a period of 60 days or until expiration of the five-year period, whichever occurs later regardless of whether the financing statement filed as to that security interest is destroyed by the filing officer pursuant to subsection (3). Upon lapse the security interest becomes unperfected, unless it is perfected without filing. If the security interest becomes unperfected upon lapse, it is deemed to have been unperfected as against a person who became a purchaser or lien creditor before lapse.

(3) A continuation statement may be filed by the secured party within six months prior to the expiration of the five-year period specified in subsection (2). Any such continuation statement must be signed by the secured party, set forth the name, social security number or other tax identification number of the debtor, and address of the debtor and secured party as those items appear on the original financing statement or the most recently filed amendment, identify the original statement by file number and filing date, and state that the original statement is still effective. A continuation statement signed by a person other than the secured party of record must be accompanied by a separate written statement of assignment signed by the secured party of record and complying with subsection (2) of section 336.9-405, including payment of the required fee. Upon timely filing of the continuation statement, the effectiveness of the original statement is continued for five years after the last date to which the filing was effective whereupon it lapses in the same manner as provided in subsection (2) unless another continuation statement is filed prior to such lapse. Succeeding continuation statements may be filed in the same manner to continue the effectiveness of the original statement. Unless a statute on disposition of public records provides otherwise, the filing officer may remove a lapsed statement from the files and destroy it immediately if the officer has retained a microfilm or other photographic record, or in other cases after one year after the lapse. The filing officer shall so arrange matters by physical annexation of financing statements to continuation statements or other related filings, or by other means, that if the officer physically destroys the financing statements of a period more than five years past, those which have been continued by a continuation statement or which are still effective under subsection (6) shall be retained. If insolvency proceedings are commenced by or against the debtor, the secured party shall notify the filing officer both upon commencement and termination of the proceedings, and the filing officer shall not destroy any financing statements filed with respect to the debtor until termination of the insolvency proceedings. The security interest remains perfected until termination of the insolvency proceedings and thereafter for a period of 60 days or until expiration of the five-year period, whichever occurs later.

(4) Except as provided in subsection (7) a filing officer shall mark each statement with a file number and with the date and hour of filing and shall hold the statement or a microfilm or other photographic copy thereof for public inspection. In addition the filing officer shall index the statements according to the name of the debtor and shall note in the index the file number, the address of the debtor given in the statement, and the social security number or other tax identification number of the debtor given in the statement.

(5) The secretary of state shall prescribe uniform forms for statements and samples thereof shall be furnished to all filing officers in the state. The uniform fee for filing and indexing and for stamping a copy furnished by the secured party to show the date and place of filing for an original financing statement or for a continuation statement shall be \$7 if the statement is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and otherwise shall be \$10, plus in each case, if the financing statement is subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-402, \$5. An additional fee of \$7 shall be collected if more than one name is required to be indexed or if the secured party chooses to show a trade name for any debtor listed. The uniform fee collected for the filing of an amendment to a financing statement if the amendment is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and does not add additional debtor names to the financing statement shall be \$7. The fee for an amendment adding additional debtor names shall be \$14 if the amendment is in the form prescribed by the secretary of state and, if otherwise, \$17. The fee for an amendment which is not in the form prescribed by the secretary of state but which does not add additional names shall be \$10.:

(a) for an original financing statement or statement of continuation on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, is \$15 for up to two debtor names and \$15 for each additional name thereafter;

(b) for an original financing statement or statement of continuation that is not on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, is \$20 for up to two debtor names and \$20 for each additional name thereafter;

(c) for an amendment on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state that does not add debtor names, is \$15;

(d) for an amendment that is not on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and that does not add debtor names, is \$20;

(e) for an amendment on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state that does add debtor names, is \$15 per debtor name;

(f) for an amendment that is not on a standard form prescribed by the secretary of state that does add debtor names, is \$20 per debtor name; and

(g) for each case in which the filing is subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-402, \$5 in addition to the fee required above.

In no case will a filing officer accept more than four additional pages per financing statement for filing in the uniform commercial code records.

The secretary of state shall adopt rules for filing, amendment, continuation, termination, removal, and destruction of financing statements.

(6) If the debtor is a transmitting utility (subsection (5) of section 336.9-401) and a filed financing statement so states, it is effective until a termination statement is filed. A real estate mortgage which is effective as a fixture filing under subsection (6) of section 336.9-402 remains effective as a fixture filing until the mortgage is released or satisfied of record or its effectiveness otherwise terminates as to the real estate.

(7) When a financing statement covers timber to be cut or covers minerals or the like (including oil and gas) or accounts subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-103, or is filed as a fixture filing, it shall be filed for record and the filing officer shall index it under the names of the debtor and any owner of record shown on the financing statement in the same fashion as if they were the mortgagors in a mortgage of the real estate described, and, to the extent that the law of this state provides for indexing of mortgages under the name of the mortgagee, under the name of the secured party as if the secured party were the mortgagee thereunder, or, for filing offices other than the secretary of state, where indexing is by description in the same fashion as if the financing statement were a mortgage of the real estate described. If requested of the filing officer on the financing statement, a financing statement filed for record as a fixture filing in the same office where nonfixture filings are made is effective, without a dual filing, as to collateral listed thereon for which filing is required in such office pursuant to section 336.9-401 (1) (a); in such case, the filing officer shall also index the recorded statement in accordance with subsection (4) using the recording data in lieu of a file number.

(8) The fees provided for in this article shall supersede the fees for similar services otherwise provided for by law except in the case of security interests filed in connection with a certificate of title on a motor vehicle.

Sec. 119. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-404, is amended to read:

336.9-404 [TERMINATION STATEMENT.]

(1) If a financing statement covering consumer goods is filed on or after January 1, 1977, then within one month or within ten days following written demand by the debtor after there is no outstanding secured obligation and no commitment to make advances, incur obligations or otherwise give value, the secured party must file with each filing officer with whom the financing statement was filed, a termination statement to the effect that the secured party no longer claims a security interest under the financing statement. The termination statement must set forth the name and address of the debtor and secured party as those items appear on the original financing statement or the most recently filed amendment; identify the original financing statement by file number and filing date; and be signed by the secured party. In other cases whenever there is no outstanding secured obligation and no commitment to make advances, incur obligations, or otherwise give value, the secured party must on written demand by the debtor send the debtor, for each filing officer with whom the financing statement was filed, a termination statement to the effect that the secured party no longer claims a security interest under the financing statement, which shall be identified by file number. A termination statement signed by a person other than the secured party of record must be accompanied by a separate written statement of assignment signed by the secured party of record and complying with subsection (2) of section 336.9-405, including payment of the required fee. If the affected secured party fails to file such a termination statement as required by this subsection, or to send such a termination statement within ten days after proper demand therefor the secured party shall be liable to the debtor for \$100, and in addition for any loss caused to the debtor by such failure.

(2) On being presented with such a termination statement the filing officer must note it in the index. If a duplicate termination statement is provided, the filing officer shall return one copy of the termination statement to the secured party stamped to show the time of receipt thereof. If the filing officer has a microfilm or other photographic record of the financing statement, and of any related continuation statement, statement of assignment and statement of release, the filing officer may remove the originals from the files at any time after receipt of the termination statement, or having no such record, the filing officer may remove them from the files at any time after one year after receipt of the termination statement.

(3) There shall be no fee collected for the filing of a termination if the termination statement is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and ~~otherwise shall be \$5, plus in each case,~~ The fee for filing a termination statement on a form that is not the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state is \$5. If the original financing statement was subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-402, the fee prescribed by section 357.18, subdivision 1, clause (1), is also required.

Sec. 120. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-405, is amended to read:

336.9-405 [ASSIGNMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST; DUTIES OF FILING OFFICER; FEES.]

(1) A financing statement may disclose an assignment of a security interest in the collateral described in the financing statement by indication in the financing statement of the name and address of the assignee or by an assignment itself or a copy thereof on the face of the statement. On presentation to the filing officer of such a financing statement the filing officer shall mark the same as provided in section 336.9-403, clause (4). The uniform fee for filing, indexing, and furnishing filing data for a financing statement so indicating an assignment shall be the same as the fee prescribed in section 336.9-403, clause (5).

(2) A secured party of record may record an assignment of all or a part of the secured party's rights under a financing statement ~~by the filing. The assignment must be filed~~ in the place where the original financing statement was filed ~~of a separate written statement of. The assignment must be signed by the secured party of record, setting forth. The assignment must state:~~ (i) the name and address of the secured party of record and the debtor as those items appear on the original financing statement or the most recently filed amendment, ~~identifying~~ (ii) the file number and the date of filing of the financing statement, ~~giving~~ (iii) the name and address of the assignee, and ~~containing~~ (iv) a description of the collateral assigned. A copy of the assignment is sufficient ~~as a separate statement~~ if it complies with the preceding sentence.

On presentation to the filing officer of such a ~~separate statement~~, the filing officer shall mark such ~~separate statement~~ with the date and hour of the filing. The filing officer shall note the assignment on the index of the financing statement, or in the case of a fixture filing, or a filing covering timber to be cut, or covering minerals or the like (including oil and gas) or accounts subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-103. The filing officer shall also index the assignment under the name of the assignor as grantor and, to the extent that the law of this state provides for indexing the assignment of a mortgage under the name of the assignee, index the assignment of the financing statement under the name of the assignee.

The uniform fee for filing, indexing, and furnishing filing data about such a ~~separate statement~~ of assignment shall be \$7 \$15 for up to two debtor names and \$15 for each additional name thereafter if the statement is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state ~~and otherwise shall be \$10, plus. If the statement is in a form that is not the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, the fee is \$20 for up to two debtor names and \$20 for each additional name thereafter.~~ In each case, ~~if where~~ the original financing statement was subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-402, the fee prescribed by section 357.18, subdivision 1, clause (1), is also required. ~~An additional fee of \$7 shall be charged if there is more than one name against which the statement of assignment is required to be indexed.~~

Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection, an assignment of record of a security interest in a fixture contained in a mortgage effective as a fixture filing (subsection (6) of section 336.9-402) may be made only by an assignment of the mortgage in the manner provided by the law of this state other than Laws 1976, chapter 135.

(3) After the disclosure or filing of an assignment under this section, the assignee is the secured party of record.

Sec. 121. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-406, is amended to read:

336.9-406 [RELEASE OF COLLATERAL; DUTIES OF FILING OFFICER; FEES.]

A secured party of record may by signed statement release all or a part of any collateral described in a filed financing statement. The statement of release is sufficient if it contains a description of the collateral being released, the name and address of the debtor and secured party as those items appear on the original financing statement or the most recently filed amendment, and identifies the original financing statement by file number and filing date. A statement of release signed by a person other than the secured party of record must be accompanied by a separate written statement of assignment signed by the secured party of record and complying with subsection (2) of section 336.9-405, including payment of the required fee. Upon being presented with such a statement of release the filing officer shall mark the statement with the hour and date of filing ~~and shall note the same upon the margin of the index of the filing of the financing statement.~~ The uniform fee for filing and noting such a statement of release shall be \$7 \$15 if the statement is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and otherwise shall be \$10, plus in each case. If the statement is not on the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, the fee is \$20. If the original financing statement was subject to subsection (5) of section 336.9-402, the fee prescribed by section 357.18, subdivision 1, clause (1), is also required.

Sec. 122. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-407, is amended to read:

336.9-407 [INFORMATION FROM FILING OFFICER.]

(1) If the person filing any financing statement, termination statement, statement of assignment, or statement of release, furnishes the filing officer a copy thereof, the filing officer shall upon request note upon the copy the file number and date and hour of the filing of the original and deliver or send the copy to such person.

(2) Upon request of any person, the filing officer shall conduct a search of the statewide computerized uniform commercial code data base for any effective active financing statements naming a particular debtor ~~and any statement of assignment thereof~~. The filing officer shall report the findings as of ~~that~~ the date and hour of the search by issuing:

(a) a certificate listing the file number, date, and hour of each filing and the names and addresses of each secured party ~~therein~~;

(b) photocopies of those original documents on file and located in the office of the filing officer; or

(c) upon request, both the certificate and the photocopies referred to in (b).

The uniform fee for conducting the search and for preparing a certificate ~~showing up to five listed filings or for preparing up to five photocopies of original documents, or any combination of up to five listed filings and photocopies~~, shall be ~~\$7~~ \$15 if the request is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state ~~and otherwise~~. This uniform fee shall include up to ten photocopies of original documents. If the request for information is made on a form other than the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, the fee shall be \$10 \$20 and shall include up to ten photocopies of original documents.

Another fee, at the same rate, shall also be charged for conducting a search and preparing a certificate showing federal and state tax liens on file with the filing officer naming a particular debtor.

There shall be an additional fee of ~~50 cents~~ \$1 per page for each financing statement ~~and each statement of assignment~~ or tax lien listed on the certificate and for each photocopy prepared in excess of the first ~~five~~ ten.

Notwithstanding the fees set in this section, a natural person who is the subject of data must, upon the person's request, be shown the data without charge, and upon request be provided with photocopies of the data upon payment of no more than the actual cost of making the copies.

Sec. 123. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336.9-413, is amended to read:

336.9-413 [UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE ACCOUNT.]

(a) The uniform commercial code account is established as an account in the state treasury.

(b) The filing officer with whom a financing statement, amendment, assignment, statement of release, or continuation statement is filed, or to whom a request for search is made, shall collect ~~a \$4 the filing fee and forward \$5 of that fee as a surcharge on each filing or search, except that the surcharge is \$5 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1993.~~ By the 15th day following the end of each fiscal quarter, each county recorder shall forward the receipts from the surcharge accumulated during that fiscal quarter to the secretary of state. The surcharge does not apply to a search request made by a natural person who is the subject of the data to be searched except when a certificate is requested as a part of the search.

(c) The surcharge amounts received from county recorders and the surcharge amounts collected by the secretary of state's office must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

(d) Fees that are not expressly set by statute but are charged by the secretary of state to offset the costs of providing a service under sections 336.9-411 to 336.9-413 must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the uniform commercial code account.

(e) Fees that are not expressly set by statute but are charged by the secretary of state to offset the costs of providing information contained in the computerized records maintained by the secretary of state must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the uniform commercial code account.

(f) Money in the uniform commercial code account is continuously appropriated to the secretary of state to implement and maintain the computerized uniform commercial code filing system under section 336.9-411 and to provide electronic-view-only access to other computerized records maintained by the secretary of state.

Sec. 124. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336A.04, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [FEES.] (a) The fee for filing and indexing a standard form for a lien notice, effective financing statement, ~~amendment~~, or continuation statement, and stamping the date and place of filing on a copy of the filed document furnished by the filing party is \$10 ~~when a single debtor name is listed. If more than one debtor's name is listed on a standard form, the fee is \$17. If one debtor's name is listed on a nonstandard effective filing statement, assignment or continuation statement, or a nonstandard lien notice or assignment of a lien notice, the fee is \$13. If more than one debtor's name is listed on a nonstandard form, the fee is \$20~~ \$15 for up to two debtor names and \$15 for each additional name thereafter.

(b) ~~The fee for filing an amendment on the standard form that does not add debtors' names to the lien notice or effective financing statement is \$10. If a nonstandard form is used, the fee is \$13. The fee for an amendment that adds debtors' names is \$17 if a standard form is used or \$20 if a nonstandard form is used. The fee for filing a partial release is \$10 if a standard form is used or \$13 if a nonstandard form is used.~~

(e) A fee may not be charged for filing a termination statement if the termination is filed within 30 days after satisfaction of the lien or security interest. Otherwise, the fee is \$10.

~~(d)~~ (c) A county recorder shall forward \$5 of each filing fee collected under this subdivision to the secretary of state by the 15th of the month following the end of each fiscal quarter. The surcharge amounts received from county recorders and the surcharge amounts collected by the secretary of state's office must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund. The balance of the filing fees collected by a county recorder must be deposited in the general fund of the county.

Sec. 125. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 336A.09, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [SEARCHES; FEES.] (a) If a person makes a request, the filing officer shall conduct a search of the computerized filing system for effective financing statements or lien notices and statements of ~~assignment, continuation, amendment, and partial release~~ of a particular debtor. The filing officer shall report the date, time, and results of the search by issuing:

(1) a certificate listing the file number, date, and hour of each effective financing statement found in the search and the names and addresses of each secured party on the effective financing statements or of each lien notice found in the search and the names and address of each lienholder on the lien notice;

(2) photocopies of the original effective financing statement or lien notice documents on file; or

(3) upon request, both the certificate and photocopies of the effective financing statements or lien notices.

(b) ~~The uniform fee for conducting a search and for preparing a certificate showing up to five listed filings or for preparing up to five photocopies of original documents, or any combination of up to five listed filings and photocopies, is \$10 \$15 per debtor name if the request is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and otherwise is \$13. This uniform fee shall include ten photocopies of original documents. If the request for information is made on a form other than the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state, the fee is \$20 per debtor name and shall include ten photocopies of original documents. An additional fee of 50 cents \$1 per page must be charged for each listed filing and for each photocopy prepared in excess of the first five ten. If an oral or facsimile response is requested, there is an additional fee of \$5 per debtor name requested.~~

(c) A county recorder shall forward ~~\$3~~ \$5 of each search fee collected under this subdivision to the secretary of state by the 15th of the month following each fiscal quarter. The surcharge amounts received from county recorders and the surcharge amounts collected by the secretary of state's office must be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund. The balance of the search fees collected by a county recorder must be deposited in the general fund of the county.

Sec. 126. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 349A.10, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. [DEPOSIT OF NET PROCEEDS.] Within 30 days after the end of each month, the director shall deposit in the state treasury the net proceeds of the lottery, which is the balance in the lottery fund after transfers to the lottery prize fund and credits to the lottery operations account. Of the net proceeds, 40 percent must be credited to the Minnesota environment and natural resources trust fund, 11 percent must be credited to the state arts account created in section 129D.06, for distribution as provided in that section, and the remainder must be credited to the general fund.

Sec. 127. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 359.01, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. [FEES.] The fee for each commission shall not exceed \$40. All fees shall be retained by the commissioner and shall be nonreturnable except that an overpayment of any fee shall be the subject of a refund upon proper application.

Sec. 128. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 359.02, is amended to read:

359.02 [TERM, BOND, OATH, REAPPOINTMENT.]

~~A notary commissioned under section 359.01 holds office for six years, unless sooner removed by the governor or the district court. Before entering upon the duties of office, a newly commissioned notary shall file the notary's oath of office with the secretary of state. Within 30 days before the expiration of the commission a notary may be reappointed for a new term to commence and to be designated in the new commission as beginning upon the day immediately following the date of the expiration. The reappointment takes effect and is valid although the appointing governor may not be in the office of governor on the effective day.~~

Subdivision 1. [EXPIRATION IN 1995.] Notary commissions issued before January 3, 1995, expire on January 31, 1995.

Subd. 2. [SIX-YEAR LICENSING PERIOD.] Notary commissions issued after January 31, 1995, expire at the end of the licensing period that will end every sixth year following January 31, 1995.

Subd. 3. [PARTIAL LICENSING PERIODS.] Notary commissions issued during a licensing period expire at the end of that period as set forth in this section.

Sec. 129. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 386.65, is amended to read:

386.65 [EXAMINATION OF APPLICANTS FOR LICENSE.]

Subdivision 1. Applications for a license shall be made to the board commissioner and shall be upon a form to be prepared by the board commissioner and contain such information as may be required by it. Upon receiving such application, the board commissioner shall fix a time and place for the examination of such applicant. Notice of such examination shall be given to the applicant by certified mail, who shall thereon take the examination pursuant to such notice. The examination shall be conducted by the board commissioner under such rules as the board commissioner may prescribe, and such rules shall prescribe that the applicant must show qualification by experience, education or training to qualify as being capable of performing the duties of an abstractor whose work will be for the use and protection of the public. If application is made by a firm or corporation, one of the members or managing officials thereof shall take such examination. If the applicant successfully passes the examination and complies with all the provisions of sections 386.61 to 386.76, the board commissioner ~~shall cause its executive secretary to issue a license to the applicant.~~

Sec. 130. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 386.66, is amended to read:

386.66 [BOND OR ABSTRACTER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY.]

Before a license shall be issued, the applicant shall file with the board commissioner a bond or abstractor's liability insurance policy to be approved by the chair or executive secretary commissioner, running to the state of Minnesota in the penal sum of at least \$100,000 conditioned for the payment by such abstractor of any damages that may be sustained by or accrue to any person by reason of or on account of any error, deficiency or mistake arising wrongfully or negligently in any abstract, or continuation thereof, or in any certificate showing ownership of, or interest in, or

liens upon any lands in the state of Minnesota, whether registered or not, made by and issued by such abstractor, provided however, that the aggregate liability of the surety to all persons under such bond shall in no event exceed the amount of such bond. In any county having more than 200,000 inhabitants the bond or insurance policy required herein shall be in the penal sum of at least \$250,000. Applicants having cash or securities or deposit with the state of Minnesota in an amount equal to the said bond or insurance policy shall be exempt from furnishing the bond or an insurance policy herein required but shall be liable to the same extent as if a bond or insurance policy has been given and filed. The bond or insurance policy required hereunder shall be written by some surety or other company authorized to do business in this state issuing bonds or abstractor's liability insurance policies and shall be issued for a period of one or more years, and renewed for one or more years at the date of expiration as principal continues in business. The aggregate liability of such surety on such bond or insurance policy for all damages shall, in no event, exceed the sum of said bond or insurance policy.

Sec. 131. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 386.67, is amended to read:

386.67 [LICENSED ABSTRACTER, SEAL.]

A licensed abstractor furnishing abstracts of title to real property under the provisions hereof shall provide a seal, which seal shall show the name of such licensed abstractor, and shall file with the ~~executive secretary of the board~~ commissioner an impression of or copy made by such seal and the signatures of persons authorized to sign certificates on abstracts and continuations of abstracts and certificates showing ownership of, or interest in, or liens upon any lands in the state of Minnesota, whether registered or not, issued by such licensed abstractor.

Sec. 132. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 386.68, is amended to read:

386.68 [FEES.]

For The services specified in sections 386.61 to 386.76 following fees shall be set by the board must be paid to the commissioner: an examination fee of \$25; an initial licensing fee of \$50; and a license renewal fee of \$40.

Sec. 133. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 386.69, is amended to read:

386.69 [LICENSES.]

Licenses issued by ~~said board~~ the commissioner under the provisions hereof shall recite that such bond or insurance policy has been duly filed and approved, and the license shall authorize the official, person, firm or corporation named in it to engage in and carry on the business of an abstractor of real estate titles in the county in which said official, person, firm or corporation is authorized to make abstracts. The license shall be issued for a period as determined by the ~~board~~ commissioner, and shall thereafter be renewed upon conditions prescribed by the ~~board~~ commissioner.

Sec. 134. [386.705] [ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIONS AND PENALTIES.]

An abstractor licensed under sections 386.61 to 386.76 is subject to the penalties imposed pursuant to section 45.027. The commissioner has all the powers provided in section 45.027 and shall proceed in the manner provided by that section in actions against abstractors.

Sec. 135. [386.706] [RULES.]

The commissioner may adopt rules necessary for the administration of sections 386.61 to 386.76.

Sec. 136. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.057, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT; PURPOSE.] ~~There is established~~ The agency may establish the Minnesota rural and urban homesteading program ~~to be administered by the agency for the purpose of making grants or loans to eligible applicants to acquire, rehabilitate, and sell eligible property. The program is directed at single family residential properties in need of rehabilitation that are sold to "at risk" home buyers committed to strengthening the neighborhood and following a good neighbor policy.~~

Sec. 137. [462A.204] [FAMILY HOMELESS PREVENTION AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT.] The agency may establish a family homeless prevention and assistance program to assist families who are homeless or are at imminent risk of homelessness. The agency may make grants to develop and implement family homeless prevention and assistance projects under the program. For purposes of this section, "families" means families and persons under the age of 18.

Subd. 2. [SELECTION CRITERIA.] The agency shall award grants to counties with a significant number or significant growth in the number of homeless families and that agree to focus their emergency response systems on homeless prevention and the securing of permanent or transitional housing for homeless families. The agency shall take into consideration the extent to which the proposed project activities demonstrate ways in which existing resources in an area may be more effectively coordinated to meet the program objectives specified under this section in awarding grants.

Subd. 3. [SET ASIDE.] At least one grant must be awarded in an area located outside of the metropolitan area as defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2. A county, a group of contiguous counties jointly acting together, or a community-based nonprofit organization with a sponsoring resolution from each of the county boards of the counties located within its operating jurisdiction may apply for and receive grants for areas located outside the metropolitan area.

Subd. 4. [PROJECT REQUIREMENTS.] Each project must be designed to stabilize families in their existing homes, shorten the amount of time that families stay in emergency shelters, and assist families with securing transitional or permanent affordable housing throughout the grantee's area of operation. Each project must include plans for the following:

- (1) use of existing housing stock, including the maintenance of current housing for those at risk;
- (2) leveraging of private and public money to maximize the project impact;
- (3) coordination and use of existing public and private providers of rental assistance, emergency shelters, transitional housing, and affordable permanent housing;
- (4) targeting of direct financial assistance including assistance for rent, utility payments or other housing costs, and support services, where appropriate, to prevent homelessness and repeated episodes of homelessness;
- (5) efforts to address the needs of specific homeless populations;
- (6) identification of outcomes expected from the use of the grant award; and
- (7) description of how the organization will use other resources to address the needs of homeless individuals.

Subd. 5. [AUTHORIZED USES OF GRANT.] A grant may be used to prevent or decrease the period of homelessness of families and to decrease the time period that families stay in emergency shelters. Grants may not be used to acquire, rehabilitate, or construct emergency shelters or transitional or permanent housing. Grants may not be used to pay more than 24 months of rental assistance for a family.

Subd. 6. [ADVISORY COMMITTEE.] Each grantee shall establish an advisory committee consisting of a homeless advocate, a homeless person or formerly homeless person, a member of the state interagency task force on homelessness, local representatives, if any, of public and private providers of emergency shelter, transitional housing, and permanent affordable housing, and other members of the public not representatives of those specifically described in this sentence. The grantee shall consult on a regular basis with the advisory committee in preparing the project proposal and in the design, implementation, and evaluation of the project. The advisory committee shall assist the grantee as follows:

- (1) designing or refocusing the grantee's emergency response system;
- (2) developing project outcome measurements; and

(3) assessing the short- and long-term effectiveness of the project in meeting the needs of families who are homeless, preventing homelessness, identifying and developing innovative solutions to the problem of homeless families, and identifying problems and barriers to providing services to homeless families.

Subd. 7. [REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.] Each grantee shall submit an annual project report to the state interagency task force on homelessness. The report must include the actual program results compared to program objectives. The state interagency task force shall report on program activities to all state agencies that provide assistance or services to homeless persons.

Sec. 138. [462A.206] [MORTGAGE FORECLOSURE PREVENTION AND EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.]

Subdivision 1. [ESTABLISHMENT.] The agency shall, within the limits of available appropriations, establish a mortgage foreclosure prevention and emergency rental assistance program to provide assistance to low-income and moderate-income persons who are facing the loss of their housing due to circumstances beyond their control. Priority for assistance under this section must be given to persons and families at or below 60 percent of area median income, adjusted for family size, as determined by the department of housing and urban development.

Subd. 2. [ADMINISTRATION.] The agency may contract with community-based, nonprofit organizations that meet the requirements specified in this section to provide either mortgage foreclosure assistance or rental assistance, or both. Preference must be given to nonprofit organizations that demonstrate the greatest ability to leverage program money with other sources of funding, or to organizations serving areas without access to mortgage foreclosure assistance or rental assistance. The agency may require an organization to match program money with other money or resources.

Subd. 3. [ORGANIZATION ELIGIBILITY.] A nonprofit organization must be able to demonstrate that it is qualified to deliver program services, has relevant expertise in mortgage foreclosure prevention or landlord and tenant procedures, and is able to perform the duties required under the program. An organization must provide the agency with a detailed description of how the proposed program would be administered, including the qualifications of staff. An organization may not be part of, nor affiliated with, a mortgage lender nor provide assistance to a household which occupies a housing unit owned or managed by the organization.

Subd. 4. [SELECTION CRITERIA.] The agency shall take the following criteria into consideration when determining whether an organization is qualified to administer the program:

(1) the prior experience of the nonprofit organization in establishing, administering, and maintaining a mortgage foreclosure prevention or a rental assistance program;

(2) the documented familiarity of the organization regarding mortgage foreclosure prevention procedures, landlord and tenant procedures, and other services available to assist with preventing the loss of housing;

(3) the reasonableness of the proposed budget in meeting the program objectives;

(4) the documented ability of the organization to provide financial assistance; and

(5) the documented ability of the organization to provide mortgage foreclosure prevention or other financial or tenant counseling.

Subd. 5. [DESIGNATED AREAS.] A program administrator must designate specific areas, communities, or neighborhoods within which the program is proposed to be operated for the purpose of focusing resources.

Subd. 6. [ASSISTANCE.] (a) Program assistance includes general information, screening, assessment, referral services, case management, advocacy, and financial assistance to borrowers who are delinquent on mortgage, contract for deed, or rent payments.

(b) Not more than one-half of program funding may be used for mortgage or financial counseling services.

(c) Financial assistance consists of:

(1) payments for delinquent mortgage or contract for deed payments, future mortgage or contract for deed payments for a period of up to six months, property taxes, assessments, utilities, insurance, home improvement repairs, or other costs necessary to prevent foreclosure; or

(2) delinquent rent payments, utility bills, any fees or costs necessary to redeem the property, future rent payments for a period of up to six months, and relocation costs if necessary.

(d) An individual or family may receive the lesser of six months or \$4,500 of financial assistance.

Subd. 7. [REPAYMENT.] The agency may require the recipient of financial assistance to enter into an agreement with the agency for repayment. The repayment agreement for mortgages or contract for deed buyers must provide that in the event the property is sold, transferred, or otherwise conveyed, or ceases to be the recipient's principal place of residence, the recipient shall repay all or a portion of the financial assistance. The agency may take into consideration financial hardship in determining repayment requirements. The repayment agreement may be secured by a lien on the property for the benefit of the agency.

Subd. 8. [REPORT.] By January 10 of every year, each nonprofit organization that delivers services under this section must submit a report to the agency that summarizes the number of people served, the number of applicants who were not served, sources and amounts of nonstate money used to fund the services, and the number and type of referrals to other service providers. The agency shall annually submit a report to the legislature by February 15 that summarizes the service provider reports, and provide an assessment of the effectiveness of the program in preventing mortgage foreclosure and homelessness.

Sec. 139. [462A.207] [MENTAL ILLNESS CRISIS HOUSING ASSISTANCE ACCOUNT.]

Subdivision 1. [CREATION.] The mental illness crisis housing assistance account is established as a separate account in the housing development fund. The assistance account consists of money appropriated to it.

Subd. 2. [RENTAL ASSISTANCE.] The account shall pay up to 90 days of rental assistance for persons with a diagnosed mental illness who require short-term inpatient care for stabilization.

Subd. 3. [ELIGIBILITY.] Rental assistance under this section is available only to persons of low and moderate income as determined by the department of housing and urban development.

Subd. 4. [ADMINISTRATION.] The agency may contract with organizations or government units experienced in rental assistance to operate the program under this section.

Sec. 140. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 17. [MORTGAGE FORECLOSURE PREVENTION AND EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE.] The agency may spend money for the purposes of section 462A.206 and may pay the costs and expenses necessary and incidental to the development and operation of the program.

Sec. 141. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 18. [FAMILY HOMELESS PREVENTION AND ASSISTANCE.] The agency may spend money for the purposes of section 462A.204 and may pay the costs and expenses necessary and incidental to the development and operation of the program.

Sec. 142. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 19. [MENTAL ILLNESS CRISIS HOUSING ASSISTANCE.] The agency may spend money for the purpose of section 462A.207 and may pay the costs and expenses necessary and incidental to the development and operation of the program authorized in section 462A.206.

Sec. 143. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 462A.21, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 20. [COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS.] It may make grants to and enter into contracts with community development corporations under section 116J.982, and may pay the costs and expenses for the development and operation of the program.

Sec. 144. Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 469.011, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. [EXPENSES; COMPENSATION.] Each commissioner may receive necessary expenses, including traveling expenses, incurred in the performance of duties. Each commissioner may be paid up to \$55 for attending each regular and special meeting of the authority. Commissioners who are elected officials or full-time state employees or full-time employees of the political subdivisions of the state may not receive the daily payment, but they may suffer no loss in compensation or benefits from the state or a political subdivision as a result of their service on the board. Commissioners who are elected officials may receive the daily payment for a particular day only if they do not receive any other daily payment for public service on that day. Commissioners who are full-time state employees or full-time employees of the political subdivisions of the state may receive the expenses provided for in this subdivision unless the expenses are reimbursed by another source.

Sec. 145. [504.36] [PETS IN SUBSIDIZED HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE RENTAL HOUSING UNITS.]

In a multiunit residential building, a tenant of a handicapped accessible unit, in which the tenant or the unit, receives a subsidy that directly reduces or eliminates the tenant's rent responsibility must be allowed to have two birds or one spayed or neutered dog or one spayed or neutered cat. A renter under this section may not keep or have visits from an animal that constitutes a threat to the health or safety of other individuals, or causes a noise nuisance or noise disturbance to other renters. The landlord may require the renter to pay an additional damage deposit in an amount reasonable to cover damage likely to be caused by the animal. The deposit is refundable at any time the renter leaves the unit of housing to the extent it exceeds the amount of damage actually caused by the animal.

Sec. 146. [REPEALER.]

Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 44A.12; 138.97; 239.05, subdivision 2c; 239.52; 239.78; 268.365, subdivision 1; 268.914, subdivision 2; 268.977; 268.978, subdivision 3; 386.61, subdivision 3; 386.63; 386.64; and 386.70, are repealed.

Sec. 147. [EFFECTIVE DATES.]

Subdivision 1. [1993 APPROPRIATIONS.] Any provisions appropriating money for fiscal year 1993 are effective the day following final enactment.

Subd. 2. [STATE ARTS ACCOUNT.] Sections 59 and 126 are effective July 1, 1995."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for community development and certain agencies of state government, with certain conditions; establishing and modifying certain programs; providing for regulation of certain activities and practices; providing for accounts, assessments, and fees; eliminating or transferring certain agency powers and duties; requiring studies and reports; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 3.30, subdivision 2, as amended; 15.38, by adding a subdivision; 15.50, subdivision 2; 16A.128, subdivision 2; 16A.28, by adding a subdivision; 16A.72; 16B.06, subdivision 2a; 44A.01, subdivisions 2 and 4; 44A.025; 82.21, by adding a subdivision; 116J.617; 116J.982; 216B.62, subdivisions 3 and 5; 237.295, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 239.011, subdivision 2; 239.10; 239.791, subdivisions 6 and 8; 239.80, subdivisions 1 and 2; 257.0755; 268.022, subdivisions 1 and 2; 268.361, subdivisions 6 and 7; 268.362; 268.363; 268.364, subdivisions 1, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 268.365, subdivision 2; 268.55; 268.914, subdivision 1; 268.975, subdivisions 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 268.976, subdivision 2; 268.978, subdivision 1; 268.98; 298.2211, subdivision 3; 298.2213, subdivision 4; 298.223, subdivision 2; 298.28, subdivision 7; 298.296, subdivision 1; 303.13, subdivision 1; 303.21, subdivision 3; 322A.16; 333.20, subdivision 4; 333.22, subdivision 1; 336.9-403; 336.9-404; 336.9-405; 336.9-406; 336.9-407; 336.9-413; 336A.04, subdivision 3; 336A.09, subdivision 2; 349A.10, subdivision 5; 359.01, subdivision 3; 359.02; 386.65; 386.66; 386.67; 386.68; 386.69; 462A.057, subdivision 1; 462A.21, by adding subdivisions; and 469.011, subdivision 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 116J; 116M; 129D; 239; 268; 386; 462A; and 504; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 138A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 44A.12; 138.97; 239.05, subdivision 2c; 239.52; 239.78; 268.365, subdivision 1; 268.914, subdivision 2; 268.977; 268.978, subdivision 3; 386.61, subdivision 3; 386.63; 386.64; and 386.70."

We request adoption of this report and repassage of the bill.

Senate Conferees: CARL W. KROENING, STEVEN G. NOVAK, JAMES P. METZEN AND ELLEN R. ANDERSON.

House Conferees: JAMES I. RICE, KAREN CLARK, JERRY DEMPSEY, BERNIE LIEDER AND CARLOS MARIANI.

Rice moved that the report of the Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1613 be adopted and that the bill be repassed as amended by the Conference Committee. The motion prevailed.

The Speaker resumed the Chair.

S. F. No. 1613, A bill for an act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the departments of labor and industry, public service, jobs and training, housing finance, and other purposes with certain conditions; establishing and modifying certain programs; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 16B.06, subdivision 2a; 116J.617; 116J.982; 179.02, by adding a subdivision; 239.011, subdivision 2; 239.10; 239.791, subdivisions 6 and 8; 268.022, subdivision 2; 268.975, subdivisions 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 268.976, subdivision 2; 268.978, subdivision 1; 268.98; and 462A.21, by adding subdivisions; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116J; 116M; 239; 268; and 462A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 116J.982, subdivisions 6a, 8, and 9; 239.05, subdivision 2c; 239.52; 239.78; 268.977; and 268.978, subdivision 3.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended by Conference, and placed upon its repassage.

The question was taken on the repassage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 82 yeas and 50 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anderson, I.	Clark	Hausman	Kinkel	Neary	Rest	Tomassoni
Anderson, R.	Cooper	Huntley	Krueger	Olson, E.	Rhodes	Trimble
Asch	Davids	Jacobs	Lieder	Olson, K.	Rice	Tunheim
Battaglia	Dawkins	Jaros	Lourey	Orenstein	Rodosovich	Vellenga
Bauerly	Delmont	Jefferson	Luther	Orfield	Rukavina	Vickerman
Beard	Dempsey	Johnson, A.	Mahon	Osthoff	Sarna	Wagenius
Bergson	Dorn	Johnson, R.	Mariani	Ostrom	Sekhon	Wejcmán
Bertram	Farrell	Johnson, V.	McCollum	Pelowski	Simoneau	Wenzel
Brown, C.	Garcia	Kahn	McGuire	Perlt	Skoglund	Winter
Brown, K.	Greenfield	Kalis	Milbert	Peterson	Solberg	Spk. Long
Carlson	Greiling	Kelley	Munger	Pugh	Sparby	
Carruthers	Hasskamp	Kelso	Murphy	Reding	Steensma	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Abrams	Frerichs	Jennings	Lindner	Olson, M.	Stanius	Worke
Bettermann	Girard	Klinzing	Lynch	Onnen	Sviggum	Workman
Bishop	Goodno	Knickerbocker	Macklin	Opatz	Swenson	
Blatz	Gruenes	Koppendrayner	Molnau	Ozment	Tompkins	
Commers	Gutknecht	Krinkie	Morrison	Pauly	Van Dellen	
Dauner	Haukoos	Lasley	Mosel	Pawlenty	Waltman	
Dehler	Holsten	Leppik	Nelson	Seagren	Weaver	
Erhardt	Hugoson	Limmer	Ness	Smith	Wolf	

The bill was repassed, as amended by Conference, and its title agreed to.

Anderson, I., moved that the House recess subject to the call of the Chair. The motion prevailed.

RECESS

RECONVENED

The House reconvened and was called to order by the Speaker.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE, Continued

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned:

H. F. No. 1021, A bill for an act relating to state lands; exempting certain lakeshore lots from sale requirements; authorizing the commissioner of natural resources to acquire personal property; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, section 92.67, by adding a subdivision.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate has concurred in and adopted the report of the Conference Committee on:

S. F. No. 1201.

The Senate has repassed said bill in accordance with the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee. Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT ON S. F. NO. 1201

A bill for an act relating to health occupations and professions; board of psychology; extending deadline by which previously qualified persons may file a declaration of intent to seek licensure as a licensed psychologist without further examination; requiring the board to issue notices of extension; modifying reciprocity licensing requirement; providing for disciplinary actions; consolidating and modifying enforcement remedies; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 103L345, subdivision 1; 116.75; 116.76, subdivision 1; 116.77; 116.82, subdivision 3; 144.71, subdivision 1; 145A.07, subdivision 1; 148.89, by adding a subdivision; 148.905, subdivision 1; 148.921, subdivisions 2 and 3; 148.925, subdivision 1; 148.98; 326.37, subdivision 1; 327.16, subdivision 6; and 327.20, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 144; and 148; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 103L701; 103L705; 116.83; 144.1211; 144.386, subdivision 4; 144.73, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 144.76; 148.95; 157.081; 326.43; 326.53, subdivision 2; 326.63; 326.78, subdivisions 4, 6, 7, and 8; 326.79; 326.80; 327.18; and 327.24, subdivisions 1 and 2.

May 7, 1993

The Honorable Allan H. Spear
President of the Senate

The Honorable Dee Long
Speaker of the House of Representatives

We, the undersigned conferees for S. F. No. 1201, report that we have agreed upon the items in dispute and recommend as follows:

That the House recede from its amendment and that S. F. No. 1201 be further amended as follows:

Page 18, line 31, after "fully" insert "and promptly"

Page 19, line 1, delete everything after the period

Page 19, delete lines 2 to 8

We request adoption of this report and repassage of the bill.

Senate Conferees: HAROLD R. "SKIP" FINN, DON BETZOLD AND STEVE DILLE.

House Conferees: MARC ASCH, THOMAS PUGH AND GREGORY M. DAVIDS.

Asch moved that the report of the Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1201 be adopted and that the bill be repassed as amended by the Conference Committee. The motion prevailed.

S. F. No. 1201, A bill for an act relating to health occupations and professions; board of psychology; extending deadline by which previously qualified persons may file a declaration of intent to seek licensure as a licensed psychologist without further examination; requiring the board to issue notices of extension; modifying reciprocity licensing requirement; providing for disciplinary actions; consolidating and modifying enforcement remedies; providing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 103I.345, subdivision 1; 116.75; 116.76, subdivision 1; 116.77; 116.82, subdivision 3; 144.71, subdivision 1; 145A.07, subdivision 1; 148.89, by adding a subdivision; 148.905, subdivision 1; 148.921, subdivisions 2 and 3; 148.925, subdivision 1; 148.98; 326.37, subdivision 1; 327.16, subdivision 6; and 327.20, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 144; and 148; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 103I.701; 103I.705; 116.83; 144.1211; 144.386, subdivision 4; 144.73, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 144.76; 148.95; 157.081; 326.43; 326.53, subdivision 2; 326.63; 326.78, subdivisions 4, 6, 7, and 8; 326.79; 326.80; 327.18; and 327.24, subdivisions 1 and 2.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended by Conference, and placed upon its repassage.

The question was taken on the repassage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 123 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abrams	Bergson	Commers	Dempsey	Goodno	Holsten	Johnson, A.
Anderson, I.	Bertram	Cooper	Dorn	Greiling	Hugoson	Johnson, R.
Anderson, R.	Bettermann	Dauner	Erhardt	Gruenes	Huntley	Johnson, V.
Asch	Blatz	Dauids	Evans	Gutknecht	Jacobs	Kahn
Battaglia	Brown, K.	Dawkins	Farrell	Hasskamp	Jaros	Kelley
Bauerly	Carlson	Dehler	Garcia	Haukoos	Jefferson	Kinkel
Beard	Clark	Delmont	Girard	Hausman	Jennings	Klinzing

Knickerbocker	Mahon	Ness	Pauly	Rukavina	Swenson	Wejcman
Krinkie	Mariani	Olson, E.	Pawlenty	Sarna	Tomassoni	Welle
Krueger	McCollum	Olson, K.	Pelowski	Seagren	Tompkins	Wenzel
Lasley	Milbert	Olson, M.	Perlt	Sekhon	Trimble	Winter
Lieder	Molnau	Onnen	Peterson	Simoneau	Tunheim	Wolf
Limmer	Morrison	Opatz	Pugh	Smith	Van Dellen	Worke
Lindner	Mosel	Orenstein	Reding	Solberg	Vellenga	Workman
Lourey	Munger	Orfield	Rest	Sparby	Vickerman	Spk. Long
Luther	Murphy	Osthoff	Rhodes	Stanius	Wagenius	
Lynch	Neary	Ostrom	Rice	Steensma	Waltman	
Macklin	Nelson	Ozment	Rodosovich	Sviggum	Weaver	

The bill was repassed, as amended by Conference, and its title agreed to.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned, as amended by the Senate, in which amendment the concurrence of the House is respectfully requested:

H. F. No. 1245, A bill for an act relating to data practices; providing for the collection, classification, and dissemination of data; proposing classifications of data as not public; classifying certain licensing data, educational data, security service data, motor carrier operating data, retirement data and other forms of data; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 13.32, subdivisions 1, 3, and 6; 13.41, subdivision 4; 13.43, subdivision 2; 13.46, subdivisions 1, 2, and 4; 13.643; 13.692; 13.72, by adding a subdivision; 13.792; 13.82, subdivisions 4, 6, and 10; 13.99, subdivision 24, and by adding subdivisions; 115A.93, by adding a subdivision; 144.335, subdivision 3a, and by adding a subdivision; 151.06, by adding a subdivision; 169.09, subdivisions 7 and 13; 245A.04, subdivisions 3 and 3a; 260.161, subdivisions 1 and 3; 270B.14, subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 299L.03, by adding a subdivision; and 626.556, subdivisions 11 and 11c; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 6; 13; and 144; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 13.644; and 13.82, subdivision 5b.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

McGuire moved that the House refuse to concur in the Senate amendments to H. F. No. 1245, that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House, and that the House requests that a like committee be appointed by the Senate to confer on the disagreeing votes of the two houses. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned, as amended by the Senate, in which amendment the concurrence of the House is respectfully requested:

H. F. No. 1524, A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing conditions and requirements for the issuance of public debt and for the financial obligations of authorities; providing an exemption from the mortgage registration tax; providing an exemption from an ad valorem taxation for certain lease purchase property; providing a property tax exemption for certain property devoted to public use; amending Minnesota Statutes 1992, sections 80A.12, by adding a subdivision; 275.065, subdivision 7; 287.04; 447.45, subdivision 2; 475.67, subdivisions 3 and 13; and 501B.25; repealing Minnesota Rules, part 2875.3532.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Anderson, J., moved that the House refuse to concur in the Senate amendments to H. F. No. 1524, that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 3 members of the House, and that the House requests that a like committee be appointed by the Senate to confer on the disagreeing votes of the two houses. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following Senate Files, herewith transmitted:

S. F. Nos. 998 and 1624.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. No. 998, A bill for an act relating to the city of Saint Paul; providing for a housing rehabilitation program; authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

S. F. No. 1624, A bill for an act relating to claims against the state; providing for payment of various claims; appropriating money.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

SPECIAL ORDERS

Anderson, I., moved that the remaining bills on Special Orders for today be continued. The motion prevailed.

GENERAL ORDERS

Anderson, I., moved that the bills on General Orders for today be continued. The motion prevailed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Carruthers moved that the name of Skoglund be added as an author on H. F. No. 900. The motion prevailed.

Hausman moved that the name of Brown, K., be added as an author on H. F. No. 1529. The motion prevailed.

Pugh moved that H. F. No. 588, now on General Orders, be re-referred to the Committee on Labor-Management Relations. The motion prevailed.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SPEAKER

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on H. F. No. 1245:

McGuire, Carruthers and Macklin.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on H. F. No. 1524:

Rest, Dehler and Wagenius.

ADJOURNMENT

Anderson, I., moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn until 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, May 12, 1993. The motion prevailed.

Anderson, I., moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and the Speaker declared the House stands adjourned until 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, May 12, 1993.

EDWARD A. BURDICK, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives